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TOM FLAHERTY,CONTROLLER

I
 
I
 

•'enns~litania
 412-255-2055 
FAX 412-255-2958 

I The Honorable Mayor. Members of 
City Council, and the O"tizens of 
the City ofPittsburgh, Pennsylvania: 

I 
I 

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of 
Pittsburgh for the year ended December 31, 1989. 

I 
We believe that the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of 
operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial activities, other than fixed assets, have been 
included. Responsibility for both the accuracy of data, and the completeness and I	 fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of 
the City. 

I	 INTRODUCTION 

I The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is presented in three sections: 
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section includes this letter, 
the City's organization chart, and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section 

I consists of the independent certified public accountants' report, the general purpose 
financial statements. with the related notes, and the combining and individual fund 
and account group financial statements alld schedules. The Statistical Section 

I includes financial and other pertinent data, generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

I 
I 
I 
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I
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

IThe City of Pittsburgh is located in the southwestern part of the Commonwealth 
forming the Golden Triangle where the Allegheny and Monongahela Rivers meet to 
create the Ohio River. I 
Economic Background: The abundant water resources fostered a strong industrial 
based economy that has been the strength of Pittsburgh's past. Steel and heavy I
manufacturing dominated our economy and the successes of those industries were the 
prime economic indicators. 

I 
Steel and heavy manufacturing, while still present in our economy, no longer dictate 
our economic future. In keeping with national trends, Pittsburgh has successfully 
shifted from an industrial to a diversified economy. This diversity is the strength of I
Pittsburgh's future. 

Our Present Economy: Today, Pittsburgh is the home of leading service industries I 
such as high-technology, health, research, education, and finance, and promises to be 
in the fore of such emerging industries as "maglev" technology. In addition to a 
sound economy, other factors such as reasonably priced housing, relatively low crime, I 
and excellent cultural and recreational opportunities were instrumental in Pittsburgh 
being named by the Rand-McNally study as the third most livable city in the country 
in 1989. I 
Economic Statistics: Unemployment in the Pittsburgh Primary Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (PMSA) was 4.6% in 1989 compared to a three year high of 6.7% in I 
1987. Steady employment gains have been experienced by non-manufacturing,
 
service, and trade industries with indications of continued gains in 1990. Sales of
 
non-durable goods increased by 7.4%, while retail sales grew 3.6% to $14.1 billion in I
 
1989. OveralL the Pittsburgh PMSA showed signs of a growing economy.
 

Economic Outlook: While many parts of the country are economically dependent
 I 
upon federal defense expenditures, the Pittsburgh PMSA should be relatively 
unaffected. In 1988, the U.S. average defense expenditure was $915 per capita 
compared to $460 in the Pittsburgh PMSA. Most of the repercussions of the "peace I 
dividend" will be felt in regions with heavy dependence on military bases. Our 
economy has little reliance on military installations. I 
Taken as a whole, the sum of all the major public/private initiatives described below 
suggests a stable and growth oriented local economy. The discussion of the major 
initiatives undertaken and contemplated is by no means comprehensive, and serves I 
only to highlight the many positive economic indicators in the Greater Pittsburgh 
Area. I
 

I
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I MAJOR INITIATIVES 

I Pittsburgh's commitment to economic development and urban revitalization is 
evidenced by the numerous initiatives in progress or currently being planned. Some 

I of the more significant initiatives currently in progress include: 

PITTSBURGH CITY CENTER - The $500 million City Center project is the largest 

I private sector initiative, the first phase of which includes a four level retail complex 
anchored by a Macy's department store, a 28 story office tower, a 330 room five star 
Grand Bay luxury hotel, gourmet restaurants, a food court, health club, and a 1700

I car parking garage. Construction is slated to begin in November 1990. Phase two of 
this project envisions doubling the office component. 

I FIFTH& FORBES RETAIL INITIA TIVE - The Fifth & Forbes Initiative represents 
an $18 million pedestrian space improvements project in the Downtown retail 
district, with funding shared equally among the City, State, Federal agencies, and 

I district property owners. A new downtown management organization will manage 
the district. The initiative is a companion to the City Center project seeking to 
integrate the current downtown business district with the same architectural thought 

I of the City Center. 

I 
THREE RIVERS STADIUM PROJECT- This project is a waterfront recreation and 
entertainment complex with an educational function. The first elements of the 
project, the $35 million BOOI Science Center and Omnimax Theater, are currently 
under construction. Also underway is a new pedestrian ramp system linking Point 

I State Park to the stadium area. 

I WASHINGTON'S LANDING DEVELOPMENT-Furthering the City's continued 
commitment to riverfront development, this estimated $62 million project includes a 
unique blend of commercial, recreational and residential initiatives. Plans call for a 

I marina, restaurant, park, waterfront housing, a research and development facility, a 
light manufacturing plant, and commercial office space to be added to the recently 
completed boathouse. 

I 
I PITTSBURGH TECHNOLOGY CENTER - Construction is anticipated to begin this 

fall for the first building of the Pittsburgh Technology Center on the former J & L 
Steel site. The Center is a high tech research office park promising to be a 

I 
partnership between university-based research and private enterprise in emerging 
industries. A 1995 completion date and an estimated $260 million public/private 
investment create a potential of an estimated 4,200 permanent jobs. 

I
 
I
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I
MAJOR INITIATIVES (Continued) 

I 
OTHER PROJECTS - Numerous other projects are currently underway or planned. 
These projects include: I 

• Midfield Tenninal - (Project underway): $600 million 
airport terminal expected to generate thousands of jobs over the next twenty years, Ihaving an estimated $9.4 billion impact on the region as a whole. 

• Maglev Project - (Project in planning) : Magnetic Levitation I
Train Project to link Downtown to the Airport. Initial $300 million investment that 
could evolve into a major new technology to the region. 

I 
• Criminal Justice Complex - (Project in planning) : A joint 

venture between the City and Allegheny County to share costs of a common County 
Jail and Public Safety Complex. I 

• Recycling Initiative - (Project underway) : Beginning this 
fall, City residents will begin a five item recycling project in order to comply with I 
new state requirements. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY I 
The City provides the full range of municipal services authorized by Pittsburgh's I 
Home Rule Charter adopted in 1976. These include public safety (police, fire, and 
emergency medical services), highways and streets, sanitation, recreation and cultural 
programs, urban redevelopment and housing, and general administrative services. I 
This report includes all the funds and the account group of the City and also 
incorporates the financial statements of those related organizations which have been I 
determined to be part of the City's reporting entity. The Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) has set certain criteria for including other entities as part of 
the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The criteria for determining I 
component units of the reporting unit include, but are not limited to: 

Ia. Financial interdependency 

b. Selection of governing authority I 
c. Designation of management 

Id Ability to significantly influence operations 

I 
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I	 THE REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) 

I Based on these criteria. the financial statements of the following organizations have 
been included as component units of the City of Pittsburgh: 

I 
I
 

* City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leasing Authority (ELA)
 
(Accounted for in Special Revenue. Debt Service.
 
and General Long-Term Debt Account Group) 

I
 * Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority
 
(Accounted for in Proprietary Fund Group) 

I	 * Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 
(Accounted for in Proprietary Fund Group) 

I * Pension Trust Funds of the City of Pittsburgh 
(Accounted for in Trust and Agency Fund Group) 

I	 - Comprehensive Board 
- Municipal Employees Plan 
- Police Pension Plan 

I - Fire Pension Plan 

The financial statements of the following organizations have not ~ included in 

I	 this report because they did not meet the above mentioned criteria: 

*	 The School District of Pittsburgh 
The Public Parking Authority of PittsburghI	 * 

*	 The Public Auditorium Authority of Pittsburgh 
Allegheny County Sanitary Authority 

I	 *
* Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh 
* Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 

I	 For informational purposes. summarized unaudited financial data of the 

I 
organizations excluded from the reporting entity have been presented in note l(A) of 
the Notes to the financial statements in the accompanying report. A more detailed 
discussion of all potential component units and the basis for inclusion/exclusion can 
also be found in note l(A). 

I
 
I
 
I
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I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

IIntemal Control: Management of the city is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the 
city are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting Iinformation is compiled to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of I
reasonable assurance recognizes that : (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived: and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgements by management. I 
Budget Control: Budget control is maintained at the line item level on a 
departmental basis. Activities of the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund are I 
controlled by an annual appropriated budget. Capital Projects are also controlled on 
a mUlti-year basis. Federal Revenue Sharing funds, which are no longer available, 
have also been controlled by an annual budget. I 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING I 
The financial information included in this letter and the accompanying financial 
statements are reported upon using Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) unless otherwise noted. GAAP requires that most government fund types I 
use the Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting. See Note I(D) of the accompanying 
financial statements for a discussion of accounting basis used. I 
REVENUES 

Revenue Analysis: Revenues for Governmental Fund Types (General Fund, Special I 
Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds) totaled $306.6 million in 1989, an 
increase of $1.7 million, compared to total revenues of $304.9 million in 1988. 
Taxes, including penalty and interest, which comprise 72% of governmental fund I 
revenues, decreased by $4.6 million in 1989 as a result of a reduction in the Earned 
Income Tax from 2 1/8% to 1 5/8%. Despite the decrease in earned income taxes, 
increases in interest earnings, licenses and fees, and intergovernmental revenue more I 
than offset the difference. 

IThe amount of revenues from various sources, the percent of total revenues, and the 
amount of increase (decrease) from 1988, GAAP basis, have been summarized in 
Table-Ion page 1-7 of this letter. I 
Taxes & Rates: The reduction of the Earned Income Tax from 2 1/8% to 1 5/8% 
was the only rate change during 1989. A summary of significant taxes including Itheir rates and sources can be found on page 1-8. 

I 
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REVENUES 

TABLE -1 (Governmental Funds) 

(in millions) 

INCREASE 
1989 %OF 1988 %OF (DECREASE) 

ACTUAL TafAL ACTUAL TafAL Over 1988SOURCE 

TAXES, PENALTY 
& INTEREST $220.7 72.0 % $225.3 73.9 % ($4.6) 

INTEREST EARNINGS 10.3 3.4 8.7 2.9 1.6 
FINES & FORFEITS 4.4 1.4 4.7 1.5 (0.3) 
LICENSES & FEES 11.6 3.8 10.6 3.5 1.0 
PITfSBURGH ZOO RECEIPTS 1.5 0.5 1.2 0.4 0.3 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 54.7 17.8 50.5 16.6 4.2 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2.1 0.7 1.9 0.6 0.2 
MISCELLANEOUS 1.3 0.4 2.0 0.7 (0.7) 

TOTAL REVENUES 1$306.6 100.0 $304.9 100.0 $1.7 1
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued) 

ITaxes &. Riltes (continued) 

Ileal Estate Tax - Real property in the City is assessed by the Allegheny I
County Board of Property Assessment, Appeals and Review at a rate of 
25% of its fair market value. The rates for 1989 were 27.0 mills on 
buildings and 151.5 mills on land A mill is $1 on each $1,000 of assessed I
value. Market value is determined by county assessors every three years. 

For 1990, the real estate tax rates will be 32.0 mills on buildings and I
184.5 mills on land 

Earned Income Tax - This tax is levied at the rate of 1 5/8% on the I 
wages or net profits earned by residents of the City. This rate is down 
from 2 1/8% in 1988. In 1990, the rate will further decrease to 1% 
with the goal of attracting new residents to the City who are subject to I 
lower suburban earned income taxes. 

Business Privilege Tax - The City taxes the gross receipts from I 
operating or conducting a service business. trade or profession in, or 
attributable to, the City at a rate of 6 mills. I 
Parking Tax - A tax equal to 25% of the consideration paid for each 
parking transaction is levied on the patrons of non-residential parking 
places in the City. I 
Amusement Tax - This tax is levied at a rate of 10% on the admission 
price paid by patrons of all manner and forms of amusement within the I 
City. 

Mercantile Tax - A tax of 1 mill is levied on the gross receipts I 
of whoJeSllle dealers of goods, wares, and merchandise. A 2 mill tax is 
levied on retllil vendors of goods, wares. and merchandise. I 
Occupation Privilege Tax - A $10 annual tax is levied upon each 
individual whose principal place of employment is located in the City. I 
Deed Transfer Tax - A tax of 1.5% of the consideration paid for real 
property transfers is levied upon the transfer of an interest in real Iproperty situated in the City. 

Personal Property Tax - A levy of 4 mills is made upon certain classes Iof personal property based upon assessments made by the County. 

I 
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I FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued) 

I Taxes & Rates (continued) 

Institution Semce PriYilege Tax - Certain receipts of non-profit,

I non-charitable organizations conducting or operating a service or service 
institution in the City are taxed at a rate of 6 mills. 

I 
I 

Tax Payments: Real estate taxes are payable quarterly, but a 2% discount is granted 
if paid in January. If a quarterly payment is not made by the last day of the 
calendar quarter, a penalty of 1/2% per month and interest at the rate of 1% per 

I 
month is imposed on the balance of the tax due for the year. The 1989 total assessed 
valuation of land and buildings increased by $13 million over 1988 valuation. 

All non-real estate taxes. except the Deed Transfer Tax. which is payable at the time 

I of transfer; and the Personal Property Tax. which is due August 31; are payable 
annually by April 15 or are payable quarterly or monthly. Consequently, the City is 
in a strong cash position early in its fiscal year. 

I 
EXPENDITURES 

I 
I Expenditures for governmental fund types in 1989 totaled $365.7 million, compared 

to $366.7 in 1988 - a decrease of $1 million. which is attributable, in part, to 
increased amounts of federal grant money received and expended in 1988. The most 

I 
significant decrease in expenditure was in the general government area. which 
accounts for, in part, federal grant money received in the Special Revenue Funds. 
General Government expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds decreased by 

I 
approximately $9.5 million in 1989. This decrease was offset by increased capital 
project expenditures of $9.7 million mainly for highway and bridge construction and 
street maintenance and sign projects. The detail of each functional area of 
expenditure is presented in Table - 2 on page 1-10. 

I TEN YEAR ANALYSIS 

I Since 1989 marks the end of a decade, we have included in this letter selected 
general fund statistics to report the financial progress the City has made during the 
19808. The reader should note that these statistics are for the aeneral flmd. only.

I Consequently, the statistics in Tables 1 & 2 are not directly comparable, as they 
include the results of the Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds 
in addition to the General Fund Furthermore, past performance should not be 

I considered as an indicator of future results. 

I 
I 
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TABLE - 2 
EXPENDITURES 

(Governmental Funds) 

(in millions) 

EXPENDITURES 
1989 

ACTUAL 

%OF 

TOTAL 

1988 

ACTIJAL 

%OF 

TOTAL 

INCREASE 

(DECREASE) 

Over 1988 

CURRENT: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $23.4 6.4 % $36.8 10.0 % ($13.4) 
PUBLIC SAFETY 102.3 28.0 99.5 27.1 2.8 
PUBLIC WORKS 34.6 9.5 39.7 10.8 (5.1) 
SANITATION 14.2 3.9 12.7 3.5 1.5 
CULTURAL & RECREATION 22.3 6.1 21.0 5.7 1.3 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 42.6 11.6 47.2 12.9 (4.6) 
CLA~S&JUDGEMENTS 0.6 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.2 
MISCELLANEOUS 2.4 0.7 0.8 0.2 1.6 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 20.0 5.5 13.0 3.5 7.0 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 58.5 16.0 48.8 13.3 9.7 
BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 1.5 0.4 - - 1.5 
DEBT SERVICE & SUBSIDIES W ill ~ W {U) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100.0 $366.7 100.0 ($1.0)\I $365.7 
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GENERAL FUND - FUND BALANCES 

I
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Funds, was as follows: 

I Gross bonded general obligation debt 
Less: Debt service fund 

I Net bonded debt 

I 
Ratio of net bonded debt to assessed value 
Ratio of net bonded debt to market value 
Net bonded debt per capita 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

At December 31, 1989 the City's general obligation debt, exclusive of the Enterprise 

$ 422,637,500 
4,773,049 

417,864,451 
21.12 % 

5.28% 
$ 986 

I 
The gross bonded debt of the City consists of $395,125,000 of general obligation 
bonds, $18,950,000 of Equipment Leasing Authority (ELA) equipment revenue 
bonds and $8,562,500 of Public Auditorium revenue bonds. Under an agreement 
with the ELA, the City has agreed to make annual rental payments for equipment 

I
 leased to the City by the ELA to cover the debt service on ELA bonds.
 

I
 
In September of 1989, the City issued $60,000,000 of general obligation bonds to
 
finance various capital projects. As a result, the gross bonded debt of the City
 
increased by $46,540,000. The net proceeds, after Bond Underwriter's discount of
 
$800,736, was $59,199,264. Total bond issuance costs, excluding discount, were
 

I $1,495,986. The bond issuance cost includes $778,729 of interest expense on the
 
$26,200,000 bond anticipation notes the City issued prior to the receipt of bond
 
proceeds in order to finance projects in progress in 1989. The proceeds of the bond
 

I issue are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund
 

I CASH MANAGEMENT 

Cash in excess of current operating needs is invested in various types of financial

I instruments with local banks and other institutions. In response to significant losses 
experienced by some state and local governments, the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) issued its Statement Number 3, which requires governments 

I to classify and disclose cash deposits and investments, along with the related level of 
risk, in their financial statements. A discussion of the composition of the City's 
deposits and investments and the related risks is presented in Note 3 in the 

I accompanying General Purpose Financial Statements. 

I In late 1989, the City began an innovative banking strategy aimed at encouraging all 
banks doing business with the City to more actively provide banking services to 

I 
creditworthy low and moderate income individuals and businesses in targeted areas. 
This strategy ranks financial institutions doing business with the City by several 
criteria and rewards the highest ranking institutions with a greater share of the City's 
business. 

I 
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I
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

IThe Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority and The Stadium Authority of the City 
of Pittsburgh comprise the Enterprise Funds of the City of Pittsburgh. 

I
PITTSBURGH WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 

The Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority (PWSA) began operation on May 1, I
1984, to assume responsibility for operating and improving the water and sewer 
systems of the City. The Authority has leased the two systems from the City for a 
term of fifty years with renewal provisions. The City, acting as agent for the I 
Authority, will manage, operate and maintain the systems. The Authority will 
reimburse the City for all related direct and indirect expenses, plus an additional 
payment for the City's management services. The Authority is also making payments I 
for $29.4 million of the City's General Obligation Debt related to the funding of 
water projects completed prior to the creation of the Authority. 

As of December 31, 1989, PWSA bonds outstanding were 
as shown below: 

* Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1985 

* Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1986 (Iune) 

* Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series of 1986 (Iuly) 

Total Bonds Outstanding, December 31, 1989 

Less : Escrow Funds 
Bond Discount 

Net Bonds Payable, December 31, 1989 

I
 
I
 
I
 

$ 97,900,000 

I 
134,700,000 

I
 
I
 

$496,690,000 

I230,980,000
Um.ooo 

I$lli.mOOO 

IThe Series of 1985 and the Iuly 1986 bonds were issued primarily to refund prior 
issues; $88.6 million and $241.4 million, respectively, were placed in escrow for this 
purpose. These bonds are not guaranteed by the City. I
 

I
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I
 
I ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 

I STADIUM AUTHORITY 

I The Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh was established to construct and 
operate Three Rivers Stadium. The Authority operates on a fiscal year ending March 
31. All information related to the Stadium Authority included in the accompanying 

I report is as of March 31, 1989 unless otherwise noted 

I As of March 31, 1989, Stadium Authority bonds outstanding were as follows: 

* Guaranteed Stadium Refunding Bonds, 

I Series of 1985 $ 30,915,000 

* Guaranteed Funding Bonds, Series of 1986 20.365.000

I 
Total Bonds Outstanding, March 31, 1989 S 51.280.000

I 
I The City has agreed to pay the principal and interest on these bonds to the extent 

that the revenues of the Stadium Authority do not cover the debt service 
requirements. In addition, the City has guaranteed the subsidization of operating 

I
 deficits of the Authority.
 

I INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

I For the eighth consecutive year, the City's financial statements have been audited by 
the independent certified public accountant firm of KPMG Peat Marwick. whose 
opinion precedes the accompanying General Purpose Financial Statements. 

I
 
I The Employee Pension Plans were audited by Terry and Stephenson, P.C. as
 

subcontracted by KPMG Peat Marwick. The financial statements of the plans have
 
been included in the Trust and Agency Funds of the accompanying financial
 

I
 
statements. The financial statements of the PWSA were audited by Ernst & Young;
 
and Deloitte & Touche (formerly Touche Ross International) audited the financial
 
statements of the Stadium Authority.
 

I
 
I
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As we enter decade of the 1990s. new challenges present themselves to local I
governments. The City of Pittsburgh continues to take the measures necessary to 
meet these challenges head on, and thus ensuring its position as a major center for 
business. industry and education in the yean to come. I
 

I
 
I
 
I
Respectfully submitted, 

I
~/~?
 
Tom Flaherty 
City Controller I
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I ~Peat Marwick 

I One Mellon Bank Center 

Pittsburgh. PA 15219 

I 

Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412 391 8963 
Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

I Independent Auditors' Report 

I To the Honorable Members of Council of 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania: 

I 
I We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 1989, as 
listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of

I the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City 

I 
of Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We 
did not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh 
Pension Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire 
Plan, which statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 66 percent 
and 92 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. ThQse 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have

I been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based 
solely upon the reports of the other aUditors. 

I 
I We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted aUditing 

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial 
statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

I accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

I 
I Records wi th respect to the historical cost of general purpose fixed assets 

and a comprehensive inventory of such assets are not available (see note 1). 
Consequently, a general fixed asset account group is not included in the 
accompanying general purpose financial statements. 

In our opinion, based 
for the effect on the 
preceding paragraph, 
above present fairly, 

on our audit and the reports of other auditors, except 
financial statements of the omission described in the 

the general purpose financial statements referred to 
in all material respects, the financial position of the 

I City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, at December 31, 1989, and the results of its 
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

I 
I 1 

I 



I 
~iPeat Marwick I 

To the Honorable Members of Council of Ithe City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 
Page 2 

I 
As described in note 7, the City has vested pension benefit obligations which 
are significantly in excess of related available assets. I
Our audi t was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general 
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund 
and individual account group financial statements and schedules listed in the 
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional I 
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial 
statements of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The current year's 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit I 
of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon 
our audit and the reports of other auditors, except for the effect of the 
matter discussed in the third preceding paragraph, is fairly presented in all Imaterial respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

IThe schedules of supplementary pension disclosures listed in the accompanying 
table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of I 
management, regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information or 
other information in the statistical section as set forth in the table of Icontents and, therefore, express no opinion thereon. 

I
 
I
June 22, 1990 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I2 



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
CiTY OF PITTSBUKCH. PENNSYJ.VANlA
 

Combined Balance Shept - All Fund Types and Account Group
 

December 31, 1989 

General 

Governmental Fund Types 

Special Debt 
~ Service 

Capital 
Proiects 

Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Fiduciary 
Fund Typea 

Trust and 
Agency 

Account Group 
General 

Long-Term 
Debt 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

1989 1988 

w 

Assets: 
C.8h and investments, at cost 

which approximates market (note 3) 
Receivables: 

Real estste tsxes (net of allowance for 
uncollectible accounts of *16.368.725) (note 5) 

Sewage charges (net of allowance for 
uncollectible accounts of *3,575.000) 

Personal property taxea (net of allowance 
for uncollectible accounts of *275.000) 

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for 
uncollectible accounts of *15.992.558) (note 15) 

Contributions - participants 
Accrued interest 
Other 

Prepaid expensea and other aaaeta 
Due from other funda (note 10) 
Due fro. other governments 
Inventoriee. at cost 
Truateed and reatricted funda (notea 3 and 4) 
Property, plant and equipment, net (note 6) 
AMOunt available in debt service fund a for 

retirement of bonds 
AMOunt to be provided for retirement 

of bonds 
AMOunt to be provided for other long-term 

obligstions 
Total assets 

* 

* 

31.046.685 

4.812,521 

1,090,128 

27.700 

59.322 
2.167.212 
2,001,287 
3.955.564 

-
2.980,251 

48,140,670 

12.899.573 

-
-
-

208,599 
335.836 

-
254.266 

6,898,205 
-

20.596.479 

5.226.304 

-

-
-

192,747 
-
-
-
-
-

--- ­

5.419.051 

56.672.835 

-
-
-

---
1.205,678 
4.854.118 

-

62.732.631 

21.150.273 

-
-

-
11 ,626,042 

-
20,000 
-

237,548 
-
--

134,457.719 
130,190.370 

297.681,952 

122.457.728 

-
-

-
-
-

986.654 
-
-

2,100.000 
-
-
-
-

125.544.382 

-

-

-
-
--
-
-
-
-
----

4.773.049 

417,864.451 

273 .673,767 
696,311.267 

249.453,398 

4,812.521 

1.090,128 

27,700 

11.626.042 
-

1.467,322 
2.503.048 
2.238.835 
7.515,508 

11,752,323 
2,980.251 

134.457.719 
130,190,370 

4,773.049 

417.864,451 

273,673.767 
1,256.426,432 

214,441.693 

5.362.157 

1,052,290 

19,019 

13.208.146 
204.694 

1,553,991 
1.517,735 
2.223.835 

12.169,650 
8,465.541 
2,162.383 

150,825.591 
110,811.269 

4,786,507 

371.310,993 

265.181,080 
1.165,296.574 

(Cont inued) 



-- --

----

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Liabilitie.:
 
Ca.h overdraft
 
Account. p.yable
 
Ret.in.8e pay.ble
 
Accrued intere.t p.y.ble
 
Accrued li.bilitie. 
Deferred ca.pen•• tion p.y.ble 
Due to other fund. (note (0) 
Grant. fra. the City of Pitt.burgh 
Due to other government. 
Depo.it. held in tru.t 
Liabilitie. pay.ble from tru.teed .nd 

restricted fund. 
Bond. pay.ble, net (note 8) 
Capit.l le••e oblig.tion. (note 8E) 
Deferred loan (note 8G) 
Accrued pen. ion co.t. (note. 7 .nd 8F) 
Accrued worker.' compen••tion (note 8F) 

~ Accrued compen.ated ab.ence. (note 8F) 
Deferred revenue 

Tot.l liabilitie. 

Fund equity (deficit): 
Contributed c.pit.l (including *7,398,631 

re.tricted for con.truction purpo.e.) 
(note (2) 

Ret.ined e.rninga (.ccumul.ted deficit): 
Unre.tricted (note (4) 

Fund bal.nce.: 
Re •.erved for:
 

End_nt.
 
Enc..... r.nce.
 
Inventorie.
 
Employee benefit.
 

Unre.erved: 
De.ign.ted for debt .ervice 
De.ign.ted for .ub.equent year.' 

expenditure. 
Unde.ignated 

Total fund equity (deficit) 

Total li.bilitie••nd fund equity 

See .ccompanying note. to gener.l purpo.e financial 

2
 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Type. and Account Group
 
(Continued)
 

Propriet.ry Fiduci.ry 
Governmental Fund Type. Fund Type Fund Types 

General 
Special 
~ 

Debt 
~ 

Capital 
Project. Enterpri.e 

Tru.t .nd 
~ 

- - - - - -* 
5,601,645 

-
4,596,866 

-
-
-

5,355,038 
1,218,844 

2,785,882 - -
-

- - 596,157 - - -
7,717,262- 1,300,467 

-
49,845 
-

167,962 
- --

5,369,704 
12,244,933 

2,284,095 
-

3,984,450 
- -- -- -

4,311,353 
1,246,963 

-
976,882 - - - - -

- - - - - 710,593 

- - - - 11,719,077 -
- - - - 301,922,000 -- - - - - -
- - - - - -- - - - - -

11,025,000 
10,495,000 
4,499,098 

-
--

--
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

--
-

42,598,982 9,881,783 646,002 6,741,844 320,738,312 19,572,193 
-

- - - - 12 ,675 ,631 ­
- - - - 05,731, 'I'll) ­

- - - - - 279,728 
1,856,510 416,400 - 15,050,323 - 71,080 
2,980,251 - - - - ­
1,614,968 - - - - 105,236,229 

- - 4,773,049 - - ­
- 353,902 - 40.940,464 - 15,244 

(910,041) 9,944,394 - - - 369,908 
5,541,688 10,714,696 4,773,/)49 55,990,787 (23,056,360) 105,972,189 

* 48,140,670 20,596,479 5,419,051 62,732,631 297,681,952 125,544,382 

.t.tement•• 

Account Group 
General Total. 

Long-Tens (He-ar.ndum Only) 
Debt 

--
-
-
-
-
--
-
-
-

422,637,500 
8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 
58,590,000 

454,000 
-

696,311,267 

-
-

-
-
--
-
--
-

696,311,267 

1989 

-
18,339,431 

1,218,844 
596,157 

14,605,240 
12,244,933 

7,515,508 
4,311,353 

976,882 
710,593 

11,719,077 
724,559,500 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 
69,615,000 
10,949,000 
4,499,098 

1988 

779,579 
13 ,095 ,182 

328,699 
128,781 

15,333,867 
9,370,787 

12,169,650 
345,525 

1,076,261 
469,494 

7; 106,972 
680,639,500 

4,500,080 
1,278,000 

202,093,000 
66,300,000 
12,892,000 
5,147,513 

1,096,490,383 1,033,054,890 

12,675,631 12,675,631 

05,731,991) 07,221,335) 

279,728 266,269 
17,394,313 15,935,626 

2,980,251 2,162,383 
106,851,197 92,377,672 

4,773,049 4,786,507 

41,309,610 24,487,401 
9,404,261 16,771,530 

159,936,049 132,241,684 

1,256,426,432 1,165,296,574 

.. ­
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Co-oined Statement of Revenue., Expenditure. and Change. 
in Fund Balance. - All Governmental Fund Type. and Expendable Tru.t Fund. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

Governmental Fund Typea 
Special Debt Capital 

General Projects~ ~ 

Revenue.: 
Taxe., including penalty and intereat *220,733,176 
Intere.t earninga 7,648,576 1,169,537 1,44 7,294 ­
Fine. and forfeit. 4,392,875 
Licen.e. and feea 11,562,149 
Pitt.burgh Zoo receipt. 1,479,290 
Intergovernmental revenue. 4,722,865 35,817,552 - 14,201,046 
Chargea for u.er aervice. - 2,131,374 - ­
Miace11aneoua 1,279,681 4,000 - ­

Total revenue.	 251,818,612 39,122,463 1,447,294 14,201,046 

Expend i tu rea: 
Current operating:
 

General government
 
Publ ic ..fety
 
Publ ic worlta
 
Sanitation
 
Community, recreation and cultural progra..
 

Ul	 Employee benefita 
Clai•• and judgment. 
Miace11aneoua 

Intergovernmental program.
 
Capital projecta
 
Bond i ••uance coat
 
Debt aervice:
 

Principal retirement
 
Intere.t and fi.ca1 charge.
 
Authoritiea debt aub.idie.
 

Total expenditurea 

Exce•• (deficiency) of revenue. over eapenditure. 

Totals 
(Memorandu. Only) 

1989 1988 

Fiduciary
 
Fund TYEe
 
Expenda le
 

.!E.!!..!!. 

2,098,967 

926,111 
484,839 

3,509,917 

220,733,176 
12,364,374 
4,392,875 

11,562,149 
1,479,290 

54,741,463 
3,057,485 
1,768,520 

310,099,332 

23,431,362 
102,271,043 

34,564,548 
14,186,732 
24,275,175 
42,566,932 

646,903 
2,470,154 

20,024,649 
58,460,747 

1,495,986 

15,668,877 
24,444,069 

3,225,815 
367,732,992 

(57,633,660) 

225,303,400 
10,650,905 
4,666,658 

10,610,427 
1,155,505 

50,460,588 
2,270,462 
2,450,379 

307,568,324 

36,832,463 
99,467,174 
39,662,518 
12,662,596 
22,044,322 
47,202,907 

390,907 
846,362 

12,999,896 
48,753 ,230 

17,065,672 
24,444,183 
5,296,219 

367,668,449 

(60,100,125) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSRURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Combined Statement of Revenuea, Expenditurea and Changea
 
in Fund Ralancea - All Governmental Fund Typea and Expendable Truat Funda
 

(Continued)
 

Fiduciary 
Governmental Fund Typea Fund Type Totala 
Special Debt Capital Expendable (Memorandum Only) 

General Projecta 1989 1988~ ~ !!!!!. 

Exceaa (deficiency) of revenuea over expenditurea, 
brought forward * 23,743,677 (8,459,452) (35,446,820) (38,895,203) 1,424,138 (57,633,660) (60,100,125) 

Other financing aourcea (uaea): 
Rond aale proceeda (note 8) - - - 59,199,264 - 59,199,264 7,777,848 
Proceeda from fixed aaaet diapoaitiona - 341,616 - - - 341,616 381,403 
Proceeda from eacrow fund refinancing - - - - - - 207 
Capital leaae ob11lation proceeda (note 8E) 1,691,443 - - - - 1,691,443 4,315,820 
Deferred loan proceeda (note 8G) 426,000 - - - - 426,000 426,000 
Operating tranafera from other funda 12,884,760 4.841.640 35,520.839 - 3,472,765 56,720,004 50,670,837 
Operating tranafera to other funda (41,900,369) 0.990.992) (87,477) (209,166) (5.000,000) (49,188,004) (43.316,837) 

Total other financing aourcea (uaea) (26,898,166) 3.192,264 35.433,362 58.990.098 0,527,235) 69,190.323 20,195,278 

Exce•• <deficiency) of revenue. and other .oureea 
over expenditurea and other uaea 0.154,489) (5,267,188) (13,458) 20.094,895 (103,097) 11,556.663 09,904,847) 

0\ 
Fund balancea, beginning of year 6,391,660 17.445.766 4.786,507 36.733,286 22.819,050 88.236.269 111,434,111 

Equity tranafera between funda (note 11) 2,304,517 0,463,882) - (831,394 ) O,24U - 16,106,405 
Fund balancea. end of year 5,541,688 10.714,696 4,773,049 55,990,787 22,772.712 99.792,932 88,236,269* --- ­
See accompanyinl notea to general purpoae financial atatementa. 

~ 
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CITY OF PITTS8URGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures snd
 
Changes in Fund 8alsnces - 8udget and Actual Data cn the 8udgetary
 

8asis - General and Special Revenue Fund Types
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989
 

Revenues: 
Taxes, including penalty and interest 
Interest earnings 
Fines and forfeits 
Licenses and fees 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Water and Sewer Authority reimbursements 

and transfers 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Hi see11aneous 
Retirement Benefit Trust Fund reimbursement 

Total revenues 

Budget 
8S amended 

$ 221,295,487 
6,000,000 
5,550,000 

11,380,000 
1,350,000 

28,992,954 
6,764,564 
4,800,000 
5,000,000 

291,133,005 

General Fund 

Actual 

221,837,758 
7,603,132 
4,416,539 

11,192,420 
1,464,915 

28,232,781 
6,808,393 
4,298,746 
5,000,000 

290,854,684 

Variance -
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

542,271 
1,603,132 

(1,133 ,461) 
(187,580) 

114,915 

(760,173) 
43,829 

(50I,254) 

(278,321) 

Special Revenue Funds (Federal 
Revenue Sharing Funds Only){note I-E) 

Variance -
favorable 

Budget Actual (unfavorable) 

...... 

Expenditures: 
Current operating: 

General government 22,574,254 
Public safety 103,290,293 
Public works 41,066,695 
Sanitation 15,259,909 
Water 15,943,693 
Community, recreation and cultural programs 21,268,421 
Employee benefits 50,922,907 
Claims and judgments 2,030,000 
Miscellaneous 13,670,621 

Debt Service: 
Principal retirements 9,875,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 19,219,742 
Stadium Authority subsidy 3,663,279 
Public Auditorium Authority subsidy 1,284,190 

Total expenditures 320,069,004 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (28,935,999) 
Fund balances - budgetary basis, beginning of year 28,935,999 
Fund balances - budgetary basis, end of year $ -
Adjustments to generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) basis (note 2): 
Cumulative difference between budgetary basis 

and GAAP basis, beginning of year 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of rev"nues 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of expenditur"s 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of other 

financing sources 
Fund balances - GAAP basis, end of year 

19,308,790 
97,843,971 
37 ,121,099 
13,800,338 
14,053,116 
19,933,174 
47,969,456 

595,505 
11,582,131 

9,875,000 
19,219,742 
3,145,269 
1,261,722 

295,709,313 

(4,854,629) 
34,413,057 
29,558,428 

(28,02I,396) 
407,730 

3,964,414 

(367,488) 
$ 5,541,688 

3,265,464 
5,446,322 
3,9',5,596 
1,459,571 
1,890,577 
1,335,247 
2,953,451 
1,434,495 
2,088,490 

518,010 
22,468 

24,359,691 

24,081,370 
5,477 ,058 

29,558,428 

5,000 

5,000 
-- ­
(5,OOO) 
11 ,434 
6,434 

11,434 

11,434 
-- ­

(11,434) 
11,434 

(6,434) 

(6,434) 

(6,434) 

(6,434) 

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements. 



00 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Combined Statement of Revenuea, Expenses and Changel in 
Accumulated Deficit/Fund Balancel - Enterprise and Penlion Trult Fundi 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

Proprietary Fiduciory Totah 
Fund Type Fund Type (Hemorandum Only) 

Penlion 
Enterprile 1988!!!!.!!. .!2!! 

Operlting revenuea: 
Water chargea * 37,385,000 37,385,000 35,125,000 
Rentah 2,853,008 2,853,008 2,358,319 
Heda11 iona 1,320,000 1,320,000 1,320,000 
Stadium bond aervice charges 685,410 685,410 683,969 
Conce•• ione 1,393,104 1,393,104 861,009 
Contributionl 45,536,330 45,536,330 52,598,987 
Investment income 6,013 ,114 6,013,114 2,977,702 
Hiace11aneoul 443,772 990 444,762 501,786 

Total operating revenuel 44,080,294 51,550,434 95,630,728 96,426,772 

Operating expenlel: 
Benefit paymenta 35,860,388 35,860,388 33,219,139 
Salariea and wagea 10,245,301 10,245,301 11,077 ,940 
Utilitiea 4,070,792 4,070,792 3,545,153 
Allocation of City indirect expenlel 2,753,000 2,753,000 2,580,000 
Depreciation and amortization 2,780,472 2,780,472 2,518,333 
Purification chemicala 1,076,000 1,076,000 1,092,000 
Paymenta to non-City water agenciel 2,334,000 2,334,000 2,317,000 
Replirl and .. intenance 1,152,727 1,152,727 1,070,463 
Inlurance 365,791 365,791 718,379 
Hateriala, auppliea and rentall 881,000 881,000 738,000 
Administrative and other operating expenlel 1,336,813 1,041,688 2,378,501 2,057 ,550 
Hiace llaneoul 1,113,000 1,113,000 1,566,000 

Total operating expense I 28,108,896 36,902,076 65,010,972 62,499,957 

Operating income 15,971,398 14,648,358 30,619,756 33,926,815 

Nonoperating expenlel: 
Net interelt expenle 4,638,251 4,638,251 5,165,547 
Other expenle, principally amortization of 

bond iSlue COlt I 1,068,000 1,068,000 
Loal on dilpolal of alletl 1,243,803 1,243,803 986,000 

Total nonoperating expensel 6,950,054 6,950,054 6,151,547 

Income before operlting tranlferl 9,021,344 14,648,358 23,669,702 27,775,268 
Operating tranaferl to other fundi (7,532,000) (7,532,000) (7,294,000) 
Net income 1,489,344 14,648,358 16,137,702 20,481,268 

Accumulated deficit/fund balance, beginning of year C37,221,335) 68,551,119 31,329,784 27,554,921 
Equity tranlfer between fundi (note 11) (16,706,405) 
Accumullted deficit/fund balance, end of year *C35,731,9911 83,199,477 47,467,486 31,329,784 

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ..
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I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I December 31, 1989 

I 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

I The City of Pittsburgh (the City) was incorporated on July 20, 1816, and 

I 
chartered as a home-rule municipality on January 5, 1976. The City 
operates under a strong mayor form of government and provides the 
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety 

I 
(police, fire and emergency medical services), sanitation, culture and 
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general 
administrative services. 

I 
The major accounting principles and practices followed by the City are 

presented below to assist the reader in evaluating the financial 
statements and the accompanying notes. 

A. Determination of the Reporting Entity

I The activities, organizations and functions of government 
("potential component units") that are included in these financial 
statements are those for which the City exercises oversight

I responsibility, those with which special financing relationships 
exist and those whose scope of service benefits primarily the City 
or its residents. 

I Manifestations of oversight responsibility include: 

I Selection of the governing authority, 

Designation of management, 

I Ability to significantly influence operations, and 

Accountability for fiscal matters. 

I 
I The scope of public service criterion considers whether the 

activity of the potential component unit is for the benefit of 
the City and/or its residents and whether the activity is 
conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is 
generally available to City residents. 

I (Continued) 

I 
I 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
The following summarizes which entities have been 
included/excluded as component units of the City of Pittsburgh, Ifor reporting purposes, based upon the aforementioned criteria: 

Entities Included as Component Units I 
The Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 

Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority I 
City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leasing Authority 

IEmployee Pension Plans 

Entities Excluded as Component Units I 
Pittsburgh City School District 

Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh I 
The Public AUditorium Authority of Pittsburah and Allegheny
 
County
 I 
Urban Redevelopment Authori ty of Pi ttsburgh (URA) 

Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh I 
• Allegheny County Sanitary Authority (Alcosan) 

ISpecific information on the nature of the various potential 
component units and a description of how the aforementioned 
criteria have been considered in determining whether or not to 
include or exclude such units in the City's financial statements I 
are provided in the following paragraphs. 

Ithe Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 'Stadium Authority) 

The Stadium Authority was established to construct and operate 
Three Rivers Stadium. The Stadium Authority is administered by a Ifive-member board, all of whom are appointed by the Mayor. 

The principal revenue sources are from rentals of the stadium and 
parking facUi ties and from service charges on event tickets. The I 
City has guaranteed the subsidization of operating deficits and 
the debt service requirements of the outstanding debt of the 
Stadium Authority. I 

(Continued) 

I 
11 I 



I
 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I 

The Stadium Authority has been included as a component unit of the 
City's reporting entity because of the City's significant 
accountability for fiscal matters. The Stadium Authority operates 
on a fiscal year ending March 31. Its operations are included in 
the enterprise funds.

I 
I 

Under an agreement dated June 24, 1982, the Stadium Authority and 
the Three Rivers Management Corporation (Three Rivers) as well as 
the Pittsburgh Athletic Company, Inc. and the Pittsburgh Stee1ers 

I 
Sports, Inc. amended a basic agreement, management lease, baseball 
lease and football lease (Stadium agreement) whereby the Stadium 
Authority assumed all the rights and responsibilities under the 
Stadium agreements effective January 1, 1982. 

I Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority (Water and Sewer Authority) 

I 
The Water and Sewer Authority was incorporated in February 1984 
under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 of the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania. The Water and Sewer Authority entered into a 

I 
lease and management agreement effective May 1, 1984 (agreement) 
with the City. Under the terms of the agreement, the Water and 
Sewer Authority assumed responsibility for the operation and 
rehabilitation of the water and sewer system of the City. 

I 
The agreement provides for the Water and Sewer Authority to lease 
the water and sewer system (system) from the City and then 

I 
contract the City to operate and maintain the system for a 50-year 
period. Under the agreement, the Water and Sewer Authority 
reimburses the City for the direct operating costs of, and 
indirect costs allocated to, the system; debt service on existing 
City debt related to the system prior to the effective date of the 
agreement; and an "additional payment" in consideration of the

I lease which is determined by the City each year. The "additional 

I 
payment" is limited to a maximum of $3,787,000 in 1989 increased 
by a specified price index thereafter. The "additional payment" 
also includes up to 600 million gallons of water to be provided to 

I 
the City annually at no charge. The agreement also requires the 
Water and Sewer Authority to reimburse the City for payments to 
other non-City water agencies representing the differences in 
rates between the City and those agencies related to water 
provided to City customers by those non-City water agencies. 
Payments under the agreement, with the exception of direct costs,

I are subordinated to the Water and Sewer Authority's obligations 
under its trust indenture. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

The Water and Sewer Authority accounts for the 
operatina lease. Costs related to the management 
the lease are recognized as operatina expenses by 
Sewer Authori ty based upon bUlinas by the 

I 
lease as an
 

agreement and
 Ithe Water and 
Ci ty. Future 

obligations of the Water and Sewer Authority in consideration of 
the lease are the payment of the City's debt and the "additional I 
payment," which are treated as operatina transfers. The 
"additional payment" can vary annually based on the City's 
discretion subject to certain limitations discussed above. For I 
1990, the "additional payment" has been budgeted at $4,050,000. 
Debt service obligations of the City which are to be funded by the 
Water and Sewer Authority are as follows: 

Year ended December 31. 

1990
 
1991
 
1992
 
1993
 
1994
 
Later years
 
Total minimum future lease payments 

I 
Amount 

$	 3,610,000 I 
3,338,000 
3,228,000 
3,145,000 I
3,051,000 

34.051.000 
$ 50,423,000 I 

The City is also responsible to hold the Water and Sewer Authority 
harmless against any claims or judgments against the City or the I 
Water and Sewer Authority related to the operation and maintenance 
of the system. The operations of the Water and Sewer Authority 
are included in the enterprise funds. I 
City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leasina Authority (Equipment Leasing 
Authority) I 
The Equipment Leasina Authority was incorporated in 1980 to serve 
as a financina vehicle for the acquisition of equipment. The 
Equipment Leasina Authority has outstandina $18,950,000 of I
Equipment Revenue Bonds and has entered into lease agreements with 
the Ci ty pursuant to which the City has agreed to make annual 
rental payments to the Equipment Leasina Authority of varyina Iamounts to cover debt service on the bonds. 

The Equipment Leasina Authority is a component unit of the City'S 
reportina entity. Its operations are included in the special I 
revenue funds, the debt service funds and the general lona-term 
debt account group. 

I(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I Employee Pension Plans 

I 
The City has three defined benefit pension plans, the Municipal 
Pension Fund (Municipal), the Policemen's Relief and Pension Fund 
(Police), and the Firemen's Relief and Pension Fund (Fire), which 
together cover substantially all City employees. A comprehensive 
board oversees funding and investing activities. The Board 
consists of 7 members, 4 of whom are appointed by the Mayor.

I 
I 

Plan benefit matters are administered by separate boards which 
include, for all plans, the president of the City Council and the 
Ci ty Controller and, additionally, in the case of the Municipal 
and Fire plans, the Mayor. 

I The pension plans have been included as component units of the 
City'S reporting entity because of the City'S oversight 
responsibility and its accountability for fiscal matters. 

I Pittsburgh City School District 

I 
The School District exists to provide educational services to the 
residents of the City of Pittsburgh. The School Board consists of 
nine elected members who have oversight responsibility. School 
Board members may not serve on the Board if employed by the City. 

I The City Treasurer and City Controller serve as the School 
District Treasurer and Controller, respectively. The Treasurer 
and Controller positions are not Board positions. In case of

I vacancies on the Board, replacements are appointed by the Mayor. 
The School District has separate taxing authority though 
collections are received by the City Treasurer. 

I The School District has not been included as a component unit of 
the City'S reporting entity because of the limited oversight 
responsibility, designation of management and limited

I accountability for fiscal matters. 

Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh (Parking Authority) 

I 
I The Parking Authority was created for the purpose of acquiring, 

developing and maintaining a coordinated system of public parking 
facilities. The Parking Authority is administered by a 
five-member board, all of whom are appointed by the Mayor. 

The Parking Authority obtains its revenue from user charges and

I from street parking meter revenues. Under an agreement between 
the Parking Authority and the City, street parking revenues are 
allocated 52% to the Parking Authority and 48% to the City. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Rotes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
Management of the Parking Authority is not designated by the City 
nor does the City have the ability to significantly influence its I 
operations. The City does not subsidize the operations of the 
Parking Authori ty and does not guarantee its debt. The scope of 
pUblic service, while generally available to City residents, is Inot exclusively for their benefit. 

The Parking Authority has not been included as a component unit of 
the City's reporting entity because of the lack of significant I 
oversight responsibility and the lack of accountability for fiscal 
matters. The Parking Authority operates on a fiscal year ending 
September 30. I 
The Public Auditorium Authority of Pittsburgh and Allegheny County 

(Auditorium Authority) I 
The City of Pittsburgh and the County of Allegheny (the County) 
jointly created the Auditorium Authority to build and operate the 
Pittsburgh Civic Arena. In 1981, the operation of the Civic Arena I 
was turned over to a privately owned company under terms of a 
lease agreement with an initial term of 50 years. Annual rentals 
under the lease are equal to the annual debt service requirements I on outstanding Auditorium Authority bonds. 

In addition, the Department of General Services of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has financed and constructed the I 
David L. Lawrence Convention Center. The Convention Center has 
been leased to the Auditorium Authority for a term of 30 years at 
a nominal rent. The City and County have agreed to pay one-half I 
of any operating deficits. 

The Auditorium Authority is administered by a five-member board. IThe City and County each appoint two board members. One member is 
appointed jointly. The City does not designate the management of 
the Auditorium Authority nor does the City have the ability to 
significantly influence operations. The scope of public service, I 
while generally available to City residents, is not exclusively 
for their benefit. I 
The Auditorium Authority has not been included as a component unit 
of the Ci ty' s reporting enti ty because of the limi ted oversight 
responsibility and limited accountability for fiscal matters. The IAuditorium Authority operates on a fiscal year ending June 30. 

Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh (URA) I 
The UU administers federal, state and local grants designed to 
provide a broad range of urban renewal and maintenance programs 
within the City of Pittsburgh. I 

(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

I 
I The URA is administered by a five-member board, all of whom are 

appointed by the Mayor. Management of the URA is not designated 
by the City nor does the City have the ability to significantly 
influence operations. The City does not subsidize the operations

I of the ORA and does not guarantee its debt service. 

I 
The URA has not been included as a component lmit of the City'S 
reporting entity because there is a lack of significant oversight 
responsibility and there is no accolmtability for fiscal matters. 

I Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh (Housing Authority) 

The Housing Authority was established to acquire and maintain 
properties for the purpose of providing low-income housing for

I residents of the City. Rental charges and subsidies from Federal 
Housing and Urban Development grants are the principal revenue 
sources. 

I 
I The Housing Authority is administered by a seven-member board, all 

of whom are appointed by the Mayor. City Council approves five of 
the seven appointments. The Ci ty does not designate the 
management of the Housing Authori ty nor does the City have the 

I 
ability to significantly influence operations. The City does not 
subsidize the operations of the Housing Authority and does not 
guarantee its debt service. 

I 
The Housing Authority has not been included as a component unit of 
the City's reporting entity because, although it operates within 
the City's boundaries, there is a lack of significant oversight 
responsibility and there is no accountability for fiscal matters. 

I Allegheny County Sanitary Authority (Alcosan) 

I 
I 

Alcosan provides sewage treatment services to the City and 
numerous other municipalities in the County of Allegheny. 
Operating expenses and debt service are not guaranteed by the 
City. The City, however, is charged for its usage of the sewage 
facilities at the normal rates applicable to other customers. In 
addition, delinquent sewage charges on properties in the City are 
purchased by the General Fund for collection because the City has 
the power to file liens on such properties. 

I 
I Alcosan has not been included as a component unit of the Ci ty' s 

reporting entity because there is no- oversight responsibility and 
no significant accountability for fiscal matters. 

(Continued) 
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Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

The following table presents unaudited summary financial data based on the most recent 
published financial statements of the entities that are not part of the City's reporting 
entity: 

(In thousands> 
City School Parking Auditorium Housing 

District Authority Authority URA Authority Alcosan 

Assets 

Cash and temporary investments $ 77 ,640 13,143 1,204 6,720 1,112 7,964 
Investments, at cost which 

approximates market 24,589 4,832 49,856 9,554 
Property, plant and equipment, 

net 270,046 60,561 73,468 3,883 240,042 95,750 
Cost of projects in process 283,304 3,511 
Contributions, loans and 

accounts receivable 75,001 4,675 35,313 47,987 2,115 8,820 
.... ..... Other 133.408 h8..U 169 574 s...ll.J 92.742 

$ 556,095 107,850 114,986 392,324 257,946 208,787 

Liabilities and Fund Equity 

Bonds and notes payable 
Other liabilities 
Fund equity 

119,869 
45,890 

390.336 

65,115 
4,420 

38.315 

31,235 
1,728 

82,023 

24,494 
15,595 

352.235 

138,558 
6,902 

112.486 

133,138 
4,774 

70.875 
$ 556,095 107,850 114,986 392,324 257,946 208,787 

Revenues 
Expenses 
Other changes in fund equity 

$ 

274,784 
(267,422) 

(] ,732) 

(370)-

23,649 
(18,140) 
(8,434) 

(2,925) 

6,934 
(7,660) 

(726)-

691 
(4,586) 
40.565 
36,670 

16,720 
(40,522) 
18.151 
(5,651) 

25,919 
(32,734) 

(6,815) 

Fiscal period ended 12-31-88 9-30-89 6-30-89 12-31-88 12-31-88 12-31-88 

(Continued) 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I B. Fund Accounting Structure 

The City' s accounting structure embraces "fund" accounting which 
is the standard for governmental accounting as promuigated by the

I Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

I 
I 

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a 
self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other financial 
resources, together with all related liabilities and residual 
equities or fund balances, and changes therein, which are 
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accordance with special 
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The fund accounting 
structure for the City is as follows: 

I Governmental Fund Types 

I General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of 
the City. It is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

I Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account 

I 
for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

I
 
Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account
 
for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
 
general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.
 

Capital Pro1ects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to

I account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those 
financed by the enterprise funds). 

I Proprietary Fund Type 

I Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for 
operations of the Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh and 

I 
the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority. These are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises­
where the intent is that the costs of managing the operations of 
the stadium complex and providing water to the general public are 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Rotes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
Fiduciary Fund Types ITrust and Agency Funds - Trust and agency flmds are used to
 
aCCOlmt for assets held by the Ci ty in a trustee capaci ty or as
 
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
 
governments and/or other flmds. These include expendable trust,
 I 
pension trust and agency flmds. Pension trust flmds are
 
accolmted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary flmds
 
since capital maintenance is the primary measurement focus.
 I
Expendable trust flmds are accolmted for in essentially the same
 
manner as governmental flmds. Agency flmds are custodial in
 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
 Iof results of operations. 

Account Group I 
General Lona-term Debt - This aCCOlmt group is established to
 
aCCOlmt for all long-term obligations of the City, including
 
general obligation bonds, capital lease obligations, accrued
 Ilmflmded pension expense, and the noncurrent portion of accrued
 
compensated absences and workers' compensation expense.
 

IC. Measurement Focus 

All governmental flmds and expendable trust flmds are accolmted
 
for on a spending or "financial flow" measurement focus.
 I 
Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are
 
generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund
 
balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of
 I"available spendable resources." Governmental flmd operating
 
statements present increases (revenues and other financing
 
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in
 
net current assets. Accordingly, these operating statements
 I 
present a sUIIIIDary of sources and uses of "available spendable
 
resources" during the year. Expenditure recognition for
 
governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented
 I
by noncurrent liabilities. 

Proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accolmted for on a I"capital maintenance" measurement focus. Accordingly, all assets
 
and all liabilities are included on their balance sheets, and
 
reported fund equity provides an indication of the economic net
 
worth of the fund. Operating statements for proprietary funds
 I 
and pension trust funds report increases (revenues) and decreases
 
(expenses) in total economic net worth.
 

I(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
D. Basis of Accounting 

I 
I Governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds 

use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when they become susceptible to accrual, that is, both 
measurable and available. Available means expected to be 
collected wi thin the next two months for property taxes and the 
next 12 months for other revenues. Revenues not considered

I available are recorded as deferred revenues. 

I 
I 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovern­
mental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the 
numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, 
however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, 
expenditures must be made for the specific purpose or project 
before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues 

I 
are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the 
other, receipts are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of 
expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply 

I 
with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are 
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the 
susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

Revenues which have been treated as susceptible to accrual 
include certain property taxes, federal and state revenues and

I interest earnings. All other revenues are recognized when 
received in cash. 

I Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred if it is 

I 
expected to be paid within the next 12 months, except for 
interest and principle on general long-term obligations which is 
recorded when due. Liabilities expected to be paid after 12 
months are recorded in the general long-term debt account group. 

The financial statements of the proprietary fund type and the

I pension trust funds are presented on the accrual basis of 

I 
accounting. Under this method of accounting, all revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred without regard to receipt or payment of 
cash. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH. PENNSYLVANIA I 

Botes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
E.	 Budgetaa Data I 

1.	 General Budget Policies - As required by the Home Rule
 
Charter. the City follows these procedures in establishing
 
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
 I 
a.	 On the second Monday of November preceding the
 

fiscal year. the Mayor presents to Ci ty Council an
 
operating budget and a capital budget for the
 I 
succeeding fiscal year. 

b.	 Public hearings are conducted to obtain the advice Iof other officials and citizens as part of the 
preparation of both budgets. 

Ic.	 Before the beginning of the fiscal year. City
 
Council adopts. by resolution. both budgets.
 

d.	 The adoption of the operating and capital budgets I 
constitutes an appropriation or setting apart of 
funds from general resources of the City for 
purposes set forth in the budgets. I 

e.	 City Council may amend. by resolution. the operating
 
budget within five weeks after the beginning of the
 
fiscal year but not thereafter except with the
 I 
approval of the Mayor. The capital bUdget may. by 
resolution. be amended by Council at any time. I

f.	 City Council at all times may. by resolution.
 
transfer funds from one account to another if the
 
total budget amount is not exceeded. Bo revision to
 Ithe budget may be made without Ci ty Council 
approval. The operating budget shall. in any event. 
remain balanced at all times. I 

g.	 The capital budget is based on a proposed six-year
 
capital program which must be updated each year and
 
submitted to Council by the Mayor at least 30 days
 Iprior to the day the operating bUdget is submitted. 

(Continued) I
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I	 CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
h.	 Formal budgetary integration is employed as a 

management control device for the general fund, 

I 
I Federal Revenue Sharing - special revenue fund and 

the capital projects funds. Formal budgetary 
integration is not employed for the debt service 
funds since effective budgetary control is 
alternatively achieved through general obligation 
bond indenture provisions, nor for the other special

I revenue funds since control is achieved through 

I 
grant provisions or legislative action. Budgets for 
the capital projects funds are prepared on a project 
basis. 

I 
i. All budgets are prepared and controlled on a line 

item basis. For financial statement purposes, 
budgets have been summarized on a departmental basis. 

j. Appropriations lapse at year end. City Council can,

I however, authorize, by resolution, the carryover of 
appropriations to the following year. 

I	 k. Budget figures are as amended by City Council with 
Mayoral approval. All budget amendments represent 
line item transfers between expenditure accounts. 

I	 2. Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase 

I 
orders, contracts and other commitments for future expenditures 
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriation, is employed in all governmental funds of the 

I 
City. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as 
reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities. 

3. Budget Basis of Accounting Budgets for the general and 
federal revenue sharing - special revenue fund are adopted on a

I cash basis. Budgets are not adopted for other special revenue 

I 
funds. Accordingly, the special revenue funds column on the 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary Basis 

I 
includes only the federal revenue sharing fund. Encumbrances 
for purchase commitments are treated as restrictions of 
available cash and not as expenditures. Budgets in capital 
projects funds are also adopted on a cash basis, except that 
budgets for each project are adopted on a project basis which 
may encompass a period longer than one year. Accordingly,

I budgetary comparisons for capital projects funds have been 

I 
omitted from the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the 
Budgetary Basis. 

I
 
(Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Botes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
F. Investments IInvestments in all funds are carried at cost, except for the
 

agency fund assets of the deferred compensation plan which are
 
carried at market. Investments consist of direct obligations of
 
the U.S. government, money market funds, corporate and other
 I 
obligations, guaranteed investments, money market trust funds and
 
repurchase agreements and are recorded at cost or amortized cost
 
plus accrued interest, which approximates market value.
 I 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers
 
all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
 Ithree months or less to be cash equivalents. 

G. Inventories I 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out)
 
or market. Inventories in the general fund, consisting of
 
expendable supplies held for consumption and materials necessary
 I
for the maintenance and repair of the City's water purification
 
and distribution system, are accounted for using the purchase
 
method. General fund inventories are equally offset by a fund
 Ibalance reserve to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is
 
not available for future expenditure.
 

IH. Other Assets 

Other assets consist of premium deposits with insurance companies
 
which are available to reduce future employee benefit expenses.
 I 

I. Fixed Assets 

IRecords wi th respect to the historical cost of general fixed 
assets and a comprehensive inventory of such assets are not
 
available. Consequently, a general fixed asset group of accounts
 
is not included in the accompanying financial statements.
 I 
Generally accepted accounting principles prescribe that
 
expendi tures for general fixed assets be accounted for in the
 Igeneral fixed asset account group and, accordingly, the failure
 
to properly record such assets is not in accordance with
 
generally accepted accounting principles.
 I 

(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
The stadium complex and utility plant are stated at cost and

I include all repairs that materially extend the life of the 

I 
property. All ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to 
current operations. The balance sheet does not include any value 
for land conveyed by the URA to the Stadium Authority. 

I 
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful 
life of the utility plant is 40 years. 

J. Enterprise Fund Bond Discount and Issue Costs 

I The Water and Sewer Authority amortizes bond discounts over the 

I 
lives of the related bonds using the interest method of 
amortization. The unamortized portion is reflected on the 
balance sheet as a reduction from the related bonds payable. 

The Water and Sewer Authority defers and amortizes bond issue 
costs, including remarketing fees, over the lives of the related

I bonds. The Stadium Authority amortizes costs associated with the 
issuance of long-term debt using the straight-line method over 
the respective terms of the debt. 

I K. Compensated Absences 

I The City provides for compensated absences in the following 
manner: 

Fourteen sick days are accumulated for those employees not

I eligible for the insured sick leave plan or those who have 

I 
elected not to participate in the plan. Since accumulated 
sick leave does not vest 1Dltil retirement it qualifies as 
severance pay and, therefore, does not meet the recognition 
criteria of Statement of Financial Acco1Dlting Standards No. 
43 and has not been accrued by the City. 

I Personal days are accumulated for all employees, except 

I 
firefighters. Under the plan, authorized time off, in the 
form of personal days, is accumulated in accordance with the 
cri teria established in contracts with each of the City's 

I 
nine bargaining 1Dlits and the City's policy for its non1Dlion 
employees. Employees can accumulate up to nine days (twelve 
days for police and emergency medical services personnel) 
before the City reimburses them for the additional days. 
The City has accrued an am01Dlt for accumulated personal 
days, because the days vest as they are earned and the

I vested am01Dlt is reasonably estimable. 

(Continued)
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
Vacation pay earned varies with job classification and years
 
of service and is accrued as a current liability in the
 
general fund to the extent that it will be liquidated with
 I 
expendable available resources. 

IL. Pensions 

Pension cost for accounting purposes is computed in accordance
 
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion Number 8 (APB #8).
 IReported expense is equal to normal cost plus amortization of
 
unfunded liabilities over 30 years, less state pension aid under
 
Act 205 (see note 7). Periodic pension cost is recognized as an
 
expendi ture in the general fund to the extent of City
 I 
contributions with any difference reported as an addition to or
 
deduction from accrued pension costs in the general long-term debt
 
account group.
 I 

M. Deferred Compensation Plan IThe City of Pittsburgh offers its employees a deferred
 
compensation plan sponsored by the Allegheny League of
 
Municipali ties created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
 
Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits
 I 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until
 
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.
 I 
All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property
 
and rights purchased with those amounts and all income
 
attributable to those amounts, property or rights are solely the
 I 
property and rights of the City, without being restricted to the
 
provisions of benefits under the plan, subject only to the claims
 
of the City'S general creditors until paid or made available to
 I 
the employee or other beneficiary. Participants' rights under the
 
plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Ci ty in an
 
amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for
 Ieach participant. 

It is the opinion of the City'S legal counsel that the City has no
 
liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due
 I 
care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The
 
City believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to
 
satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future.
 I 
The assets and liabilities of the deferred compensation plan are
 
accounted for in the City's agency funds.
 I 

(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I N. Self-insurance Arrangements 

The City is self-insured for purposes of workers' compensation 
benefits. Provisions are recorded in the general fund for 

I benefits estimated to be payable from available spendable 

I 
financial resources. Amounts not payable currently are reported 
in the general long-term debt account group; as noncurrent amounts 
mature, they are liquidated from general fund resources. 

I 
In order to qualify for and maintain self-insurance status, the 
City must comply with certain Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
requirements. The requirements for 1989 are as follows: 

I 
Maintain an irrevocable trust fund. The City'S 
contribution to the fund is determined annually in 
negotiations with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Labor. 

I Satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

I Establish liability reserves based upon expected future 
payouts for all claims outstanding one year or more at the 
end of any fiscal year. 

I Presently, the irrevocable trust may be used only in the event of 
default by the City under the self-insurance regulations. 
Accordingly, the fund balance in the Expendable Trust has been

I reserved in the accompanying financial statements. 

I 
The Water and Sewer Authority is self-insured for general 
liability coverage. Under the terms of the July 1986 indenture, 
the Water and Sewer Authority established a self-insured escrow 
fund to cover potential general liability claims. 

I O. Enterprise Fund Operating Transfers 

I 
Annual operating transfers are made from the enterprise fund to 
the general fund to assist in servicing the City's general 
obligation indebtedness and to provide a fair return on the City'S 
general fixed assets dedicated to water operations. 

I P. Comparative Data 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in

I the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an 

I 
understanding of changes in the City's financial position and 
operations. Certain 1988 amounts have been reclassified to 
conform to classifications adopted in 1989. 

I
 
(Continued) 
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Notes 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

to General Purpose Financial Statements 
I 
I 

Q. Total Columns on Combined Statements 

Total columns on the Combined Statements are captioned Memorandum 
Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate 
financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present 
financial position, results of operations or changes in financial 
position in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Such data are not comparable to a consolidation since 
interfund eliminations have not been made in their aggregation. 

(Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I
 Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements
 

I (2) Reconciliation of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) Basis to Budgetary 
Basis 

The budget of the City is prepared differently from generally accepted accounting

I principles. The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

I 
Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary Basis - General and Special 
Revenue Fund Types is reconciled below to the Combined Statement of Revenues, 
Expendi tures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and 
Expendable Trust Funds presented on a GAAP basis: 

I Special 
General Revenue 
lunsl Fund 

I 

Deficiency of revenues and other sourcesI over expenditures and other uses ­
GAAP basis $ (3,154,489) (11,434) 

Revenues: 

I 
Increase in revenues susceptible to 

accrual, recorded when received in 
cash on the budgetary basis (407,730) 

Reimbursements budgeted as revenues and 

I 
recognized as a reduction of expenditures 
on a GAAP basis 22,178,525 

Operating transfers budgeted as revenues 14,960,760 
Equity transfers not budgeted 2.304.517 

Total 39,036,072

I Expenditures:
 
Decrease in expenditures recognized on
 

a GAAP basis but recorded when paid in


I cash on the budgetary basis (3,964,414)
 

I
 
Reimbursements budgeted as revenues and
 

recognized as a reduction of expenditures
 
on a GAAP basis (22,178,525)
 

Capitalized lease not budgeted 1,691,443 
Operating transfers budgeted as expenditures (43.182.882) 

I
 Total (67,634,378)
 

I
 
Other financing (sources) uses:
 

Capital lease obligation proceeds not budgeted (1,691,443)
 
Operating transfers budgeted as revenues and
 

expenditures 28,222,121 

I 
Increase in other financing sources 

susceptible to accrual, but recorded when 
received in cash on the budgetary basis 367.488 

Total 26,898,166 

I Deficiency of revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses - budgetary basis $ (4,854,629) (11,434) 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements I 
I(3) Cash and Investments 

The City's cash and investments are subject to varying investment policies
 
and custodial arrangements. Responsibility for cash and investments as
 I
of December 31, 1989, is as follows: 

Current: 
City Treasurer (most 

governmental, expendable 
trust and agency funds) 

Equipment Leasing Authority 
(special revenue and debt 
service funds) 

Enterprise Funds: 
Water and Sewer Authority 
Stadium Authority 

Pension Trust Funds 
Deferred Compensation Plan 

Total current 

Restricted: 
Enterprise Funds: 

Water and Sewer Authority 
Stadium Authority 

Total restricted 

Total 

$ 77,383,840 

2,265,577 

11,095,000 
2,159,273 

20,264,510 
313.703 

113,481,903 

36,000 
503.640 
539,640 

$ 114,021,543 

Investments 

46,162,608 

7,637,207 

7,896,000 

62,344,451 
11.931.229 

135,971,495 

125,371,000 
660.955 

126,031,955 

262,003,450 

Bonds Ipayable
 
escrow
 

(note 8)
 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

230,980,000 I 
230,980,000 I 
230,980,000 

IThe City and its component unit's cash deposits, certificates of deposit 
and time accounts at year end were entirely covered by federal depository 
insurance or were fully collateralized in the City's name. Certificates 
of deposit and time accounts are fully collateralized pursuant to I 
agreements with substantially all participating financial institutions to 
pledge assets on a pooled basis to secure public deposits according to Act 
No. 72 of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, August 6, 1971. I 
Investments of the City and its component units are classified into three 
categories to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year 
end. Category 1 includes investments insured or registered or securities I 
held by a City entity or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investments with the securities held 
by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. I
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with the 
securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent 
but not in the City'S name. I 

(Continued) 
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I	 CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
A. Governmental Funds. Expendable Trust Funds and Agency Funds 

I	 Cash balances available for investment by most City funds are
 
maintained in pooled bank and investment accounts to improve
 
investment opportunities. Income from investment of pooled cash
 

I 

I is recorded in the general fund. Certain unrestricted and
 
restricted cash and short-term investment balances in the
 
accompanying combined balance sheet represent the undivided
 
interest of each respective fund in the pooled accounts.
 

Under the Pittsburgh City Code, the Director of Finance is
 
responsible for the overall management of the investment
I program. Policies established by the Director of Finance permit
 
the City to invest in the following:
 

I 1. U.S. Treasury Securities (bills, notes, bonds). 

2. Obligations of specific agencies of the federal 
government where principal and interest is guaranteed by
I the U.S. government.
 

3.	 Fully insured or collateralized certificates of depositI	 at cODDDercial banks and savings and loan associations 
accepted as depository institutions under the Pittsburgh 
City Code.

I 4.	 Money market mutual funds authorized by City Council 
whose portfolio consists of government securities issued 
by the U.S. government and that are fully guaranteed asI	 to principal and interest. 

5.	 Local government investment pools and or trusts as
I	 approved by the state legislature or City Council from 

time to time • 

.1	 6. Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury 
Securities and marked to market. In order to 
participate in the repurchase agreement market, a 
deposi tory must execute a master repurchase agreementI	 contract with the City. 

To ensure adequate liquidity, at least 10% but no more than 40% of the

I portfolio shall be in overnight repurchase agreements, money market 
funds or other secure and liquid forms of acceptable investments. 
Unless specifically matched to a cash flow, at least 20% of the 
portfolio shall mature within 91 days with the maximum maturity of anyI	 investment to be no longer than one year froll the date of purchase 
unless specifically approved in writing by the Director of Finance. 

I	 (Continued) 
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I 
CITY	 OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Rotes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
The carrying amount, market value and category of risk for investments is 

as follows: I 
Carrying Market 

amount value Category 

I 
A. City	 Treasurer (most governmental, 

expendable	 trust and agency funds):
 
Repurchase agreements $ 15,371,372 15,371,372 2
 
U.S.	 government and agency I 

obligations 15,469,363 16,275,219 3 
Money market trust funds 3,831,877 3,831,877 RIA 
Money market mutual funds 6,975,000 6,975,000 RIA I 
Corporate and other obligations 4.514.996 4.740.723 2 

Total	 46,162,608 47,194,191 I
B.	 Equipment Leasing Authority: 

Repurchase agreements 271,709 271,709 3 
U.S.	 government and agency 

obligations 1,003,844 1,002,000 3 I 
Money	 market trust funds 6.361.654 6.361.654 RIA
 

Total 7,637,207 7,635,363
 I 
C. Enterprise Funds: 

Water and Sewer Authority: 
Repurchase agreements 1,515,000 1,515,000 2 
Commercial paper 5,750,000 5,750,000 2 I 
Money market mutual funds 631.000 631.000 RIA 

Total	 7,896,000 7,896,000 I' 
Enterprise Funds Restricted:
 

Water and Sewer Authority:
 
Repurchase agreements 1,982,000 1,982,000 2
 I
U.S.	 government and agency 

obligations 6,134,000 6,149,000 2 
Commercial paper 7,859,000 7,859,000 2 
State and local governments 1,000,000 1,000,000 RIA I 
Money market mutual funds 25,896,000 25,896,000 RIA 
Guaranteed investment 82.500.000 82.500.000 RIA 

Total	 125,371,000 125,386,000 I 
(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I 

Carrying Market 
amount value Category 

I 
Water and Sewer Authority:
 

Bonds Payable Escrow:
 
U.S. government and agency 

I 
obligations $ 230.980.000 230.980.000 2 

Total 230,980,000 230,980,000 

Stadium Authority: 

I 
U.S. government and agency 

obligations 660.955 660.955 3 

Total	 660,955 660,955 

I D. Pension Trust: 
Repurchase agreements 2,552,000 2,552,000 3 
U.S.	 government and agency 

obligations 25,855,010 26,555,955 2 
Money market trust 14,571,710 15,475,972 2I	 Money market mutual funds 19.365.731 19.095.503 2 

Total 62,344,451 63,679,430

I	 E. Deferred Compensation: 

I 
Money market trust funds 11.931.229 11.931.229 NIA 

Total 11,931,229 11,931,229 

Grand total	 $ 492,983,450 495,363,168 

I	 (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
(4)	 Trusteed and Restricted Funds 

Certain restricted accounts have been created by the Stadium Authority as I 
a result of the governing trust indentures and by Board of Directors' 
resolutions. The 
March 31, 1989: 

Clearing 
Lounge box financing 
Lounge box notes 
Medallion pledge 
Parking routine 

maintenance 
Parking nonroutine 

maintenance 
Maintenance 

Total 

The	 money received 

following is a summary of restricted assets as of 

I 
Accounts Other 

Investments receivable assets I 
$ 542,199 724,413 1,266,612
 

4,210 4,210
 
115,740 216,896 332,636
 I 

9,289 3,016 343,338	 355,643 

9,440	 9,440 I 
93,848	 45,456 139,304 

400.503	 64·371 464.874 I$ 503,640 660,955 679,501 728,623 2,572,719 

from the sale of 15 medallions consists of annual I 
payments from corporations of $100,000 for ten years beginning in 1982
 
for the right to place advertising on the medallions. Included in
 
restricted accounts receivable is $343,000 representing the pro-rata
 
revenue portion of the 1989 annual medallion payments.
 I 

Also included in restricted accounts receivable is $274,000 which 
represents the unpaid balance for the purchase or remodeling of lounge I 
boxes. The purchasers are to make quarterly payments ranging from
 
$2,800 to $3,800 per box to the Stadium Authority for a period of seven
 
years. Proceeds from these receivables are pledged on the Authority's
 Inotes payable. No allowance for uncollectibles is considered necessary. 

(5)	 Real Estate Taxes 

The City has the power 
real estate within 
Board of Property 
Allegheny pursuant 

I 
to levy and collect ad valorem taxes on all taxable 
its boundaries. Real estate is assessed by the 

Assessment, Appeals and Review of the County of I 
to	 the terms of the General County Assessment Law 

and the Second Class County Assessment Law, which require property to 
be assessed at actual market value. In practice, property is assessed Iby the Board at 25%· of fair market value. All real property in the 
County is required to be reassessed annually. 

(Continued) I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I 

Two tax levies, based on separate rates for land and buildings, are made 
annually on January 1 and collected by the City. Taxes are payable 

I' 
quarterly, but if paid in the month of January, a 2% discount is 
permitted. If a quarterly payment is not made by the last day of the 
calendar quarter, a penalty of 1/2% per month, plus interest at the 
rate of 1% per month, is imposed on the balance of the tax due for the 
year. 

I Properties with delinquent taxes or sewage charges are subject to 

I 
Treasurer's sales, which are held with respect to properties for which 
taxes or charges are delinquent one year or more. Delinquent taxes may 
be liened up to three years after the levy date. 

I 
The City provides programs of tax abatement for new construction and 

rehabilitation of residential and commercial/industrial properties 
pursuant to Commonwealth legislative authority. The residential 

I 
abatement program provides for the abatement of taxes for a period of 
three years on the increased assessment attributable to new 
construction or rehabilitation up to an annually indexed average 

I 
housing construction cost ceiling. The City makes tax abatements 
available for commercial/industrial properties for the assessment 
increase attributable to new construction or rehabilitation. The 
ceiling on the value of construction eligible for abatement under this 
program is $50,000. The abatement is available for a period of three 
years from the date of issuance of the building permit for the

I construction or rehabilitation. 

(6) Property. Plant and Equipment 

I A summary of enterprise fund property, plant and equipment at December 31, 
1989, follows: 

I Stadium complex 
Utili ty plant 
Nonutility plant

I Construction in progress (utility plant) 
Total 

I
 Less: accumulated depreciation
 
Net 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I 36 

$ 52,576,990 
60,638,000 
1,409,000 

40.091.000
 
154,714,990
 

24.524.620 
$ 130,190,370 

(Continued) 



I 
CITY OF PITrSBURGB, PERNSYLVABIA I

Rotes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
(7) Pension Plans 

A. In accordance with the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and I 
Recovery Act of 1984 (Act 205 or Recovery Act), the City 
established the Comprehensive Municipal Pension Trust Fund 
Board (Comprehensive Board) in August 1987. The Board's Ipurpose is to oversee the activities of the City's pension 
plans and to assume responsibility for receiving and investing 
the City's pension assets. The Recovery Act made changes to 
the actuarial reporting requirements for municipalities, set I 
forth minimum municipal pension contributions and established 
the framework for customized recovery programs for 
municipalities with large unfunded pension liabilities. I
Additionally, the Recovery Act changed the basis for 
distributing state pension aid, which has translated into a 
five-fold increase in the amount of state pension aid received Iby the City. 

In 1988, the City opted out of the 15-year phase-in optional
 
remedy since its pension contributions were already exceeding
 I 
the amount required by Act 205. In its place, the City adopted 
a planned schedule of pension contributions, which begins in 
1989 at a level of $12 million and increases by $500,000 every Iother year or the City can fund the actuaria11y determined 
minimum municipal obligation, as defined, whichever is less. 

IThe City has three defined benefit pension plans (Municipal,
 
Police and Fire) which are administered by pension boards, the
 
majori ty of whose members are elected by the employees. The
 
Police and the Fire plans cover all employees of the Bureau of
 I 
Police and the Bureau of Fire, respectively. Each full-time 
employee not covered under either the Police or Fire plan is 
required to join the Municipal plan after serving a 90-day Iprobationary period. 

Employees in the Police and Fire plans are required to contribute
 
to the plans at the rate of 6% of their monthly salary, plus
 I 
$1.00 per month. Employees in the Municipal plan contribute 4% 
or 5% of their monthly salary depending on their date of hire. I

Commonwealth contributions are determined under Act 205. The City
 
is eligible for the mu:imum remedies available under Act 205.
 
To qualify, the City is required to fund an amount equal to
 Inormal cost and the amortization payment required to eliminate 
the unfunded liabili ty over a 40-year period less any member 
contributions. I 

(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 

I 

The Recovery Act contains both mandatory and optional remedies for 
municipalities to design a program for dealing with theirI unfunded pension liability. The mandatory remedies implemented 
by the City were the development and adoption of an 
administrative improvement plan for its pension plans, the 
establishment of lower cost pension plans for new hires, and 
the aggregation of all of the City's pension assets for 
investment purposes under the guidance of a new oversight board

I (the "Comprehensive Municipal Pension Trust Fund Board"). The 
"Comprehensive Board," which is comprised of members from the 
individual pension boards, manages the investment of all 

I pension assets and reviews/approves the monthly drawdowns to 
the individual pension plans for payment of benefits and 

I
 
administrative expenses.
 
selected by the City were:
 
liabili ty, level percent
 
allowing the City to 
contributions.

I 
I 

The "pension benefit obligation," 
value of accumulated plan 
standardized disclosure measure 
benefits, adjusted for the 

The optional remedies initially 
40-year amortization of the unfunded 

amortization, and a IS-year phase-in 
gradually increase its pension 

which is the actuarial present 
benefits shown below, is a 
of the present value of pension 
effects 

I and make comparisons among public employee retirement systems. 
The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used 
to determine contributions to the Plans. 

I Significant assumptions underlying the actuarial computations 
include mortality, termination, vesting, marital status and 
retirement estimates based upon tables provided by the actuary,

I as well as the following: 

Municipal Police 

I Assumed rate of return on investments % 7.5 7.5 7.5

Assumed salary increases % 5.5 5.5 5.5I - - ­
(Continued)
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increases, estimated to be payable in the 
employee service to date. The measure

I users assess, on a going concern basis, 
the Plans for which contributions are 
made in accumulating sufficient assets to 

of projected salary 
future as a result of 
is intended to help 

the funding status of 
made, assess progress 

pay benefits when due 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements
 

Future maturities of bond principal on Water and Sewer Authority indebtedness at December 31, 1989, is as follows: 

PrinciDal 

~ 
W 

Water and Sewer Authority Revenue Bonds: 
Three revenue bond issues due on demand: two 

with fixed rates of 5.125% and 6.0% through 
September 1, 1991, and one with rates 
ranging from 5.9% to 7.625%: 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995-1999 
2000-2004 
2005-2009 
2010-2014 
2015-2016 

Subtotals 

Less escrow funds 
Less discount 

Totals 

$ 

$ 

800,000 
900,000 

5,400,000 
7,145,000 
7,600,000 
8,175,000 

51,095,000 
75,520,000 

111,965,000 
166,245,000 

62.645.000 

497,490,000 

(230,106,000) 
(14.477.000) 

252,907,000 

Outstanding 
at beginning 

of year 

800,000 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

800,000 

-
(749,000) 

51,000-

Bonds paid 
and discount 
amortized 

during the year 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(874,000) 
-

(874,000) 

Bonds issued and 
deposits made to 

escrow funds 
during the year 

900,000 
5,400,000 
7,145,000 
7,600,000 
8,175,000 

51,095,000 
75,520,000 

111,965,000 
166,245,000 

62.645.000 

496,690,000 

(230,980,000) 
(13.728.000) 
251,982,000 

Outstanding 
at end of 
~ 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
A. Council and Public Election General Obligation Bonds 

I 
I In September 1989, the City issued $60,000,000 of General 

Obligation Bonds, Series of 1989. The issue consisted of 
$42,710,000 of serial bonds, bearing interest at varying fixed 
rates ranging from 5.75% to 7% with maturities through 
September 1, 2010; and, $17,290,000 of term bonds bearing interest 
at 7.125% maturing on September 1, 2014. The bond proceeds are to

I be used to provide funds for capital projects. 

I 
The net proceeds, after the Bond Underwriter's discount of 
$800,736, was $59,199,264. Total bond issuance costs, excluding 

I 
discount, were $1,495,986. The bond issuance cost includes 
$778,729 of interest expense on the $26,200,000 bond anticipation 
notes the Ci ty issued prior to the receipt of bond proceeds in 
order to finance projects in progress during 1989. 

I 
The Series of 1989 bonds are subject to federal arbitrage 
regulations, however, no Habili ty for potential arbitrage rebate 

I 
has been included in the financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 1989, due to the immateriality of the estimated 
rebate liability. 

I 
In 1983, 1985 and 1986, the City defeased certain general 
obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in 
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service 

I 
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, nei ther the assets held 
in trust nor the refunded bonds appear in the accompanying 
financial statements. At December 31, 1989, bonds outstanding of 
$14,720,000, $174,475,000 and $160,605,000 refunded by the 1983, 
1985 and 1986 issues, respectively, are considered defeased. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
B. Auditorium Authority 

IIn 1981, Civic Arena Corporation (CAC) , a wholly owned subsidiary
 
of The Edward J. DeBartolo Corporation, assumed operation of the
 
Civic Arena under a sublease (the Sublease). In 1985, under an
 
amendment to the Sublease, CAC was given a reduction of $212,500
 I 
in each of its semi-annual rental payments. Under the Supporting
 
Agreement between the City, the Auditorium Authority and the
 
County, the City and County are obligated to make up this
 Ireduction in the debt service requirements on the Auditorium
 
Authori ty' sAudi torium Bonds, Series C, presently outstanding in
 
the amount of $13,450,000. The Series C Auditorium Bonds are not
 
included in the City's general long-term debt account group while
 I 
Series D and E are included. In event of default, the bonds are
 
guaranteed by the City and Allegheny County. The initial term of
 
the Sublease is for 50 years, with five consecutive renewal
 I
periods of 10 years each. However, upon the occurrence of certain
 
events, CAC has the option to terminate the Sublease upon six
 
months' written notice to the Auditorium Authority, including
 Icertain events relating to the feasibility of the economic
 
operation of the Civic Arena.
 

IC. Stadium Authority 

In April 1986, the Stadium Authority issued $21,000,000 of
 
Guaranteed Funding Bonds, Series 1986. The bonds bear interest at
 Ivarying fixed rates increasing with the length of maturity from
 
5.6% to 7.625%.
 

IThe proceeds of the bond issue were used to repay the City for 
grants owed and for expected future grants and for addi tional
 
operating capital.
 I 
The City has guaranteed full payment of the principal, interest 
and call premiums, if any, of the issue and has pledged its full 
faith, credit and taxing power for the payment of the obligation Iunder a Guarantee Agreement with the Stadium Authority. 

On December 18, 1985, an irrevocable trust was established to
 
defease the 1971 Series A and 1982 Series B Bonds. Neither the
 I 
trust, which has sufficient amount on 
A and B Bonds, nor the obligation 
Authority'S balance sheet. 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
At March 31, 1989, defeased bonds outstanding of $34,960,000

I refunded by the Guaranteed Stadium Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 
are considered defeased. 

I Under the new indenture, the Stadium Authority has pledged as 
collateral for the Series 1985 Bonds all rental receipts and 
certain other receipts along wi th grants received from the Ci ty. 

I All previous indentures were voided. 

The notes payable represent bank borrowings made to finance the 
construction of 22 new lounge boxes and the remodeling of 15

I previously constructed. Medallion revenue amounting to $500,000 

I 
and all amounts receivable from purchases and remodeling of the 
lounge boxes have been assigned to the bank for payment of the 
notes. Interest on the notes payable is 8.75% per annum; 
principal and interest payments are due annually through 1989. 

D. Water and Sewer Authority

I 
I 

In April 1985, the Water and Sewer Authori ty issued $100,000,000 
face value Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, Series of 1985 
(1985 Bonds). Upon issuance of the 1985 Bonds, net proceeds of 

I 
$88,604,000 were deposited in an escrow account and together with 
the interest earnings of the escrow account were used to redeem 
the outstanding 1984 Bonds on April 1, 1987 and to pay the 
interest due on the 1985 Bonds during the escrow period. As of 
April 1, 1987, the Water and Sewer Authority elected a 
multi-annual mode for interest, fixing the rate on these bonds at

I 5.125% through the next tender date, September 1, 1991. 

I 
In June 1986, the Water and Sewer Authority issued $134,700,000 
face value Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, Series of 1986 
(June 1986 Bonds) and in July 1986, $264,090,000 face value 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 1986 (July 1986 Bonds). 

I The June 1986 Bonds were issued in order to implement the second 
phase of the Water and Sewer Authority's capital improvements 
program. The bonds may bear interest at various modes including

I daily, weekly, semiannual, annual, multiannual or fixed rate. As 
of June 1, 1988, a multiannual mode was elected providing for 6.3% 
interest through September 1, 1991. 

I (Continued) 
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Notes 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

to General Purpose Financial Statements 
I 
I 

F. Other Long-term Obligations 

The following is a summary of transactions affecting 
long-term obligations of the City during 1989: 

Balance at January 1, 1989 
Additions 
Reductions 
Balance at December 31, 1989 

Less amounts funded
 
currently in the
 
General Fund
 

Long-term portion at
 
December 31, 1989
 

G. Deferred Loan 

The terms of repayment to 

Accrued 
pension 
costs 

$ 202,093,000 
2,694,000 

204,787,000 

$ 204,787,000 

Accrued 
workers' 

compensation 

66,300,000 
20,062,542 
16,747.542 

69,615,000 

11.025.000 

58,590,000 

all other I 
Accrued Icompensated
 
absences
 

I12,892,000 
10,949,000 
12.892.000
 
10,949,000
 I
 

I
10.495.000 

454,000 I 

Municipali ties for the deferred loan are not fixed and 
determinable. The loan plus 8% simple interest becomes payable 
in the event that the major league baseball franchise owned by 
Pittsburgh Associates is sold or if Pittsburgh Associates uses I 
any profits generated from the operation of the major league 
baseball franchise to repay its economic development loan from 
the URA (see note l5(D». I 

(9) Operating Leases IA.	 The Stadium Authority has operating leases with Pittsburgh
 
Associates and Pittsburgh Steelers Sports, Inc. Under terms of
 
the basic agreement and amendments to the basic agreement dated
 
January 1, 1982, these operating leases provide for guaranteed
 I 
payments of approximately $1,160,000 annually for a 40-year 
period which began April 1, 1971. Payments from leases to the 
Authority are secured by escrow deposits from Three Rivers I 
Management Corporation and Alco Parking Corporation of 
$1,000,000 and $500,000, respectively. 

I(Continued) 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I 

On March 23, 1989, the Authori ty entered into an agreement wi th 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to lease certain property near 

I 
Three Rivers Stadium to be used for public parking. The term 
of the lease is ten years renewable for four additional 
ten-year periods. Payments during the first year amounted to 
$57,200, adjusting thereafter according to market conditions. 

B. The Water and Sewer Authority operates from leased space. Rental

I expense was $23,000 and $22,000 in 1989 and 1988, 
respectively. Future minimum rental commitments are as follows: 

I Year ended December 31 

I 
1990 $ 48,000 
1991 48,000 
1992 48,000 
1993 48,000 
1994 48,000 

I 
I C. The City is obligated under a three-year, noncancelable, operating 

lease for office space used for the location and operation of 
the City's computer systems. The lease also includes a renewal 
option to extend the lease for addi tional years up to seven 
years. 

I The City has exercised its option to extend the lease one 
additional year through April 1, 1991, with a further option of 
an additional two years. 

I 
I The minimum monthly rental payments are subject to escalation for 

the City's pro rata share of any increases in real estate taxes 
and operating expenses over those incurred in the base year of 
the lease agreement. Such increases will not exceed 
established monthly maximum cap rates. 

I The minimum future rental payments required by the lease are as 
follows: 

I Year ended December 31 

I 
1990 $ 223,500 
1991 223,500 
1992 74,500 

I 
D. Total rent expense under this operating lease for the year ended 

December 31, 1989, was $186,275. 

I 
The City also has several operating leases for copier rental and 

various other small office machines. 

(Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

(10) Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances 

At December 31, 1989, the individual 
payable balances were as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Equipment Leasing Authority 
CETA/JTPA 
Housing 
Civic and Cultural 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Other 

Agency Funds:
 
Employee benefits
 
Payroll withholding
 
Deposit
 
Parking meters
 

(11) Equity Transfers Between Funds 

I
 
I
fund inter fund receivable and 

Receivables 

$ 3,955,564 

184,095 
70,171 

1,205,678 

2,100,000 

$ 7,515,508 

Payab1es I 
2,284,095 I 
1,172,783 
2,574,667 

237,000 I
 
I
 

500,123
 
745,323
 I1.517 

7,515,508 

I 
Pursuant to authorization by City Council, seventeen unencumbered project I

balances in various funds totaling $2,304,517 (summarized below) were
 
transferred to the General Fund, In each case, the original purpose
 
of the project had been satisfied or terminated.
 I 

Transferred from 

Special Revenue Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Trust and Agency Fund 

Transferred to General Fund 

(12) Contributed Capital 

Amount 

$ 1,463,882 I 
837,394
 

3,241
 
$ 2,304,517 I
 

I
 
Contributed capital of $5,277,000 in the Water and Sewer Authority 

represents the net accounts receivable balance transferred from the 
Water Fund on May 1, 1984, the inception of Water and Sewer Authority I 
operations. 

Wi th respect to the Stadium Authority, contributed capital is comprised Iof $7,398,631 of capital contributed in support of construction of
 
additional seating, new lounge boxes and handicapped facilities,
 

(Continued) I 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Botes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
(13) Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

I The City maintains Enterprise Funds which provide water services and 
operate the Stadium complex. Segment information for the year ended 
December 31, 1989, is as follows (in thousands):I
 

I
 
I
 

Operating revenues
 
Depreciation and amortization
 

I
 
Operating income
 
Bet income (loss)
 
Property, plant and equipment:
 

Additions 

I 
Total assets 
Bonds and other long-term liabilities 

net of escrowed funds and discounts 

I 
Equity (deficit): 

Contributed capital 
Accumulated deficit 

(14) Fund Deficits 

Water and 
Sewer 

Authority 
Stadium 

Authority Totals 

$ 37,385 
2,356 

14,888 
5,542 

6,695 
1,492 
1,083 

(4,053) 

44,080 
3,848 

15,971 
1,489 

20,126 
258,655 

3,209 
39,027 

23,335 
297,682 

251,982 49,940 301,922 

5,277 
(5,846) 

7,399 
(29,886) 

12,676 
(35,732) 

I The deficit of the Water and Sewer Authority is expected to be eliminated 

I 
through the rate setting process. The deficit of the Stadium 
Authority will be subsidized through future general fund 
appropriations. Bo other individual funds had deficits in 1989. 

(15) Related Party Transactions 

I A. Under the terms of agreements dated July 1, 1965 and April 1, 
1986, the City of Pittsburgh agreed to make annual grants to 
the Stadium Authority for the excess of the aggregate cost of

I operation and maintenance of the Stadium complex and debt 

I 
service on the Stadium bonds over the total funds available to 
the Stadium Authority for those purposes. The Stadium 
Authority is required to repay these grants to the extent that 

I 
its revenues are not required for operation and maintenance of 
the Stadium complex and debt service on the Stadium bonds. 
For the year ended March 31, 1989, grants from the City of 
Pittsburgh were approximately $4.3 million. 

(Continued)
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Rotes	 to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
B.	 In 1986, the City disbursed $20,000,000 to the URA, which is not 

a component unit of the City, to fund its Business I
Reinvestment Fund. Under the terms of a cooperation agreement
 
between the two, these funds were then used to make a loan to
 
a private coalition organized to acquire the assets of the
 
Pittsburgh Athletic Company, Inc. (owner of the Pittsburgh
 I 
Pirates). The URA is obligated to repay the $20,000,000 if
 
funds become available through the occurrence of certain
 
events, principally the sale of the Pittsburgh Pirates major
 I 
league baseball franchise. 

C. The URA, acting as the City's agent under a 1981 cooperation Iagreement, made two loans from prior years' Urban
 
Redevelopment Action Grant (UDAG) funds to a Development
 
Company to assist in the construction of Parkway Center Mall
 
in the Ci ty' s West End - which was completed in November
 I 
1982. Reither of these loans is reflected as a receivable in
 
the City's financial statements due to the contingent nature
 
of repayments and unspecified terms as of December 31, 1989.
 I 

The first loan of $2,000,000 was made under a loan agreement
 
dated October 30, 1981, as amended April 22, 1982 and April 2,
 
1984, the purpose of which was to assist in the construction
 I 
costs of the mall; repayments are contingent upon positive
 
cash flows and other factors. The loan, which has a 27 year
 
term with varying interest rates, is to be repaid to the City
 I 
by the URA at the City's discretion. The balance of the
 
receivable from the URA, should the City continue to exercise
 
its option, at December 31, 1989, was $1,811,979.
 I 

The second loan of $6,819,972, with additional available
 
borrowings of $354,028, was made under a loan agreement dated
 
April 2, 1984, for the construction of highway ramps to
 I 
connect the mall with 1-279. Repayment of the loan is to
 
commence upon the transfer of the ramps to PenDot. As of
 
December 31, 1989, the ramps had not been transferred. The
 I 
term of the loan is also 27 years with an unspecified interest
 
rate. The loan agreement calls for interest to be accrued
 
during the period between the disbursement of funds and the
 Icommencing of the loan repayment. As of December 31, 
payments had been received on this loan. 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 

I 
I 

D. The City has entered into an intergovernmental cooperation 
agreement with the County of Allegheny, Pennsylvania, setting 
forth their mutual understandings regarding financial 
assistance to be provided by the County in connection with the 
City's efforts to retain the Pittsburgh Pirates major league 
baseball franchise. In connection with this agreement, the 
County has agreed to make annual grants through the year 2011 
to the Authority for Improvements in Municipalities (AIM) in

I an amount equal to (a) all County real estate taxes generated 

I 
I 

by virtue of the taxability of Three Rivers Stadium and (b) 
$426,000. AIM has agreed to make annual grants equal to the 
amounts described in (a) above and deferred loans of $426,000 
to the City for projects and facilities located within the 
City (see note 8G). The sale of the Stadium to private owners 
has not taken place. Accordingly, no amounts were due under 
(a) above. 

I 
E. The City is responsible for the billings and collections of the 

Water and Sewer Authority's water charges. At December 31, 

I 
1989, the reserve for uncollectible accounts and City water 
usage is $15,992,558 which includes $8,120,000 recorded prior 
to the inception of the Authority. 

(16) Stadium Management Agreement 

I In conjunction with the Stadium agreements dated January 1, 1982, the 

I 
Authority agreed to manage and maintain Three Rivers Stadium. The 
Authority, in turn, has engaged Spectacor Management (Spectacor) to 
act as the managing body and agent of the Stadium complex subject to 
the provisions of the Stadium agreements and the Public Auditorium 
Authorities Law. 

I Under the terms of the agreement with Spectacor, the Authority was 
required to pay a management fee of $216,000 for the period 
February 1, 1985 through January 31, 1986, increasing to $234,000 for

I the year ending January 31, 1987, and $250,000 for the succeeding 

I 
l2-month period. Spectacor has exercised an option to extend this 
agreement for an additional three-year period. The management fee for 
the first year of extension is $262,500. In addition to the monthly 
management fee, Spectacor receives a percentage of adjusted gross 
income from extra events held at the Stadium other than major league 
baseball games and National Football League games. 

I (Continued) 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

INotes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
(17) Commitments 

In 1984, the Water and Sewer Authority adopted a seven-year Capital I
Improvements Program budgeted to cost approximately $194 million. As 
of December 31, 1989, $100 million has been spent, and an additional 
$22 million has been committed for noncancelable construction Icontracts. 

In September 1986, the Water and Sewer Authority entered into an
 
agreement with Pennsylvania American Water Company (PAWC) (formerly
 I 
West Penn Water Company) to provide four to twelve million gallons of 
water per day at normal bulk rates for resale to PAWC customers. 
Sales of water under this agreement commenced in April 1988 for an Iinitial term of ten years. Sales to PAWC amounted to $2,304,000 in 
1989. 

I(18) Contingencies 

There is presently pending before the City Treasurer a series of refunds
 
in which an insurance company has challenged the imposition by the
 I 
City of its Business Privilege Tax upon gross receipts derived from 
the investment by the insurance company in income-producing real 
estate within the City. The City Solicitor believes that there are Imeritorious defenses available to the City and that potential refunds, 
if any, will not have a materially adverse effect on the City's 
financial position. I 

The City has been named as a defendant in a number of other lawsuits
 
arising in the ordinary course of its operations against which the
 
City is not insured. In the opinion of the City Solicitor, adequate
 I
provision has been made in the general fund for such lawsuits. 

In addition, the City receives federal and state grants under a number of Iprograms. The expenditures of the City under such programs are 
subject to audit and possible disallowance. Historically, such audits 
have not resulted in significant disallowances of program costs, and 
City management believes that audits of existing programs will not I 
result in significant liability to the City. 

On May 15, 1986, the Stadium Authori ty entered into an amendment to the I1973 Concession Services Agreement whereby the concessionaire has 
agreed to expend approximately $1,500,000 for the purchase and 
installation of leasehold improvements, trade fixtures and food 
service equipment in the stadium. In the event that the Agreement is I 
terminated or reaches expiration (1998), the Stadium Authority may be 
liable to the concessionaire for the concessionaire's unamortized 
balance of the improvements. The concessionaire's improvements are to I 
be amortized ratably over 15 years adjusted for certain levels of 
attendance. 

I 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Pension Trust Fund Revenues by Source 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(in thousands) 

VI 
0\ 

Fiscal 
year(*) 

1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988 

1989 

Participants' 
contributions 

$ 6,522 

6,594 

6,854 

6,853 

6,514 

7,253 

8,060 

Employer 
contributions 

14,797 

19,305 

12,627 

16,595 

16,394 

17,176 

9,099 

State 
contributions 

4,095 

6,106 

8,684 

12,228 

16,624 

28,170 

28,371 

Investment 
income 

1,046 

2,012 

4,139 

4,519 

6,038 

2,978 

6,013 

Miscellaneous 

2 

28 

28 

28 

22 

28 

1 

Total 

26,462 

34,045 

32,332 

40,223 

45,592 

55,605 

51,550 

* Information for years prior to 1983 is not available. 



I
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Pension Trust Fund Expenses by Type I
 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 

(in thousands) 

I
 
Fees for 

Fiscal Benefit Administrative professional 
year(*) payments expenses services Total I
 

1983 $ 22,593 264 46 22,903
 I

1984 24,867 309 180 25,356
 

1985 26,711 315 143 27,169
 I
 
1986 28,406 338 283 29,027
 

1987 30,871 379 331 31,581
 I
 
1988 33,219 416 241 33,876
 

I
1989 35,860 748 294 36,902
 

* Information for years prior to 1983 is not available.
 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Analysis of Pension Funding Progress
 

Last Seven Fiscal Years
 
(in thousands) 

Net assets Pension Unfunded pension Annual 
Fiscal available benefit Percentage benefit covered 
year(·> for benefi ts obligation funded obligation payroll 

1983 $ 24,470 $ 360,446 % 6.8 $ 335,976 $ 125,000 

1984 33,159 362,830 9.1 329,671 130,500 

1985 38,322 418,039 9.2 379,717 132,900 

1986 48,740 432,420 11.3 383,680 132,700 

1987 61,960 453,065 13.7 391,105 127,600 

VI 
00	 1988 68,551 469,366 14.6 400,815 135,000 

1989 83,199 492,339 16.9 409,140 124,544 

• Information for years prior to 1983 is not available. 

Unfunded pension benefit 
obligation as a percentage 
of annual covered payroll 

% 268.8 

252.6 

285.7 

289.1 

306.5 

296.9 

328.5 
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I GENERAL FUND 

I 
I 

To account for resources traditionally associated with governments, which are 
not required to be accounted for in another fund. The fund receives revenue 
from a variety of sources. 
operations of the City. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

These revenues are used to finance the general 
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I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

GENERAL FUND 

Balance Sheet I 
December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) I 
Assets 1989 I 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 31,046,685 34,027,798 IReceivables: 
Real estate taxes (net of allowance for
 

uncollectible accounts of $16,368,725 in 1989
 
and $13,012,249 in 1988) 4,812,521 5,362,157
 I 

Sewage charges (net of allowance for
 
uncollectible accounts of $3,575,000 in 1989
 
and $3,440,000 in 1988) 1,090,128 1,052,290
 I

Personal property taxes (net of allowance for
 
uncollectible accounts of $275,000 in 1989 and
 
$269,000 in 1988) 27,700 19,019
 IAccrued interest 59,322 403,056 

Other 2,167,212 1,158,241 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,001,287 1,896,770 
Due from other funds 3,955,564 5,547,728 I 
Inventories, at cost 2.980.251 2.162.383 

Total assets $ 48,140,670 51,629,442 ILiabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabili ties: 
Accounts payable 5,601,645 5,341,375 I 
Accrued liabilities 7,717,262 7,853,977
 
Due to other funds 2,284,095 3,936,656
 
Due to other governments 976,882 1,076,261
 I 
Accrued workers' compensation 11,025,000 10,500,000
 
Accrued compensated absences 10,495,000 11,382,000
 
Deferred revenue, principally real estate taxes 4.499.098 5.147.513
 I

Total liabilities 42,598,982 45,237,782 

Fund balance: 
Reserved: I 

Encumbrances
 
Inventories
 
Employee benefits
 I

Unreserved:
 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures
 
Undesignated
 ITotal fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance I 
61 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

I Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I 
Revenues:


I Taxes, including penalty and interest
 

I
 
Interest and dividends
 
Fines and forfeits
 
Licenses and fees
 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Miscellaneous

I Total revenues 

I 
Expenditures:
 

Current operating:
 

I 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Sanitation 
Community, recreation and cultural programs 
Employee benefits

I Claims and judgments 

I 
Miscellaneous 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 

I 
Interest and fiscal changes 
Stadium Authority subsidy 
Public Auditorium Authority subsidy 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

l.2.ll llll 

$ 220,733,176 225,303,400 
7,648,576 6,832,810 
4,392,875 4,666,658 

11,562,149 10,564,605 
1,479,290 1,155,505 
4,722,865 3,417,510 
1. 279.681 1.855.155 

251,818,612 253,795,643 

15,646,592 18,744,088 
100,663,810 96,652,207 
26,692,698 31,012,891 
14,186,732 12,613,068 
18,848,251 18,207,873 
42,566,932 47,202,907 

646,903 390,907 
2,377,023 826,388 

2,538,877 1,158,588 
681,302 379,516 

2,145,269 3,965,828 
1.080.546 1.330.391 

228,074,935 232,484,652 

23,743,677 21,310,991

I 
(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND I
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
 
Changes in Fund Balance
 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Capital lease obligation proceeds 
Deferred loan proceeds 
Operating transfers from enterprise funds 
Operating transfers from special revenue funds 
Operating transfers from trust funds 
Operating transfers to special revenue funds 
Operating transfers to debt service funds 
Operating transfers to trust funds 

Total other financing uses 

Deficiency of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Equity transfer from Special Revenue Funds 
Equity transfer from Capital Projects Funds 
Equity transfer from (to) Trust Funds 
Fund balance, end of year 

$ 1,691,443 
426,000 

7,532,000 
352,760 

5,000,000 
(4,754,164) 

(33,748,287) 
<3.397.918) 

(26,898,166) 

(3,154,489) 

6,391,660 
1,463,882 

837,394 
3.241 

5,541,688 

63
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4,315,820
 
426,000
 I
7,294,000
 
232,111
 

I
(5,151,142) 
(31,627,822) 

I
(24,511,033) 

(3,200,042) I
 
9,791,702 I
 

(200.000)
 
6,391,660
 I
 

I
 
I
 
I
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I
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

GENERAL FUND
 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Data on the Budgetary Basis 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

1989 
Variance 

Budget favorable 1988 
as amended Actual (unfavorable) actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes, including p~nalty and interest $ 221,295,487 221,837,758 542,271 226,625,751 
Interest earnings 6,000,000 7,603,132 1,603,132 7,333,692 . 
Fines and forfeits 5,550,000 4,416,539 0,133,461) 4,546,309 
Licenses and fees 11,380,000 11,192,420 087,580) 10,421,239 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Water and Sewer Authority reimbursements and transfers 

1,350,000 
28,992,954 

1,464,915 
28,232,781 

114,915 
(760,173) 

1,155,505 
29,244,496 

Intergovernmental revenues 6,764,564 6,808,393 43,829 5,935,235 
Hiscellaneous 4,800,000 4,298,746 (501,254) 7,223,662 
Retirement Benefits Trust Fund reimbursement 5,000,000 5,000,000 -

Total revenues 291,133,005 290,854,684 (278,321) 292,485,889 

0­
J> 

Expenditures: 
Current operating: 

General government 22,574,254 19,308,790 3,265,464 17,534,757 
Pub lie sa fety 103,290,293 97,843,971 5,446,322 92,315,778 
Publ ic works 41,066,695 37,121,099 3,945,596 33,709,564 
Sanitation 15,259,909 13,800,338 1,459,571 11,197,926 
Water 15,943,693 14,053,116 1,890,577 13,771,879 
Community, recreation and cultural programs 21,268,421 19,933,174 1,335,247 19,248,706 
Employee benefits 50,922,907 47,969,456 2,953,451 47,253,298 
Claims and judgments 2,030,000 595,505 1,434,495 387,907 
Hiscellaneous 13,670,621 11,582,131 2,088,490 10,768,558 

Debt Service: 
Principal retirements 9,875,000 9,875,000 - 9,740,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 19,219,742 19,219,742 - 20,785,000 
Stadium Authority subsidy 3,663,279 3,145,269 518,010 3,965,828 
Public Auditorium Authority subsidy 1,284,190 1,261,722 22,468 1,287,568 

Total expenditures 320,069,004 295,709,313 24,359,691 281,966,769 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (28,935,999) (4,854,629) 24,081,370 10,519,120 
Fund balance - budgetary basis, beginning of year 28,935,999 34,413,057 5,477,058 23,893,937 
Fund balance - budgetary basis, end of year $ - 29,558,428 29,558,428 34,413,057 

Adjustments to generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) basis: 

Cumulative difference between budgetary basis 
and GAAP basis, beginning of year (28,021,396) 04,102,236) 

Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of revenues 407,730 (4,083,330) 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of expenditures 3,96/0,414 (9,300,838) 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of other 

financing sources (367,488) (534,993) 
Fund balance - GAAP bas is, f'nd of year $ 5,541,688 6,391,660 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues 
Compared with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

Budget 
as amended 

1989 

Revenues 

Taxes: 
Real estate $ 98,590,000 96,129,763 
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,000,000 1,100,510 
Hercantile 6,400,000 6,501,590 
Amusement 7,600,000 7,564,001 
Personal property 2,200,000 2,339,850 
Earned income 50,300,000 54,066,987 
Deed transfer 7,040,000 7,236,575 
Parking 15,700,000 14,210,345 
Occupation privilege 3,000,000 3,071,911 
Business privilege 25,300,000 25,284,730 
Institution and service privilege 325,000 216,423 
Public service 220,000 213,554 
Cable franchise privilege 260,487 352,494 
Penalties and interest 3,360,000 3,549,025 

Total taxes, including penalty and 
interest 221,295,487 221,837,758 

Variance 
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

(2,460,237 ) 
100,510 
101,590 
05,999) 
139,850 

3,766,987 
196,575 

0,489,655) 
71,911 

05,270) 
(108,577 ) 

(6,446) 
92,007 

189,025 

542,271 

1988 
revenues 

95,532,243 

6,095,543 
7,655,620 
2,150,586 

63,659,653 
6,173,11« 

14,857,334 
3,006,691 

23,614,769 
273,181 
203,863 
232,111 

3,171,041 

226,625,751 

Interest earnings 
Fines and forfeits 

Licenses and fees: 
Liquor and malt beverage 
Business 
General government 
Fees 

Total licenses and fees 

6,000,000 
5,550,000 

440,000 
950,000 

1,690,000 
8,300,000 

11 ,380,000 

7,603,132 
4,416,539 

462,375 
980,506 

1,573,452 
8,176,087 

11,192,420 

1,603,132 
0,133,461) 

22,375 
30,506 

(116,548) 
023,913) 
087,580) 

7,333,692 
4,546,309 

454,530 
629,904 

2,748,281 
6,588,524 

10,421,239 

Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Water and Sewer Authority reimbursements and 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Hisce11aneous 
Retirement benefits Trust Fund reimbursement 

Total revenues 

transfers 
1,350,000 

28,992,954 
6,764,564 
4,800,000 
5,000,000 

$ 291,133,005 

1,464,915 
28,232,781 
6,808,393 
4,298,746 
5,000,000 

290,854,684 

114,915 
(760,173) 

43,829 
(501,254) 

(278,321) 

1,155,505 
29,244,496 

5,935,235 
7,223,662 

292,485,889 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

GENERAL FUND
 

Schedule of Expenditures
 
Compared With Budget (Budgetary Basis)
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

1989 
Budget Variance 

appropriations favorable 1988 
as amended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures 

Current operating: 
General government: 

City Council and City Clerk's Office: 
City Council $ 1,234,189 1,051,185 183,004 989,418 
City Clerk's Office 744.990 588.228 156.762 623.464 

1,979,179
- ­

1,639,413 339,766 1,612,882 

~ Mayor's Office: 
Office of the Mayor 1,902,829 1,753,428 149,401 1,374,179 
City Information Systems Office 5.254.928 4.153.321 501.601 3.910.334 

1,151,751 6,506,149 651,008 5,344,513 

Municipal Courts 1,083,159 951,664 132,095 961,168 

Commission on Human Relations 421,531 385,815 41,122 383,142 

Office of City Controller 2,191,029 2,252,730 544,299 2,212,717 

Department of Finance 3,801,593 3,308,050 499,543 2,911,806 

Department of Law 1,901,413 1,518,257 383,156 1,514,678 

Department of Personnel and Civil Service Commission 1,183,794 1,313,063 410,131 1,302,180 

Department of City Planning 1. 636 .193 1.373.049 263.144 1.219.071 
Total general government 22,574,254 19,308,790 3,265,464 17,534,757 

(Continued) 



-------------------

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Expenditures 
Compared With Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

(Continued) 

~ 

Public safety: 
Department of Public Safety: 

Bureau of Administration 
Bureau of Emergency Medical Services 
Bureau of Police 
Bureau of Fire and Building Inspection 

Total public safety 

Public works: 
Department of General Services: 

General Office 
Bureau of Fleet Management 
Bureau of Repairs and Operating Maintenance 

Department of Public Works: 
Bureau of Administration 
Streets and Sewers 

Department of Engineering and Construction 

Total public works 

Budget 
appropriations 

as amended 

5,627,286 
15,033,947 
3,036.580 

23,697,813 

8,792,565 
8,386.093 

17,178,658 

190,224 

41,066,695 

$ 5,862,333 
6,367,851 

49,571,133 
41,488.976 

103,290,293 

1989 

Expenditures 

4,998,443 
14,143,865 
2.841.636 

21,983,944 

7,082,576 
7.924.882 

15,007,458 

129,697 

37,121,099-­

5,505,361 
5,951,132 

47,164,753 
39.222,725 
97,843,971 

Variance 
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

628,843 
890,082 
194,944 

1,713,869 

1,709,989 
461.211 

2,171,200 

60,527 

3,945,596 

356,972 
416,719 

2,406,380 
2,266,251 
5,446,322 

1988 
expenditures 

5,811,522 
11,950,093 

2,396,237 
20,157,852
-­

6,482,693 
6.932.270 

13,414,963 

136,749 

33,709,564 

5,169,363 
5,642,307 

44,188,942 
37,315,166 

92,315,778 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
GENERAL FUND
 

Schedule of Expenditures
 
Compared With Budget (Budgetary Basis)
 

(Continued)
 

1989 
Budget Variance 

appropriations favorable 1988 
as amended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures 

Sanitation: 
Department of Environmental Services: 

General Office 
Division of Collection and Disposition 
Animal Control Division 
Rodent Control Division 

$ 673,937 
13,881,224 

440,330 
264.418 

605,405 
12,563,130 

395,567 
236.236 

68,532 
1,318,094 

44,763 
28.182 

483,201 
10,037,952 

452,047 
224.726 

Total sanitation 15,259,909 13,800,338 1,459,571 11,197,926 

0­
00 

Water: 
Department of Water: 

Bureau of Administration 
Purification and Pumping 
Distribution 
Engineering 

4,772,457 
6,851,410 
4,132,283 

187.543 

4,165,189 
5,952,430 
3,788,686 

146.811 

607,268 
898,980 
343,597 
40.732 

4,256,661 
5,763,778 
3,609,291 

142.149 
Total water 15,943,693 14,053,116 1,890,577 13,771,879 

Community, recreation and cultural programs: 
Department of Parks and Recreation: 

Bureau of Administration 4,543,642 4,091,438 452,204 3,695,155 
Conservatory 985,095 885,665 99,430 904,543 
Bureau of Maintenance 5,846,724 5,487,479 359,245 5,300,142 
Bureau of Recreational Activities 2.800.993 2.561.807 239.186 2.752.609 

14,176,454 13,026,389 1,150,065 12,652,449 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
GENERAL FUND
 

Schedule of Expenditures
 
Compared With Budget (Budgetary Basis)
 

(Continued)
 

1989 
Budget 

appropriations 
as amended Expenditures 

Zoological Parks Commission 
Carnegie Library 
Carnegie Museum 
Other 

$ 2,103,712 
4,445,155 

491,600 
51.500 

1,928,530 
4,445,155 

491,600 
41.500 

Total community, recreation and 
cultural programs 21,268,421 19,933,174 

Q\ 
-e 

Employee benefits: 
Pensions 
Workers' compensation 
Health insurance 
Group insurance 
Social security 
Personal leave buy back 
Severance pay 

12,492,500 
2,107,455 

26,570,000 
1,151,750 
5,701,202 
1,200,000 
1.700,000 

12,492,500 
1,343,361 

25,250,000 
815,000 

5,657,582 
1,136,371 
1.274.642 

Total employee benefits 50,922,907 47,969,456 

Claims and judgments 2,030,000 595,505 

Miscellaneous: 
Postage 
Refunds 
Purchase of delinquent sewage charges 
Spending authorized in prior years 

898,520 
1,149,000 
1,417,081 

10,206,020 

897,635 
1,080,386 
1,156,029 
8.448.081 

Total miscellaneous 13,670,621 11,582,131 

Variance 
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

175,182 

10.000 

1,335,247 

764,094 
1,320,000 

336,750 
43,620 
63,629 

425.358 

2,953,451 

1,434,495 

885 
68,614 

261,052 
1.757.939 
2,088,490 

1988 
expenditures 

1,801,302 
4,295,155 

443,800 
56.000 

19,248,706 

17,179,798 
1,665,053 

19,131,408 
1,050,000 
5,761,623 

986,956 
1.478.460 

47,253,298 

387,907 

822,744 
1,122,343 
1,009,184 
7,814,287 

10,768,558 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
GENERAL FUND
 

Schedule of Expenditures
 
Compared With Budget (Budgetary Basis)
 

(Continued)
 

1989 
Budget Variance· 

appropriations favorable 1988 
as amended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures 

Debt service: 
Principal retirements $ 9,875,000 9,875,000 - 9,740,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 19,219,742 19,219,742 - 20,785,000 
Stadium Authority subsidy (1) 3,663,279 3,145,269 518,010 3,965,828 
Public Auditorium Authority subsidy 1.284.190 1.261.722 22.468 1.287.568 

Total debt service 34,042,211 33,501,733 540,478 35,178,396 

Total expenditures $ 320,069,004 295,709,313 24,359,691 281,966,769 
..... 
0 

(1) Includes $1,000,000 transfer to Deposit Agency Fund for payment of real estate tax refunds. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

I 
I	 Federal Revenue Sharing - To account for revenue received and expenditures 

made under the Federal Revenue Sharing Program. 

I Equipment Leasing Authority - To account for general fund activity of the 
Equipment Leasing Authority, a component unit of the City. The Authority's 
principal function is the acquisition of City vehicles. 

I	 Liquid Fuel Tax - To account for the receipt and expenditure of the City's 
share of the proceeds for the state's gasoline tax. 

I	 CETA/JTPA - To account for revenue received and expenditures made under the 
Comprehensive Employment and Training Act and the Job Training Partnership Act. 

I Law Enforcement - To account for the receipt and expenditure of funds from 
various sources for support services for local law enforcement agencies. 

I Housing - To account for the cost of neighborhood development and improvement 
projects. These programs are financed primarily by the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) under the Community Development Block Grant 
Program. A substantive portion of the funds received under the program have 

I been allocated to the Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh. 

I 
Civic and Cultural Enrichment - To account for civic and cultural programs 
which are financed by state and federal grants, private donations and user 
charges. 

I Nonresident Charges - To account for revenues eamed from emergency medical 
services provided to non-City residents. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 71 

I 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
 

Combining Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totala for December 31, 1988)
 

Aneta 

Federal 
Revenue 
Sharing 

Equipment 
Leaaing 

Authority 
Liquid 

Fuel Tax CETA/JTPA 
Law 

Enforcement Houaing 

Civic and 
Cultural 

Enrichment 
Nonrea ident 

Chargee 
Totale 

1989 1988 

Caah and ahort-term inveatmenta, 
approximatea market 

at coat which • - 6,469,357 1,089,696 530,378 427,416 305,398 4,077 ,328 - 12,899,573 19,424,659 

Receivablea: 
Accrued intereat 
Other 

Due from general fund 
Due from other apecial revenue funda 
Due from capital projecta funda 
Due from other governmenta 

Total aaaeta 

--
-
-
-
--- ­• -

41,566 
-

184,095 
-
-
-

6,695,018 

1,433 
-
-
-
-

250,900 
1,342,029 

--
-

70,171 
-

1,197,416 
1,797,965 

-
-
-
-
-

150,871 
578,287 

--
-
-
-

5,241,915 
5,547,313 

165,600 
335,836 

-
--

57,103 
4,635,867 

--
-
--
---- ­-

208,599 
335,836 
184,095 

70,171 
-

6,898,205 
20,596,479 

234,547 
359,494 
282,197 
ID4,527 

19,365 
3,908,833 

24,333,622 

Liabilitiea and Fund Balancea 

..... 
N 

Liabilitiea: 
Accounta payable 
Accrued liabilitiea 
Due to general fund 
Due to other apecial revenue funda 
Due to capital projecta funda 

Total liabilitiea 

-------­-
-- ­

1,138,257 
-
-
-
-

1,138,257 

330,355 
615,177 

-
-
-

945,532 

-
600,611 

1,172,783 
-
-

1,773,394 

49,891 
35,169 

-
-
-

85,060 
-- ­

2,923,437 
-

1,298,818 
70,171 

1,205 ,678 
5,498,104 

154,926 
49,510 

237,000 
-
-

441,436 

---
----- ­-

-- ­

4,596,866 
1,300,467 
2,708,601 

70,171 
1,205,678 
9,881,783 

1,084,547 
678,923 

3,398,485 
104,527 

1,621,374 
6,887,856 

-
Fund balancea: 

Reaerved for encumbrancea 
Unreaerved: 

Designated for subsequent yeara' expenditures 
Undesignated 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilitiea and fund balances 

-
-
--- ­-

-- ­
• -

-
-

5,556,761 
5,556,761 

6,695,018 

967 

-
395,530 
396,497 

1,342,029 

-
-

24,571 
24,571 

1,797,965 

37,017 

18,265 
437,945 
493,227 
-- ­
578,287 

1,375 

-
47 ,834 
49,209 

5,547,313 

377,041 

335,637 
3,481,753 
4,194,431 

4,635,867 

-
-
--- ­-

--- ­
-

416,400 

353,902 
9,944,394 

10,714,696 

20,596,479 

717,827 

465,194 
16,262,745 
17,445,766 
-- ­
24,333,622 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures snd Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1988) 

Federal Equipment civic and 
Revenue Leasing Liquid Law Cultural Nonresident Totals 
Sharing Authority Fuel Tax CETA/JTPA Enforcement Housing Enrichment Charges 1989 1988 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ - 824,656 179,281 - - - 165,600 - 1,169,537 1,135,389 
Rentals - - - - - - - - - 45,822 
Intergovernmental revenues - - 4,206,890 7,410,271 783,115 21,009,868 2,407,408 - 35,817,552 38,262,869 
Charges for user services - - - - - - 2,131,374 - 2,131,374 1,967,740 
Hiscellaneous - - - - - - 4,000 - 4,000 154,417 

Total revenuea - 824,656 4,386,171 7,410,271 783,115 21,009,868 4,708,382 - 39,122,463 41,566,237 

Expenditures:
 
Current operating:
 

General government - 286,749 - - - 6,286,108 1,211,913 - 7,784,770 17,241,239 
Public safety 11,434 - - - 1,267,198 234,626 93,975 - 1,607,233 2,814,967 
Public works - - 4,068,017 - - 2,328,822 1,475,011 - 7,871,850 7,958,659 
Sanitst ion - - - - - - - - - 49,528 
Community, recreation and cultural 

programs - - - - - 1,324,838 2,108,091 - 3,432,929 2,773,635 
...., Intergovernmental programs - - - 8,368,710 - 11,581,272 74,667 - 20,024,649 12,999,896 

Capital projects - 6,860,484 - - - - - - 6,860,484 6,456,296W 
Debt service - - - - - - - - 395,672 

Total expenditures 11,434 7,147,233 4,068,017 8,368,710 1,267,198 21,755,666 4,963,657 - 47,581,915 50,689,892 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
eKpenditures 01,434) (6,322,577) 318,154 (958,439) (484,083) (745,798) (255,275) - (8,459,452) (9,123,655) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond sale proceeds - - - - - - - - - 7,777,848 
Proceeds from fixed asset dispositions - 341,616 - - - - - - 341,616 381,403 
Operating transfers from other funds - 2,412,615 - 880,529 41~,377 799,119 335,000 - 4,841,640 5,577,270 
Operatina transfers between special 

revenue funds - - - 70,171 - (70,171) 
Operating transfers to other funds - 0,563,386) - (265) - - (427 ,341) - 0,990,992) (5,428,815) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) - 1,190,845 - 950,435 414,377 728,948 (92,341) - 3,192 ,264 8,307,706 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other 
ulea 01,434) (5,131,732) 318,154 (8,004) (69,706) 06,850) ()47, 616) - (5,267,188) (815,949) 

Fund balances, beginning of year 11,434 10,688,493 78,343 32,575 588,921 640,858 5,275,017 130,125 17,445,766 18,261,715 
Equity transfers - - - - (25,988) (574,799) (732,970) 030,125) 0,463,882) 
Fund balsnces, end of year $ - 5,556,761 396,497 24,571 493,227 49,209 4,194,431 - 10,714,696 17,445,766 



I 

December 31. 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31. 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH. PENNSYLVANIA 
FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING FUNDS 

Balance Sheet 

1988) 

I 
I 
I 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments. at cost which 
approximates market 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Fund balance: 
Undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$-­
$ 

$ 

11.434 

11.434 

11.434 

11.434 

11.434 

I' 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING FUNDS
 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balance
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I 
I Revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Total revenues 

I Expenditures: 
Public safety:

I
 Department of Public Safety:
 
Bureau of Police 
Miscellaneous 

I Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

I Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

over 

$ 11,844 

11,844 

11,434 

11,434 

191,000 
317 

191,317 

expenditures 

$ 

(11,434) 
11,434 

(179,473) 
190,907 

11,434 

75 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING FUNDS 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary Basis 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

1989 
Variance 

Revised favorable 1988 
budget Actual (unfavorable) actual 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings 11.844$- ­

Total revenues 11,844 

Expenditures: 
Public Safety: 

Department of Public Safety: 
Bureau of Police 5,000 11,434 (6,434) 191,000 

~ Miscellaneous - 317 
Q\ - ­

Total expenditures 5,000 11,434 (6,434) 191,317 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (5,000) (11,434) (6,434) (179,473) 
Fund balance - budgetary basis, beginning of year 11.434 11.434 - 190.907 
Fund balance - budgetary basis, end of year $ 6,434 - (6,434) 11,434 

Adjustments to generally accepted accounting principles
 
(GAAP) basis:
 

Cumulative difference between budgetary basis and GAAP
 
basis, beginning of year
 

Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of revenues
 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition of expenditures
 

Fund balance - GAAP basis, end of year $ 11,434 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
EQUIPMENT LEASING AUTHORITY
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 
!2..81 

Cash and short-term investments, 
approximates market 

Accrued interest receivable 
Due from general fund 

at cost which 
$ 6,469,357 

41,566 
184.095 

Total assets $ 6,695,018 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 1,138,257 

Fund balance: 
Undesignated 5.556.761 

Total fund balance 5,556,761 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 6,695,018 

77
 

I 
I 
I 
I 

llll I 
10,894,749 I79,293 

282.197 
11,256,239 I
 

I
 
567,746 

I10.688.493 
10,688,493 

I11,256,239 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

EQUIPMENT LEASING AUTHORITY 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balance
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I
 
I Interest earnings $ 824,656 821,356 

Expenditures: 
Current operating - general government 286,749 225,831 
Capital projects 6,860,484 6,456,296

I Debt service 395,672 
Total expenditures 7,147,233 7,077,799 

I Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (6,322,577) (6,256,443) 

I Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond sale proceeds 7,777 ,848 
Proceeds from fixed asset dispositions 341,616 381,403 
Operating transfers from other funds:

I General fund 2,325,139 4,494,220 

I 
Debt service funds 87,476 5,806 

Operating transfers to other funds: 
Debt service funds (1,563,386) (5,196,704) 

Total other financing sources 1,190,845 7,462,573 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources

I over expenditures and other uses (5,131,732) 1,206,130 
Fund balance, beginning of year 10,688,493 9,482,363 
Fund balance, end of year $ 5,556,761 10,688,493

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 78 

I
 



I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIQUID FUEL TAX FUND I
 
Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Assets I
 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 1,089,696 834,043 

Accrued interest receivable 1,433 1,243 I
 
Due from other governments 250.900 

Total assets $ 1,342,029 835,286 I
 
Liabilities and Fund Balance 

I
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 330,355 333,347 
Accrued liabilities 615.117 423.596 I
Total liabilities 945,532 756,943 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for encumbrances 967 4,292 I

Undesignated 395.530 74.051
 

Total fund balance 396,497 78,343
 

I
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,342,029 835,286 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIQUID FUEL TAX FUND 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balance
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I l2ll 

I Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ 179,281 148,178 
Intergovernmental revenues - state 4.206.890 4.087.689 

Total revenues 4,386,171 4,235,867I Expenditures - Public Works 4.068.017 4.281.129 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 318,154 (45,262)

I Fund balance, beginning of year 78.343 123.605 
Fund balance, end of year $ 396,497 78,343 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 80 

I
 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
CETA/JTPA FUNDS
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

l2ll 
Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market 

Due from housing funds 
Due from other governments 

$ 530,378 
70,171 

1.197.416 

Total assets $ 1,797,965 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities 600,611 
Due to general fund 1.172.783 

Total liabilities 1,773,394 

Undesignated fund balance 24.571 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,797,965 

81
 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1,070,070 I104,527 
570.608 

1,745,205 I
 
I
 

139,689 
1.572.941 I1,712,630 

32.575 
1,745,205 I 

I 
I 
I 
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I 
I	 CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CETA/JTPA FUNDS 

I Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I 
Intergovernmental revenues - federal

I Miscellaneous - private grant 

I Expenditures - intergovernmental programs 
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

I Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers from housing funds 
Operating transfers from general fund 

I	 Operating transfers to other funds 

I 
I Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 

sources over expenditures and other uses 
Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 82 

I 

l2ll. 12M 

$ 7,410,271 6,042,484 
19.000 

7,410,271 6,061,484 

8.368.710	 6.147.011 
(958,439) (85,527) 

70,171 104,527 
880,529 

(265) 
950,435 104,527 

(8,004) 19,000 
32.575 13.575 

$ 24,571 32,575 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUNDS
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market 

Due from other governments 
Total assets 

Liabili ties and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to general fund 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated
 

Total fund balance
 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

.till 

$ 427,416 
150.871 

$ 578,287 

49,891 
35,169 

85,060 

37,017
 
18,265
 

437 .945
 
493,227
 

$ 578,287 

83
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llll I
 
497,570 I
585.928 

1,083,498 

I
 
I
13,360 

47,488 
433.729 I
494,577 

35,607 I
13,760 
539.554
 
588,921
 I
 

1,083,498 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUNDS 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balance
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I 
I Revenues: 

Intergovernmental revenues - local 

I 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - Public Safety 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I 
I Other financing sources - operating transfers 

from general fund 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 

sources over expenditures 

I 
Fund balance, beginning of year 
Equity transfers 
Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 84 

I
 

llll 

$ 783,115 1,334,932 
1,030 

783,115 1,335,962 

1.267,198 1.186,010 
(484,083) 149,952 

414,377 

(69,706) 149,952 

588,921 438,969 
(25,988) 

$ 493,227 588,921 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
HOUSING FUNDS
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market 

Due from capital projects funds 
Due from other governments 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to general fund 
Due to CETA/JTPA funds 
Due to capital projects funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Undesignated fund balance 

Total fund balance 

Total Habili ties and fund balance 

ill.2. 

$ 305,398 

5.241.915 
$ 5,547,313 

2,923,437 
1,298,818 

70,171 
1.205.678 
5,498,104 

1,375 
47.834 
49,209 

$ 5,547,313 

85
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

12M I
 
954,473
 

19,365
 I
 
2.653.786 
3,627,624 I
 

I
 
106,050 

1,154,815 
104,527 I
 

1.621.374 
2,986,766 I
 

640.858 I
640,858 

3,627,624 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

HOUSING FUNDS 

I 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I 
Revenues:


I Rentals
 
Intergovernmental revenues - federal 
Miscellaneous 

I Total revenues 

I 
Expenditures:
 

Current operating:
 
General government:
 

Council and City Clerk's Office 
Commission on Human Relations

I Department of Finance 
Department of Personnel and Civil Service 

Commission 
Department of City PlanningI Public safety - Bureau of Fire 

Public works: 
Department of Public Works

I Department of Land and Buildings 
Department of Engineering and Construction 

Sanitation - Department of Environmental 
Services 

Community, recreation and cultural programsI ­

I 
Department of Parks and Recreation 

Intergovernmental programs 
Total expenditures 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfer from general fund 
Transfer from capital projects fund 
Transfer to CETA/JTPA funds 

I 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 

over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Equity transfers to general fund

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 86 

I 

$ 
21,009,868 

21,009,868" 

45,822 
24,482,654 

24,228 

24,552,704 

1,588,205 
23,368 

6,783 

1,949,761 
7,400 

26,088 

355,653 
4,312,099 

234,626 

303,625 
11,830,545 

845,984 

213,992 
55,902 

2,058,928 

33,737 
17,715 

2,544,265 

49,528 

1,324,838 
11,581,272 

21,755,666 

633,044 
6,850,245 

25,091,937 

(745,798) (539,233) 

(10,171) 

799,119 223,922 
420,322 

Cl04,527) 

(16,850) 484 

$ 

640,858 
(574.799) 

49,209 640,858 

640,374 



I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CIVIC AND CULTURAL ENRICHMENT FUNDS I
 
Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Assets I
 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 4,077,328 5,032,195 

Receivables: I
 
Accrued interest 165,600 154,011
 
Other 335,836 359,494
 
Due from other governments 57.103 98.511
 I
 

Total assets $ 4,635,867 5,644,211 

I
Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 154,926 64,044 I
 
Accrued liabilities 49,510 68,150
 
Due to general fund 237.000 237.000
 

Total liabilities 441,436 369,194
 I
 
Fund balance: 

Reserved for encumbrances 377,041 677,928 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 335,637 451,434 I
 
Undesignated 3.481,753 4,145.655
 

Total fund balance 4,194,431 5,275,017
 I
 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4,635,867 5,644,211 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CIVIC AND CULTURAL ENRICHMENT FUNDS 

I 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Revenues:


I Interest earnings $ 165,600 154,011
 

I
 
Intergovernmental revenues:
 

Federal 585,787 884,862
 
State 1,821,621 1,430,248
 

I 
Charges for user services 2,131,374 1,956,886 
Miscellaneous 4.000 110.159 

Total revenues 4,708,382 4,536,166 

I 

Expenditures: 
Current operating: 

General government 1,211,913 2,897,989I Public safety - Bureaus of Police and 
Emergency Medical Services 93,975 565,835 

Public works - Department of Public Works 1,475,011 1,081,813I Community, recreation and cultural programs ­
Department of Parks and Recreation 2,108,091 2,140,591 

Intergovernmental programs 74.667 2.640 
Total expenditures 4,963,657 6,688,868 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (255,275) (2,152,702) 

I 
I Other financing sources: 

Operating transfers from other funds: 
General fund 335,000 433,000 

Operating transfers to other funds: 
General fund (352,494) (232,111) 
Trust and agency <74.847)

I Total other financing sources (92,341) 200,889 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 

I
 
over expenditures and other uses (347,616) (1,951,813)
 

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,275,017 7,226,830
 
Equity transfers to general fund <732.970)
 
Fund balance, end of year $ 4,194,431 5,275,017 

I 
I 

88 

I 



I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

NONRESIDENT CHARGES FUND I
 
Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Assets I
 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market 130.125$-­ I
Total assets $ 130,125-

Liabilities and fund Balance I
 
Liabili ties 

I
Fund balance: 
Undesignated 

Total fund balance I
 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

NONRESIDENT CHARGES FUND 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balance
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I l2.ll l2ll 

I Revenues - charges for user services $ 10,854 

I 
Expenditures - Public Safety 25,821 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (14,967) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 130,125 145,092 
Equity transfers (130,125) 

I Fund balance, end of year $ 130,125 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 90 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

I 
General Obligation - To account for the payment of principal and interest on

I all long-term debt, except for that which is recorded in the Equipment Leasing 
Authority Debt Service Fund. 

I Equipment Leasing Authority - To account for the payment of principal and 
interest on long-term debt issued by the Equipment Leasing Authority. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 91 

I 



-------------------

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1988) 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, 
approximates market 

Accrued interest receivable 
Due from general fund 

Total assets 

at cost which 

General 
Ob1b.ation 

$ 1,792,877 
169,205 

$ 1,962,082 

Equipment 
Leasing 

Authority 

3,433,427 
23,542 

3,456,969 

Totals 
ill.2. ill.8. 

5,226,304 4,887,967 
192,747 59,430 

28,875 
5,419,051 4,976,272 

~ 
N Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accrued interest and other payab1es 
Accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

573,657 
49,845 

623,502 

22,500 

22,500 

596,157 
49,845 

646,002 

128,781 
60,984 

189,765 

Fund balances: 
Designated for debt service 

Total liabilities and fund balances 
1.338.580 

$ 1,962,082 
3.434.469 
3,456,969 

4,773,049 
5,419,051 

4.786.507 
4,976,272 



-------------------
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
 
Changes in Fund Balances
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

Equipment 
General Leasing Totals 

Obligation Authority ill..2. llll 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ 1,238,666 208,628 1,447.294 785,653 

Expenditures: 
Current operating: 

Miscellaneous 1,347 - 1.347 1.286 

\C 
Debt Service: 

W Interest and fiscal charges 9.875.000 3.255.000 13,130,000 16.670.000 
Principal retirement 22.219.742 1.459.847 23.679.589 24.336.405 
Fiscal agent charges 83,178 - 83.178 107.778 

Total expenditures 32.179.267 4.714.847 36.894.114 41.115.469 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (30,940.601) (4,506.219) (35.446.820) (40.329.816) 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Proceeds from escrow fund refinancing 207 
Operating transfers from: 

General fund 29.094.742 4.653.545 33.748.287 31.627.822 
Special revenue funds 1.563.386 1.563,386 5.196.704 
Capital projects funds 209.166 - 209.166 742,930 

Operating transfers to: 
Special revenue funds (87,477) (87,477) (5,806) 

Total other financing sources 29.303.908 6.129.454 35.433.362 37,561.857 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses (1.636.693) 1.623,235 (13.458) (2.767.959) 

Fund balances. beginning of year 2,975.273 1,811,234 4,786.507 7,554.466 
Fund balances. end of year $ 1,338,580 3,434.469 4.773.049 4.786,507 



I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

I 
I Engineering and Construction - To account for street and bridge construction 

projects. 

I· Water - To account for water system construction projects. The majority of 
these projects have been transferred to the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer 
Authority. 

I Parks and Recreation - To account for construction of community recreational 
facili ties. 

I Public Works - To account for the reconstruction of streets. 

General Services - To account for the purchase of equipment and fire vehicles. 

I Urban Redevelopment To account 
economic development projects. 

I Other - To account for miscellaneous 
projects funds. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

for neighborhood housing programs and 

projects not classified in other capital 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Comb in ins Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals fot December 31, 1988) 

Ensineerins 
and Construction ~ 

Parks and 
Recreation 

Public 
Worka 

General 
Services 

Urban 
Redevelopment Other 

Totals 
1989 1988 

~ 

Cash and short-term investments, 
approximates market 

Intrafund receivable (payable) 
Due from special revenue funds 
Due from other sovernments 

Total auets 

at cost which 
• 40,474,419 

-
-

4 ,854,118 
• 45,328,537 

52,593 
-
-
---­

52,593 

1,888,742 
-
-
-

1,888,742 

6,558,968 
828,790 

-
-

7,387,758 

4,296,843 
-
-
-

4,296,843 

1,590,010 
-
-
-

1,590,010 

1,811,260 
(828,790) 

1,205,678 
-

2,188,148 

56,672,835 
-

1,205,678 
4,854,118 

62,732,631 

37,'285,748 
-

1,621,374 
4,556,708 

43,463,830 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

\0 
VI 

Liabilit ies: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to 8pecial revenue fund. 

Total liabilities 

3,018,101 
1,189,695 

109,954 
-

4,317,750 
--­

-
-
----­-

8,239 
-
--
8,239 

666,311 
29,149 
42,444 
-

737,904 

72,359 
-
-
-

72 ,359 

778,000 
-
-
-

778,000 

812,028 
-

15,564 
-

827,592 

5,355,038 
1,218,844 

167,962 
-

6,741,844 

6,165,382 
328,699 
217,098 

19,365 
6,730,544 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 

Total fund balances 

12,582,895 
28,427,892 
41,010,787 

-
52,593 
52,593 
--­

8,357 
1,872,146 
1,880,503 

948,922 
5,700,932 
6,649,854 

455,236 
3,769,248 
4.224,484 

702,027 
109,983 
812,010 

352,886 
1,007,670 
1,360,556 

15,050,323 
40,940.464 
55,990,787 

13,786,942 
22,946,344 
36,733,286 
--­

Total liabilities and fund balances .45,328,537 52,593 1,888,742 7,387,758 4.296,843 1,590,010 2,188,148 62,732,631 43,463,830 



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

Engineering 
and Construction ~ 

Parks and 
Recreation 

Public 
Works 

General 
Services 

Urban 
Redevelopment Other 1989 

Totals 
1988 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenues 

Total revenues * 14,201 ,046 
14,201,046 

---­-
-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

14,201,046 
14,201,046 

8,780,209 
8,780,209 

--­ -
Expenditures: 

Capital projects 
Bond issuance cost 

35,847,985 - -
---­

510,786- 8,977,151 - 2,685,026 
-

2,543,477 
-

1,035,838 
1,495,986 

51,600,263 
1,495,986 

42,296,934 

-
Total expenditures 35,847,985 -

--­
510,786 8,977,151 2,685,026 2,543,477 2,531,824 53,096,249 42,296,934 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (21,646,939) - (510,786) (8,977,150 (2,685,026) (2,543,477) (2,531,824) (38,895,203) (]3,516,725) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

\0 
0­

Bond proceeds 
Operating transfers to: 

Special revenue funds 
Debt service fund 

36,170,200 

-
-

-
----­

2,184,000 

-
-

10,992,400 

-
-

6,338,500 

--

1,353,500 

-
(184,523) 

2,160,664 

-
(24,643) 

59,199,264 

-
(209,166) 

(420,322) 
(742,930) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 36,170,200 - 2,184,000 10,992,400 6,338,500 1,168,977 2,136,021 58,990,098 0,163,252) 

,Deficiency of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 14,523,261 ---­

1,673,214 2,015,249 3,653,474 0,374,500) (395,803) 20,094,895 (34,679,977 ) 

Fund balances, beginning of year 
Equity transfers from (to) other funds 

28,547,534 
(2,060,008) 

73,392 
(20,799) 

207,444 
(155) 

4,275,605 
359,000 

1,040,010 
(469,000) 

1,326,510 
860,000 

1,262,791 
493,568 

36,733,286 
(837,394) 

71,413,263 

Fund balances, end of year * 41,010,787 52,593 1,880,503 6,649,854 4,224,484 812,010 1,360,556 55,990,787 36,733,286 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

I Water and Sewer Authority -
the residents of the City. 

To account for the provision of water services to 
All activities necessary to provide such services 

are accounted

I administration, 
component unit 
its predecessor

I Stadium Authority - To 
of the Stadium complex. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

for in these funds, including, but not limited to, 
operations and distribution. The Water and Sewer Authority, a 
of the City, assumed the responsibilities of the Water Fund, 
on May 1, 1984. 

account for all activities pertaining to the operations 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
 

Combining Balance Sheet - Assets
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1988)
 

~ 

Current assets: 
Cash and investments, at cost which approximates 

market 
Accounts receivable, net of Water and Sewer Authority 

allowance for uncollectible accounts of $15,992,558 
Accrued interest 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Trusteed and restricted funds: 
Cash and investments, at cost which 

approximates market 
Accounts receivable, net 
Accrued interest 
Deferred bond and financing expenses 

Total trusteed and restricted funds 

Water and 
Sewer 

Authority 

$ 18,991,000 

11,371,000 
20,000 
48.000 

30,430;000 

125,407,000 

1,454,000 
5.024.000 

131,885,000 

Stadium 
Authority 

2,159,273 

255,042 
-

189.548 
2,603,863 

1,164,595 
679,501 

728.623 
2,572,719 

Totals 
ill2. lill 

21,150,273 12,766,600 

11,626,042 13,208,146 
20,000 14,000 

237.548 327.065 
33,033,863 26,315,811 

126,571,595 
679,501 

1,454,000 
5.752.623 

134,457,719 

145,860,043 
1,015,112 
1,595,000 
6.870.436 

155,340,591 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Stadium complex 
Utility plant 
Nonutility plant 
Construction in process 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Net property, plant and equipment 

Total assets 

-
60,638,000 
1,409,000 

40.091.000 
102,138,000 

5.798.000 
96,340,000 

$ 258,655,000 

52,576,990 
-
-
-

52,576,990 

18.726.620 
33,850,370 

39,026,952 

52,576,990 
60,638,000 
1,409,000 

40.091.000 
154,714,990 

24.524,620 

130,190,370 

297,681,952 

50,938,704 
40,067,000 

1,207,000 
37.757.000 

129,969,704 

19.158.435 
110,811,269 

292,467,671 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
 

Combining Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Fund Equity
 

.. ­
Water and 

Sewer Stadium Totals 
Authority Authority 1989 1988 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable - contractor and accrued expenses $ - 2,222,188 2,222,188 
Accounts payable 55.000 508,694 563.694 503.878 

Total current liabilities 55,000 2,730,882 2,785,882 503,878 

Current liabilities payable from trusteed and 
restricted funds: 

Accounts payable 2,686,000 2,686,000 2,673,563 
Accrued interest payable 4,501,000 1,562,442 6,063,442 6,117,268 
Deferred revenue 1,274,635 1,274,635 1,231,141 
Current portion of long-term debt 1.695.000 1.695.000 1.600.000 

ID Total current liabilities payable
ID from trusteed and restricted funds 7,187,000 4,532,077 11,719,077 11,621,972 

Long-term debt: 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 496,690,000 49,940,000 546,630,000 549,125,000 
Less escrow funds (230,980,000) (230,980,000) (230,106,000) 
Less discount (13.728.000) 03.728.000) 04,477 .000) 

Total long-term debt 251,982,000 49,940,000 301,922,000 304,542,000 

Grants from the City of Pittsburgh 4.311. 353 4.311.353 345.525 
Total liabilities 259,224,000 61,514,312 320,738,312 317,013,375 

Fund equity: 
Contributed capital: 

Restricted for construction purposes 7,398,631 7,398,631 7,398,631 
Unrestricted 5.277.000 - 5.27'L....Q.Q.Q 5.277,000 

5,277,000 7,398,631 12,675,631 12,675,631 

Accumulated deficit (5.846.000) (29.885,991) !..J.4731.991) (37,221. 335) 
Total fund deficit (569,000) (22,487,360) (23,056,360) (24,545,704) 

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 258,655,000 39,026,952 297,681,952 292,467,671 



-------------------

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
 
Changes in Accumulated Deficit
 

For 
(with comparative 

Operating revenues: 
Water charges 
Rentals 
Medallions 
Stadium bond service charges 
Concessions 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
.... Salaries and wages 
o Utilitieso 

Allocation of City indirect expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
Purification chemicals 
Payments to non-City water agencies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Materials, supplies and rentals 
Administrative and other operating expenses 
Mi sce 11aneous 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Amortization of bond issue costs 
Other 
Loss on disposal of assets 

the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
totals for the year ended December 31, 

Water and 
Sewer Stadium 

Authority Authority 

$ 37,385,000 
2,853,008 
1,320,000 

685,410 
1,393,104 

443,772 
37,385,000 6,695,294 

9,105,000 1,140,301 
3,363,000 707,792 
2,753,000 
1,288,000 1,492,472 
1,076,000 
2,334,000 

109,000 1,043,727 
365,791 

881,000 
475,000 861,813 

1,113,000 
22,497,000 5,611,896 

14,888,000 1,083,398 

9,245,000 289,130 
(9,991,000) (4,181,381). 
(l,068,000) 

(l,243,803) 

1988) 

Totals 
1989 

37,385,000 
2,853,008 
1,320,000 

685,410 
1,393,104 

443,772 
44,080,294 

10,245,301 
4,070,792 
2,753,000 
2,780,472 
1,076,000 
2,334,000 
1,152,727 

365,791 
881,000 

1,336,813 
1,113,000 

28,108,896 

15,971,398 

9,534,130 
(l4,172,381) 
(l ,068 ,000) 

(l,243,803) 

1988 

35,125,000 
2,358,319 
1,320,000 

683,969 
861,009 
473,975 

40,822,272 

11,071,940 
3,545,153 
2,580,000 
2,518,333 
1,092,000 
2,317,000 
1,070,463 

718,379 
738,000 

1,400,805 
1,566,000 

28,624,073 

12,198,199 

7,036,525 
(l2,202,072) 

(992,000) 
6,000 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (l,814,000) (5,136,054) (6,950,054) (6, 151 , 547) 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 13,074,000 (4,052,656) 9,021,344 6,046,652 
Operating transfers to general fund C7, 532 ,000) (7,532,000) C7,294,OOO) 

Net income (loss) 5,542,000 (4,052,656) 1,489,344 (l,247,348) 

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year (11,388,000) (25,833,335) (37,221,335) (35,973,987)
 
Accumulated deficit, cnd of year $ (5,846,000) (29,885,991) (35,731,991) (37,221,335)
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ICITY OF	 PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents) I 
IWater and Stadium 

Sewer Authority Authority 

Cash flows from operating activities: I 
Operating income $ 14,888,000 1,083,398 15,971,398
 
Reconciliation of operating income
 

to net cash provided by (used in)
 Ioperating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 1.288,000 1.492,472 2,780,472 

16,176,000 2,575,870 18,751,870 I 
Change in operating assets and
 

HabiHties:
 
Accounts receivable 806,000 1,111,715 1,917,715
 I
Prepaid expenses 50,517 50,517 
Other current assets 39,000 39,000 
Accounts payable and accrued Iexpenses 23,000 2,251,441 2,274,441 
Accrued interest payable (39,826) (39,826) 
Deferred revenue 43,494 43,494 
Other (49,000) (49,000) I 

Net cash provided by (used 
in) operating activities 16,995,000 5,993,211 22,988,211 ICash flows from investing activities: 

Interest earnings 289,130 289,130 
Interest earnings on restricted funds 26,481,000 26,481,000 
Purchase of investment securities (105,181,000) (105,181,000) I 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of
 

investment securities 92,211,000 92,211,000
 
Restricted cash and investments (81.552) (81.552)
 I 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities 13,511,000 207,578 13,718,578 I(Continued) 

I
 
I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents) 

I
 
I
 
I 

Cash flows from noncapital financing 
activities: 

I 
Principal payment related to 

noncapital funds 
Interest payments related to 

noncapital funds 

I Cash flows from capital and related 

I 
financing activities: 

Payments to the City of Pittsburgh 
Grants from the City of Pittsburgh 

I 
Principal payments related to 

capital funds 
Interest payments related to capital 

funds 
Additions to stadium complex 
Acquisition and construction of

I capital assets 
Net cash used in financ ing 

activities 

I 
I 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of year

I Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 

102 

I 

Water and Stadium 
Sewer Authori ty 

$ (64,000) 

(1. 054 .000) 
(1,118,000) 

(7,532,000) 

(736,000) 

(31,583,000) 

(20.126.000) 

(59,977,000) 

(30,589,000) 

85.261.000 

$ 54,672,000 

Authority Total 

(64,000) 

(1.054.000) 

(1,118,000) 

(7,532,000) 
3,965,828 3,965,828 

(1,600,000) (2,336,000) 

(4,181,381) (35,764,381) 
(3,206,563) (3,206,563) 

(20.126.000) 

(5,022,116) (64,999,116) 

1,178,673 (29,410,327) 

980.600 86.241.600 

2,159,273 56,831,273 



I
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

Pension Trust: I 
Comprehensive Board - To account for the investment and financing activities
 
of the City's three pension plans.
 I 
Municipal Plan - To account for the activity in the pension plan for
 
non-uniformed municipal employees. Each full-time employee not covered
 
under the Police or Fire plans is required to participate in the Municipal
 IPension Plan after serving a 90-day probationary period. The plan is a
 
contributory defined benefit pension plan.
 

IPolice Plan - To account for the activity in the Police pension plan. All 
Bureau of Police employees are required to participate in the plan. The
 
plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan.
 I
Fire Plan - To account for the activity in the Fire pension plan. All
 
Bureau of Fire employees are required to participate in the plan. The plan
 
is a contributory defined benefit pension plan.
 I 
Retirees' Trust - To account for the receipt and disbursement of City funds
 
to permit periodic pension increases to all City retirees.
 I 

Expendable Trust: 

Gifts and Donations - To account for gifts received for the operation of Ivarious civic and cultural programs. 

Workers' Compensation - To account for the irrevocable trust established by
 
the City in accordance with the requirements of the Pennsylvania Department
 I 
of Labor for self-insurance in regard to workers' compensation. 

Parks Endowments - To account for the proceeds from endowments for the I
maintenance and operations of Frick Park and the Oliver Bath House. 

Meter Installation Program - To account for the receipt of monies from the IPi ttsburgh Water and Sewer Authority for the Department of Water's remote
 
meter installation program.
 

IRetirement Benefits - To account for assets accumulated for future reduction
 
of the unfunded pension liability.
 

Agency Funds: I 
Employee Benefits - To account for the collection and payment of various
 
employee benefit programs, such as pensions, medical insurance, life
 Iinsurance, social security and deferred compensation from and on behalf of
 
City employees.
 

Payroll Withholding - To account for the collection and payment of various I 
payroll taxes withheld from and on behalf of City employees. 

I 
103 

I
 
I
 



I 

I 
I Parking Meter - To account for the collection of revenues from City - owned 

parking meters and the subsequent distribution of these revenues to the 
General Fund and the Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh pursuant to the 
terms of an agreement between the City and the Public Parking Authority. 

I 
Unclaimed Liabilities - To account for the City' s liabili ties for services 
rendered for which the City is unable to locate the payees. Liabili ties 
unclaimed after seven years escheat to the Commonwealth. 

I Deposit - To account for refundable deposits, overpaid taxes and water 
charges and monies confiscated which are returnable. 

Other - To account for miscellaneous monies not classified in other agency

I funds. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
,I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
 

Combining Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totala for December 31, 1988)
 

Penaion Truat Funda Expendable Truat Funda 
Meter 

Comprehensive Municipal Police Fire Retirees' Gifta and Workers' Parka Inatallation Retirement Agency Totala 
Aaaeta Board Plan Plan Plan Donations Compensation Endowment a Program benefita Funda 1989 1988.!!.!!!!. 

Cash and ahort-term investments. at 
coat which approximates market $ 81,492,916 18,716 89,998 35,165 972 ,166 433,941 4,590,318 303,054 89,000 11,081,859 11,350,529 122,451,728 106,034,921 

Contributiona receivable - participanta - - - - - - - - - - - - 204,694 
Accrued interest and dividend. 

receiv8ble 620,340 - - - 614 - 32,588 - - 331,921 1,125 986,654 856,958 
Due from General Fund - - - - - - - - - - 2,100,000 2,100,000 3,625,584 
Due from Comprehenaive Board - - - - - - - - - - - - 940,000 

Total aaaeta $ 82,113,256 18,716 89,998 35,165 972 ,840 433,941 4,622,966 303,054 89,000 11,413,186 19,451,654 125,544,382 111,662,151 

Liabilitiea and Fund Balancea 

Liabilitiea: 
Caah overdraft - - - - - - - - - - - - 179,579 
Accrued liabilitiea & other payablea - 16,840 9,133 4,525 - 30,502 - 22,514 31,025 - 5,249,165 5,369,704 6,522,885 

~ 
Deferred compenaation payable - - - - - - - - - - 12,244,933 12,244,933 9,370,787 

0 Due to General Fund - - - - - - - - - - 1,246,963 1,246,963 2,149,243 
VI Due to Police Plan - - - - - - - - - - - - 940,000 

Depoaita held in truat - - - - - - - - - - 710,593 710,593 469,494 
Total liabilitiea - 16,840 9,133 4,525 - 30,502 - 22,514 31,025 - 19,451,654 19,572 ,193 20,231,988 

Fund balancea: 
Reserved for encumbrance. - - - - - 10,195 - 812 73 - - 71,080 
Reserved for endowment. - - - - - - - 279,728 - - - 279,728 266,269 
Reaerved for employee benefita 82,113,256 1,816 80,865 30,640 972 ,840 - 4,622,966 - - 11,413,186 - 105,236,229 90,655,115 ,Deaignated for aubaequent yeara' 

expenditures - - - - - 15,244 - - - - - 15,244 
Undeaignated - - - - - 318,006 - - 51,902 - - 369,908 508,785 

Total fund balancea 82,113,256 1,816 80,865 30,640 972 ,840 403,445 4,622,966 280,540 51,915 11,413,186 - 105,972,189 91,430,169 

Total liabilitiea and 
fund balancea $ 82,113,256 18,716 89,998 35,165 972 ,840 433,941 4,622,966 303,054 89,000 17 ,413,186 19,451,654 125,544,382 111,662,157 

- _.'
 - - .- - - .. - - - - - .. - .. - - ­



- - - - -

Opersting revenues: 
Contribut ions: 

Psrticipsnts 
Employer 
Stste 

Tots1 contributions 

Investment inco.e: 
Gsins (losses) on security 

transactions 
Interest	 snd dividends 

Tots1 invest.ent income 

"bcel1sneous 
Tots1 opersting revenues 

.... Opersting expenses: 
0 Bene fi t pS)'1lK!nts
0­ Administrstive expenses 

Fees for professions1 services 
Total operatina expenses 

Net income (loss) before operatina 
transfers 

Operatina transfers between pension 
funds 

Net income (loss) 

Fund balances, beainnina of year 
Equity transfers between funds 
Fund balances, end of year 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - _. ­
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
 

Combining Ststement of Revenues,
 
Expenses snd Chsnges in Fund Bslsnces
 

For the Yesr Ended December 31, 19B9 
(with compsrstive tots Is for the yesr ended December 31, 1988) 

Comprehensive Municipal Police Fire Retirees-
Bosrd Plan Plan Plan Trust 

• 7,768,983 227,824 36,703 26,886 ­
8,602,082 - 40,500 156,000 300,000 

28,377,352 - - - ­
44,748,417 227,824 77 ,203 182,886 300,000 

1,021,402 - - - ­
4,899,879 113 7,727 6,883 77,110 
5,921,281 113 7,727 6,883 77,110 

- - - 990 ­
50,669,698 227,937 84,930 190,759 377,110 

- 14,229,995 11,941,776 9,688,617 ­
340,679 157,273 156,146 93,763 ­
293,827 - - - ­
634,506 14,387,268 12,097,922 9,782,380 ­

50,035,192 (14,159,331) (12,012,992) (9,591,621) 377,110 

05,188,456) 14,143,000 12,048,194 9,593,000 (595,738) 
14,846,736 06,330 35,202 1,379 (218,628) 

67,266,520 18,207 45,663 29,261 1,191,468 

• 82,113,256 1,876 80,865 30,640 972,840 

Totsls 
1989 1988 

8,060,396 7,253,291 
9,098,582 17,175,798 

28,377 ,352 28,169,898 
45,536,330 52,598,987 

1,021,402 054,597) 
4,991,712 3,732,299 
6,013,114 2,977,702 

990 27,811 
51,550,434 55,604,500 

35,860,388 33,219,139 
747,861 415,703 
293,827 241,042 

36,902,076 33,875,884 

14,648,358 21,728,616 

14,648,358 21,728,616 

-
68,551,119 63,528,908 

(16,706,405) 
83,199,477 68,551,119 



--- ---
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

Gifts and 
Donations 

Workers ' 
Compensation 

Parks 
Endowments 

Meter 
Installation 

Program 
Ret irement 
benefits 

Tota18 
1989 1988 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings - 396,087 480,987 - 1,221,893 2,098,967 l,B97,053•Chacges for user services 292,538 - - 633,573 926,111 302,722 
Donation. 209,291 - - - 209,291 108,083 
Other 264,118 - 8,642 275,548 332,724- ~ --­

Tota 1 revenues 765,947 396,087 483,775 633,573 1,230,535 3,509,917 2,640,582 

Expenditures - current operating: 
Community, recreation and cultural programs: 

Community activities 572,204 - - - - 572,204 322,068 
School services 115,576 - - - - 115,576 135,573 
Parka and recreation 121 ,823 - 469,504 - - 591,327 538,463 

o
.... 

Meter installation - - 714,888 '- 714,888 66,710..., Miscellaneous 9,717 - - 82,067 91,784 18,688 
Total expenditures 809,603 9,717 469,50/ 714,888 82,067 2,085,779 1,081,502 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (43,656) 386,370 14,271 (81,315) 1,148,468 1,424,138 1,559,080 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Operating transfers from other funds: 
Special revenues 74,847 - - - - 74,847 
General Fund 3,397,918 3,397,918 

Operating transfers to other funds: 
General Fund (5,000,000) (5,000,000) 

Total other financing aources (uses) 74,847 - - - (1,602,082) (1,527,235) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other usea 31,191 386,370 14,271 (81,315) (453 ,614) 003,097) 1,559,080 

Fund balances, beginning of year 375,495 4,236,596 266,269 133,290 17,867,400 22,879,050 4,413,565 
Equity transfer in ~) - - - - (3,241) 16,906,405 
Fund balances, end of year $ 403,445 4,622,966 280,540 51,975 17 ,413,786 22,772,712 22,879,050 

- - -, - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - ­
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I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GIFTS AND DONATIONS TRUST FUND I
 

Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Assets I
 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 433.947 440,495 I
Total assets $ 433,947 440,495 

Liabilities and Fund Balances I
 
Liabilities: 

Accrued liabilities 30,502 I
Due to general fund 65,000
 
Total liabilities 30,502 65,000
 

I
 
Fund balances: 

Reserved for encumbrances 70,195 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 15,244 I
Undesignated 318,006 375,495
 

Total fund balances 403,445 375,495
 

I
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 433,947 440,495 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I	 CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

GIFTS AND DONATIONS TRUST FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

I and Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I 
Revenues:


I Registration fees
 
Donations 
Other 

I Total revenues 

I 
Expenditures - current operating: 

Community, recreation and cultural programs: 
Community activities 
School services 
Parks and recreation

I	 Total expenditures 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Operating transfer from other funds:
 
Special revenue


I General fund
 
Operating transfer to other funds:
 

General fund
 

I Total other financing sources (uses)
 

I
 Excess of revenues and other sources over
 
expenditures and other uses
 

Fund balances, beginning of year 
Equity transfers

I Fund balances, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 109 

I 

$	 292,538 302,722 
209,291 108,083 
264,118 319,972 

765,947 730,777 

572,204 322,068 
115,576 135,573 
121.823 124,676 

809,603 582,317 

(43,656) 148,460 

74,847 

74,847 

31,191 148,460 
375,495 227,035 

<3,241) 

$	 403,445 375,495 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION TRUST FUND
 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, 
approximates market 

Accrued interest receivable 
Total assets 

at cost which 
$ 4,590,378 

32,588 

$ 4,622,966 

Fund Balance 

Fund balance - reserved for employee benefits 4,622,966 

Total fund balance $ 4,622,966 

110
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4,163,068 I73,528 

4,236,596 

I 
4,236,596 I 
4,236,596 

I 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION TRUST FUND 

I 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988) 

I 
Revenues:


I Interest earnings
 

I 
Expenditures - current operating: 

Trustee fee 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

I Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 111 

I 

1989 !2.ll 

$ 396,087 280,286 

9,717 14,875 

386,370 265,411 

4,236,596 3,971.185 

$ 4,622,966 4,236,596 



I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

PARKS ENDOWMENTS TRUST FUND I
 
Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
Assets I
 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 303£054 280.360 I
Total assets $ 303,054 280,360 

Liabilities and Fund Balances I
 
Liabil i ties: 

Accrued liabilities 22.514 14.091 I
Total liabilities 22,514 14,091 

Fund balances: I
 
Reserved for encumbrances 812
 
Reserved for endowments 279.728 266.269
 

Total fund balances 280,540 266,269
 I
 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 303,054 280,360 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

PARKS ENDOWMENTS TRUST FUND 

I
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and Changes in Fund Balances
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989


I (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)
 

I 
I Revenues:
 

Interest on bonds
 
Endowment income 
Other

I Total revenues 

I
 
Expenditures - current operating:
 

Community, recreation and cultural programs:
 
Frick Park/Oliver Bath House 

Excess of revenues over expenditures

I Fund balances, beginning of year 
Fund balances, 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

end of year 

113
 

$ 4,320 4,320 
476,667 450,000 

2,788 10,391 

483,775 464,711 

469,504 413,787 

14,271 50,924 
266,269 215,345 

$ 280,540 266,269 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
METER INSTALLATION PROGRAM TRUST FUND
 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost 
which approximates market 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Unreserved: 

Undesignated 
Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

$ 89,000 

$ 89,000 

37,025 
37,025 

73
 

51.902 
51,975 

$ 89,000 

114
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133,290 I
133,290 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
133,290 

133,290 

I
133,290 
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

METER INSTALLATION PROGRAM TRUST FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)

I
 
I
 

Revenues: 
Charges for user services

I Total revenues 

I 
Expenditures - current operating: 

Meter installation 
Total expenditures 

I 
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfer from general fund 

I Total other financing sources 

I Deficiency of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balances, beginning of year 
Equity transfers

I Fund balances, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 115 

I 

$ 633.573 
633,573 

714.888 
714,888 

(81,315) 

66.710 
66,710 

(66,710) 

(uses) 

(81,315) 
133,290 

$ 51,975 

(66,710) 

200.000 
133,290 



I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUND I
 
Balance Sheet 

I
December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988) 

I
 
llll llll 

Assets I
 
Cash and short-term investments, at cost which 

approximates market $ 17,081,859 . 17,472,810 I
Accrued interest receivable 331,927 394,590 
Total assets $ 17,413,786 17,867,400 

I
 
Fund Balance 

Fund balance - reserved for employee benefits 17,413,786 17,867,400 I
 
Total fund balance $ 17,413,786 17,867,400 

I
 
I
 
I· 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 
(with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 1988)

I 
I Revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Other

I Total revenues 

I 
Expenditures - current operating: 

Miscellaneous 
Excess of revenues over expenditures 

I Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfer from general fund 

I 
Operating transfer to general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

I 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 

other sources over expenditures 
and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Equity transfer

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 117 

I 

$ 1,221,893 
8.642 

1,230,535 

82.067 
1,148,468 

3,397,918 
(5.000.000) 
(1,602,082) 

(453,614) 

17,867,400 

$ 17,413,786
 

1,162,447 
2.361 

1,164,808 

3.813 
1,160,995 

1,160,995 

16.706.405 

17,867,400 



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
AGENCY FUNDS
 

Combining Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1989
 
(with comparative totals for December 31, 1988)
 

Assets 

Employee 
benefits 

Payroll 
withholding 

Parking 
meter 

Unclaimed 
liabilities ~osit Other 1989 

Totals 
1988 

Cash and short-term investments, at cost 
which approximates market 

Accrued interest and dividends receivable 
Due from general fund 

Total assets 

$ 12,885,209 
-

2,100,000 
$ 14.985.209 

1,033,606 
1,125 
-

1.034.731 

1,517 
-
-- ­

1.517 -

368,709 
-
-

368.709 

1,507,926 
-
-

1.507.926 

1,553,562 
-
-

1.553,562 

17,350,529 
1,125 

2,100.000 
19.451.654 

14,664,722 

3,625,584 
18.290.306 

Liabilities 

I-' 
I-' 
00 

Accrued liabilities 
Deferred compensation payable 
Due to general fund 
Deposits held in trust 

Total liabilities 

2,740.276 
12.244,933 

-
-

$ 14.985.209 

534.608 
-

500.123 
-

1.034.731 

-
-

1,517 
-- ­

1.517 

368,709 
-
-
-

368.709 

393,135 
-

745,323 
369,468 

1,507.926 

1,212,437 
-
-

341,125 
1.553.562 

5.249.165 
12.244.933 

1.246.963 
710,593 

19.451.654 

6,480,640 
9.255,929 
2,084,243 

469,494 
18.290.306 



I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
AGENCY FUNDS 

I Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 

I Balance Balance 

I 
January 1, December 31, 

.!.2.ll Additions Deductions 1989 
Employee Benefits 

Assets 

I Cash and short-term invest-

I 
ments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 9,964,977 32,129,927 (29,209,695) 12,885,209 

Due from general fund 3.625.584 2.100.000 0.625.584) 2.100.000 
Total $ 13,590,561 34,229,927 (32,835,279) 14,985,209 

I Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities 4,334,632 29,793,205 (31,387,561) 2,740,276

I Deferred compensation payable 9.255.929 4.436.722 (1.447.718) 12.244.933 
Total $ 13,590,561 34,229,927 (32,835,279) 14,985,209 

I Payroll Withholding 

Assets 

I Cash and short-term invest-

I 
ments, at cost which 
approximates market 1,114,857 9,509,447 (9,590,698) 1,033,606 

Accrued interest receivable 1.125 1.125 
Total $ 1,114,857 9,510,572 (9,590,698) 1,034,731 

I Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities 550,043 9,490,249 (9,505,684) 534,608 
Due to general fund 564.814 20.323 (85.014) 500.123

I Total $ 1,114,857 9,510,572 (9,590,698) 1,034,731 

Parking Meter 

I Assets 

I Cash and short-term invest­
ments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 1,517 1,517 

I Liabilities 

Due to general fund 1,517 1,517 
Accrued liabilities 1.517 (1.517)I Total $ 1,517 1,517 (1,517) 1,517 

I 119 (Continued) 



2 I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

AGENCY FUNDS I 
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

(Continued) I 
Balance Balance I 

January 1, December 31, 
l.2.ll Additions Deductions l.2.ll 

Unclaimed Liabili ties I 
Assets 

ICash and short-term invest­
ments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 349,741 29,254 (10,286) 368,709 I

Liabili ties 

Accrued liabili ties $ 349,741 29,254 (10,286) 368,709 I 
Deposit 

Assets I 
Cash and short-term invest­

ments, at cost which I 
approximates market $ 2,232,280 1,598,534 (2,322,888) 1,507,926 

Liabilities I 
Accrued liabilities 270,663 1,183,726 (1,061,254) 393,135 
Due to general fund 1,519,429 215 (774,321) 745,323 
Deposits held in trust 442,188 414,593 (487,313) 369,468 I 

Total $ 2,232,280 1,598,534 (2,322,888) 1,507,926 

Other I 
Assets 

ICash and short-term invest­
ments, at cost which 
approximates market $ 1,001,350 1,199,220 (647,008) 1,553,562 ILiabili ties 

Accrued liabilities 974,044 885,401 (647,008) 1,212,437 
Deposits held in trust 27,306 313,819 341,125 I 

Total $ 1,001,350 1,199,220 (647,008) 1,553,562 

I 
(Continued) 

120 I
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I 3 

I	 CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
AGENCY FUNDS 

I Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
(Continued) 

I 
I Balance 

January 1, 
!ill Additions Deductions 

Total Agency Funds 

Assets

I 
I
 

Cash and short-term investments,
 
at cost which approximates
 
market $ 14,664,722 44,466,382 (41,780,575)
 

Accrued interest receivable 1,125
 
Due from general fund 3,625,584 2,100,000 <3,625,584)
 

I
 Total $ 18,290,306 46,567,507 (45,406,159)
 

Liabilities 

I
 
I Accrued liabilities 6,480,640 41,381,835 (42,613,310)
 

Deferred compensation payable 9,255,929 4,436,722 (1,447,718)
 
Due to general fund 2,084,243 22,055 (859,335)
 
Deposits held	 in trust 469,494 728,412 (487,313) 

Total $ 18,290,306 46,569,024 (45,407,676) 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I	 121 

I 

Balance 
December 31, 

!ill 

17,350,529 
1,125 

2,100,000 

19,451,654 

5,249,165 
12,244,933 
1,246,963 

710,593 
19,451,654 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP 

I 
To account for the outstanding general long-term indebtedness backed by the 

I full faith and credit of the City as well as the City's noncurrent obligations 
for capi tal 
expense. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

leases J pensions J compensated absences and workers' compensation 

122
 



CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Statement of General Long-Term Debt 

IDecember 31, 1989
 
(with comparative amounts for December 31, 1988)
 

I 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED FOR THE PAYMENT OF 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

Amount available in Debt Service Funds for 
retirement of bonds 

Amount to be provided for retirement of bonds 
Amount to be provided for capital lease 

obligations 
Amount to be provided for deferred loan 
Amount to be provided for accrued pension costs 
Amount to be provided for accrued workers' 

compensation 
Amount to be provided for accrued compensated 

absences 
Total available and to be provided 

llll 

$ 4,773,049 
417,864,451 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 

58,590,000 

454,000 
$ 696,311,267 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PAYABLE
 

General obligation bonds payable 
Revenues bonds payable 

Total bonds payable 

Capital lease obligations 
Deferred loan 
Accrued pension costs 
Accrued workers' compensation 
Accrued compensated absences 

Total long-term debt payable 

$ 395,125,000 
27,512,500 

422,637,500 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 
58,590,000 

454,000 
$ 696,311,267 

123
 

I 
!2ll 

I4,786,507 
371,310,993 

4,500,080 I 
1,278,000 

202,093,000 

I55,800,000 

1. 510,000 I641,278,580 

I 
345,000,000 I31,097,500 
376,097,500 

4,500,080 I 
1,278,000 

202,093,000 
55,800,000 I
1.510,000 

641,278,580 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 







- - - - - - - - - - - -' - - -; - - - ­
CITY OF PITTSBURGH. PENNSYLVANIA
 

General Fund Revenuea and Other Financing Sourcea by Source
 

Laat Ten Fiacal Yesrs 

1989 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 1982 1981 1980 

Taxes. including penalty and 
Interest earnings 
Fines and forfeits 
Licenses and fees 

interest • 220,733,176 
7,648,576 
4,392,875 

ll,562,149 

225,303,400 
6,832,810 
4,666,658 

10,564,605 

212 ,491, 390 
8,065,67l 
4,969,702 
8,706,790 

201,486,056 
6,299,898 
4,133,933 
5,596,569 

195,095,648 
8,438,042 
4,144,328 
6,850,083 

186,278,049 
9,125,601 
3,663,380 
5,815,238 

181,961,947 
8,441,351 
3,444,9ll 
5,210,961 

172,142,527 
13,068,409 
3,033,743 
4,528,620 

131,858,ll5 
lO,887,647 
2,538,125 
4,081,775 

121,381,978 
'5,729,673 
2,468,208 
3,619,939 

Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Enterprise Funds administrative charge 

1,4?9,290 
-

1,155,505 
-

1,167,294 
-

1,225,863 
-

1,207,777 
-

1,537,250 
500,000 

921,370 
1,200,000 

557,487 
1,000,000 

562,823 
960,000 

615,962 
-

Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

revenues 4,722,865 
1,279,681 

3,417,510 
1,855,155 

3,417,944 
2,345,8ll 

3,309,692 
1,751,825 

3,413,238 
2,174,894 

4,209,127 
2,601,309 

2,606,464 
2,625,134 

3,041,376 
2,357,944 

4,489,599 
1,974,782 

7,,615,545 
1,961,388 

Other financing sources: 
Bond sale and capital lease 

obligation proceeds 
Deferred loan proceeds 

1,691,443 
426,000 

4,315,820 
426,000 

977 ,234 
426,000 

3,003,747 6,010,000 3,750,000 

Operating transfers from: 
Special revenue funds 
Debt service funds 
Capital projects funds 
Enterprise funds 

352,760 
-
-

7,532,000 

232,lll 
-
-

7,294,000 

-
-

349 
4,092,000 

-
-
-

5,461,000 

-
-
-

4,813,000 

-
--

5,056,847 

-
-
-

1,837,303 

--
-

1,294,752 

281,870 
7,000,000 

930,899 
842,779 

229,442 
1,931,980 

Trust and agency funds 
Special assessment funds 

-- -
-

-- -
1,777 

-
- -

12,780 
-

9,157 
-
12,313 

-
5,852 

-
14,860 

Trust funds 5,000,000 

..... 
N 

Retirement of advance 
Authority 

to Stadium 
- - 5,657,303 

",. Total revenues and other 
financing sources • 266,820,815 266,063,574 252,ll7,508 232,270,360 232,147,010 222,549,581 208,258,618 201,037,17l 166,414,266 145,568,975 



City Ill· l'ITIS~UIH:tI, I'I';NNSYLV,\NIA 

General Fund Expt:>nditures and Opt"rating Transft'rs by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

1989 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 1982 1981 1980 

General govt"rnment 
Publ ic safety 
Pub I ic works 
Sani-tat ion 
Community, recreation and 

cultural programs 
Employee benefits and other 
Claims and judgments 
Mi see llaneolls 
Authorities debt subsidies 
Operating transfers to: 

Special revenue funds 
Debt service funds 
Trust and agency funds 

Total expenditures 
and transfers 

$ 

$ 

15,646,592 
100,663,810 
26,692,698 
14,186,732 

18,848,251 
42,566,932 

646,903 
2,377 ,023 
6,445,994 

4,754,164 
33,748,287 
3,397,918 

269,975,304 

19,591,224 
96,652,207 
31,703,859 
12,613,068 

18,207,873 
47,202,907 

390,907 
826,388 

5,296,219 

5,151,142 
31,627,822 

-

269,263,616 

17,659,717 
89,262,852 
26,831,589 
12,699,780 

17,770,880 
38,626,301 

788,318 
748,721 

4,502,807 

2,160,251 
32,127,529 

20,000 

243,198,745 

19,389,4'11 
79,525,777 
28,160,219 
12,541,140 

38,402,332 
36,154,195 

405,043 
362,962 

3,806,342 

2,425,857 
35,750,283 

-
256,923 ,641 

14,685,693 
66,204,153 
25,660,320 
11,165,311 

23,395,370 
45,819,670 

. 478,392 
804,630 

2,675,615 

4,296,259 
30,716,815 

-

225,902,228 

14,035,464 
61,379,491 
27,217,516 
10,711,676 

20,684,765 
56,449,024 

398,201 
771 ,004 

1,690,000 

4,758,108 
31,524,795 

17,000 

229,637,044 

14,064,887 
57,451,074 
27,505,350 
11,487,646 

16,593,205 
45,784,152 

1,296,041 
667,813 

1,772,000 

3,342,975 
29,722,157 

209,687,300 

10,560,446 
54,044,555 
26,861,399 
10,664,661 

15,132 ,060 
42,158,523* 

* 
* 

1,904,854 

823,091 
28,635,361 

190,784,950 

10,075,205 
48,061,086 
27,684,452 
11,703,495 

13,563,804 
34,847,156* 

* 
* 

968,988 

415,232 
13,245,005 

160,564,423 

10,248,529 
42,784,605 
24,379,118 
11,453,340 

12,726,708 
32,696,004* 

* 
* 

783,671 

559,904 
20,565,994 

156,197,873---­
• - Employee benefits and other includes claims and judgments and miscellaneous for 1982 and prior years and workers' compensation expenditures for 1984 and prior years • 

.... 
to.) 
VI 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Assessed Value, Tax Rates, Levy and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Ye8~8 

Year of Original Levy Delinquent Taxes 
As.essed Percent of Percent of 
valuation original adjusted Percent Percent 

Fiscs! of land Original Adjusted net levy net levy of budget Collect ions of budget 
year and buildings Land Buildings net levy net levy ([) Budget Receipts collected collected collected Budget Receipts collected 

19BO $ 1,4BB,936,812 125.5 mills 24.75 mills • 75,253,195 • 73,777,391 .69,5ll,177 • 69,167,000 91.9 93.B 99.5 • 1,600,000 • 1,758,597 109.9 
1981 1,461,618,lI8 125.5 mills 24.75 mills 73,065,576 67,907,205 69,700,000 66,017,908 (2) 90.4 (2) 97.2 (2) 94.7 (2) 1,750,000 2,452,959 140.2 
1982 1,505,671,781 133.0 mi lIs 32.00 mills 82,883,365 80,256,402 76,325,804 76,729,597 92.6 95.6 100.5 2,400,000 3,354,719 Il9.8 
1983 1,536,543,980 151.5 mills 27.00 milh 84,382,708 81,855,375 77,535,000 77,659,2BI 92.0 94.9 100.2 3,000,000 3,045,145 101. 5 
1984 1,646,276,852 151.5 milh 27.00 miIls 86,965,938 82,872 ,083 78,250,000 78,715,474 90.5 95.0 100.6 3,000,000 2,850,690 95.0
1985 1,767,939,639 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 92,051,888 91,593,532 84,867,870 85,609,165 93.0 93.5 100.9 3,100,000 5,128,169 165.4 
1986 1,803,933,586 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 93,446,719 92,838,844 89,222,736 87,353,306 93.5 94. I 97.9 3,500,000 3,415,286 97.6 
1987 1,842,642,781 151.5 milh 27.00 mills 94,523,920 93,453,230 88, 8Il ;466 88,253,629 93.4 94.4 99.4 3,500,000 4,534,392 129.6 
1988 1,965,627,614 151.5 mills 27.00 milh 96,861,871 96,889,675 91,180,430 91,089,362 94.0 94.0 99.9 3,500,000 4,248,170 121.4 
1989 1,978,453,320 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 99,032,985 98,262,261 94,000,000 91,446,973 92.3 93.1 97.3 4,500,000 4,501,190 100. I 

I. Represents net levy ss of December 31 of the tsx year (i.e., net of exonerations, discounts and additions granted in that year). 

IE 
2. During 1981, resl eatste tsx exonerations which had not been expected by the City were ordered by the Allegheny County Board of Property Assessment, Appeals snd Review. The 

Department of Finance estimates that $2.4 million of luch exonerations were credited to unpaid 1981 real estate taxes. These credits account for a significant portion of the 
fluctuation in the collection rates shown in this table. 



-------------------

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Property Tax Rates - All Overlapping Governments 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
year Land 

City 
Buildings Average* 

School 
district County Total 

~ 
!'oJ 
-..J 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 

125.5 mills 
125.5 mills 
133.0 mills 
151.5 mills 
151. 5 mills 
151.5 mills 
151.5 mills 
151.5 mills 
151.5 mills 
151.5 mills 

24.75 mills 
24.75 mills 
32.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 
27.00 mills 

50.540 
49.660 
55.047 
54.900 
51.850 
52.067 
51.802 
51. 298 
49.883 
50.086 

29.000 mills 
41.000 mills 
36.000 mills 
36.000 mills 
40.000 mills 
40.000 mills 
40.000 mills 
46.000 mills 
46.000 mills 
46.000 mills 

23.000 mills 
28.000 mills 
29.000 mills 
29.000 mills 
29.000 mills 
29.000 mills 
31.250 mills 
31. 250 mills 
31.250 mills 
35.000 mills 

102.540 mills 
118.660 mills 
120.047 mills 
119.900 mills 
120.850 mills 
121.067 mills 
123.052 mills 
128.548 mills 
127.133 mills 
131.086 mills 

* Determined by mUltiplying 
valuation. 

the respective assessed valuation by the millage rate and dividing by the total assessed 
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CITY OF PITTSPURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds snd Notes Psysble
 

December 31, 1989 

~ 

N 
00 

Seds! Bonds 

Genersl Public Improvement Bonds, 1970, Series A 
Genersl Public Improvement Bonds, 1970, Series B 
Genersl Public Improvement Bonds, 1971, Series A 
Genersl Public Improvement Bonds, 1972, Series A 

Genersl Obligstion Bonds of 1973, Series A 

Genersl Obligstion Bonds of 1974, Series A 

Genersl Obligstion Bonds of 1976, Series A 

Csrded forwsrd 

Dste of 
i88ue 

3/01/70 
11/01/70 
10/01/71 
5/01/72 

4/01/73 

4/01/74 

8/01/76 

Amount 
sold 

• 7,500,000 
10,500,000 
9,300,000 

11,400,000 

14,000,000 

14,350,000 

10,300,000 

Amount 
outltsnd ing 

• 375,000 
525,000 
930,000 

1,710,000 

4,140,000 

5,285,000 

5,365,000 

18,330,000 

Hsturity informstion 

$375,000 snnuslly through 1990 
$525,000 snnuslly through 1990 
$465,000 snnus11y through 1991 
$570,000 snnuslly through 1992 

$950,000 in 1990 
$1,000,000 in 1991 
$1,050,000 in 1992 
$1,140,000 in 1993 

$945,000 in 1990 
$1,000,000 in 1991 
$1,050,000 in 1992 
11,110,000 in 1993 

1,180,000 in 1994 

$635,000 in 1990 
$675,000 in 1991 
$715,000 in 1992 
$760,000 in 1993 
$810,000 in 1994 
$860,000 in 1995 
$910,000 in 1996 

Coupon 
or ceiling 

rste of 
interest 

% 6.00 
5.63 
5.00 
5.25 

5.20 
5.20 
5.20 
5.20 

5.30 
5.40 
5.40 
5.50 
5.00 

6.60 
6.70 
6.BO 
6.90 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 

$ 

1990 msximum debt 
service requirements 

Interest Principsl 

11,250 $ 375,000 
29,531 525,000 
46,500 465,000 
74,812 570,000 

190,580 950,000 

255,792 

368,795 

977 ,260 

945,000 

635,000 

4,465,000 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Bonds snd Notes Psysble 
(Continued) 

Serial Bonds 

Brought forwsrd 

General Obligation Bonds of 1977, Series A 

Date of 
iS8ue 

6/01/71 

Amount 
sold 

$ 13,200,000 

Amount 
outstanding 

$ 18,330,000 

7,340,000 

Maturity information 

$740,000 in 1990 
$785,000 in 1991 
$835,000 in 1992 
$885,000 in 1993 
$935,000 in 1994 
$995,000 in 1995 
$1,050,000 in 1996 
$1,115,000 in 1997 

Coupon 
Dr ceiling 
rate of 
interest 

% 5.40 
5.50 
5.60 
5.70 
5.80 
5.88 
5.88 
5.88 

$ 

1990 maximum debt 
service requirements 

Interest Principal 

971,260 $ 4,465,000 

400,240 740,000 

..... 
N 
\0 

General Obligation Bonds of 1978, 

Carried forward 

Series A 7/01/18 14,000,000 8,515,000 

34,185,000 

$745,000 in 1990 
$785,000 in 1991 
$830,000 in 1992 
$880.000 in 1993 
$930,000 in 1994 
$990,000 in 1995 
$1,050,000 n 1996 
$1,120,000 n 1997 
$1,185,000 n 1998 

6.20 
6.30 
6.40 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 

548,840 

1,926,340 

745,000 

5,950,000 

(Continued) 
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----

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of	 Bond. and Note. Payable 
(Cont inued) 

Coupon 
or ceil ing 1990 maximum debt 

Date of Amount Amount rate of service requirements 
Seria I Bond. issue aold out.tanding Maturity information interest Intere.t Principal 

Brought forward	 $ 34,185,000 $ 1,926,340 $ 5,950,000 

General Obligation Bonda, Series of 1985	 8/01/85 $ 224,185,000 49,895,000 $5,700,000 in 1990 6.90 2,857,185 5,700,000 
$6,095,000 in 1991 7.20 
$6,530,000 in 1992 7.50 
$7,020,000 in 1993 7.75 
$7,565,000 in 1994 7.90 
$8,160,000 in 1995 8.10 
$8,825,000 in 1996 8.40 

General Obligation Bonda, Series A of 1986	 7/01/86 63,510,000 63,495,000 $5,000 annually through 2007 6.00 3,809,850 5,000 
$7,510,000 in 2008 6.00 
$7,975,000 in 2009 6.00 
$8,470,000 in 2010 6.00 
$8,995,000 in 2011 6.00 .... $9,550,000 in 2012 6.00

W $10,140,000	 in 2013 6.000 
$10,765,000	 in 2014 6.00 

General Obligation Bonda, Seriea B of 1986 10/15/86 190,000,000 187,550,000 $5,000 in 1990	 5.25 12,976,825 5,000 
$1,560,000 in 1991 5.40 
$1,645,000 in 1992 5.70 
$1,745,000 in 1993 5.90 
$1,855,000 in 1994 6.10 
$1,970,000 in 1995 6.30 
$2,105,000 in 1996 6.50 
$11,715,000 in 1997 6.75 
$12,495,000 in 1998 6.88 
$13,350,000 in 1999 7.00 
$14,270,000 in 2000 7.00 
$15,250,000 in 2001 7.00 
$16,300,000 in 2002 7.00 
$17,405,000 in 2003 7.00 
$18,600,000 in 2004 7.00 
$19,880,000 in 2005 7.00 
$21,240,000 in 2006 7.00 
$16,160,000 in 2007 7.00 

Car"ried forward 335,125,000 21,570,200 11,660,000 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSPURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Bond. and Note. Payable 
<Continued} 

Serial Bond. 
Date of 

i.aue 
Amount 

aold 
Amount 

out.tanding Maturity information 

Coupon 
or ceil ing 
rate of 
interest 

1990 maximum debt 
service requirements 

lntere.t Principal 

Brought forward * 335,125,000 * 21, 570.200 * 11,660.000 

.... 
W .... 

General Obligation Banda, Serie. of 19B9 

Total General Obligation Bond. payable 

9/01/89 * 60,000,000 60,000,000 

395,125,000 

*1,020,000 in 1990 
$1,080,000 in 1991 
*1,145,000 in 1992 
*1,210,000 in 1993 
$1,285,000 in 1994 
$1,365.000 in 1995 
$1,450,000 in 1996 
$1,545,000 in 1997 
$1,645,000 in 1998 
*1,755,000 in 1999 
$1,870,000 in 2000 
$1,990,000 in 2001 
*2,125,000 in 2002 
$2,270,000 in 2003 
*2,425,000 in 2004 
$2,590,000 in 2005 
*2,770,000 in 2006 
*2,965,000 in 2007 
*3,175,000 in 2008 
*3,395,000 in 2009 
*3,635,000 in 2010 
*3.885,000 in 2011 
*4,165,000 in 2012 
*4,460,000 in 2013 
*4,780,000 in 2014 

% 5.75 
5.90 
6.00 
6.10 
6.20 
6.30 
6.40 
6.50 
6.55 
6.60 
6.60 
6.75 
6.80 
6.80 
6.90 
6.90 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.13 
7.13 
7.13 
7.13 

4,097.700 

25,667,900 

1,020,000 

12,680,000 
--­

<Continued} 



Serial Bonda 

Equipment Leaaing Authority Revenue Bonda: 

City of Pittsburgh Equipment Lessing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series of 1984 

City of Pittsburgh Equipment Lessing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series 1986-A 

City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leaaing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series 1986-B 

City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leasing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series 1988-A 

..... 
W 
N 

Totsl Equipment Leasing Authority Revenue 
Bonds payable 

Date of 
issue 

10/15/84 

8/15/86 

8/26/86 

8/01/88 

- - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - ..
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of	 Bonds and Notes Payable
 
(Continued)
 

Amount Amount 
sold outstanding Maturity information 

6,300,000 6,300,000 *6,300,000 in 1990* * 

5,700,000 3,330,000	 *1,045,000 in 1990 
*1,105,000 in 1991 
*1,180,000 in 1992 

5,000,000 2,840,000	 *860,000 in 1990 
*945,000 in 1991 
*1,035,000 in 1992 

7,965,000 6,480,000	 $1,670,000 n 1990 
*1,565.000 n 1991 
*1,450,000 n 1992 
*1,420,000 n 1993 
*375,000 in	 1994 

18,950,000 

Coupon
 
or cei ling
 
rate of
 

~ 

53% of prime 
9.5% ceiling 

% 5.75 
6.25 
6.50 

52% of prime 
9.5% ceiling 

% 5.75 
6.00 
6.20 
6.40 
6.60 

1990 maximum debt 
service requirements 

Interest Principal 

598,500 * 6,300,000* 

191,044 1,045,000 

269,800 860,000 

371,449 1,670,000 

1,430,793 9,875,000 
-
(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Banda and Notea Payable
 
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of	 Bonds and Notes Payable 
(Cant inued) 

Coupon Fiscal 
or cei ling 1990 maximum debt 

Date of Amount Amount rate of service requirements 
Stadium Authority Revenue Bonds and Note: issue ao1d outstanding Maturity information inte-rest Intereat Principa 1 

Guaranteed Stadium Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 12/01/85 $ 32,405,000 $ 31),915,000	 $670.000 in 1989 % 6.50 $ 2,610,428 $ 670,000 
$720,000 in 1990 6.70 
$765,000 in 1991 6.90 
$820,000 in 1992 7.13 
$880.000 in 1993 7.30 
$945,000 in 1994 7.50 
$1.015.000 in 1995 7.70 
$1,100,000 in 1996 7.90 
$1,190,000 in 1997 8.13 
$1,285.000 in 1998 8.30 
$1,400,000 in 1999 8.50 
$1,520,000 in 2000 8.70 
$1,655,000 in 2001 9.00 ... $1,810,000 in 2002 9.00 

W $1,970,000 in 2003	 9.00.l> $1,415,000 in 2004 9.00 
$1,540,000 in 2005 9.00 
$1,690,000 in 2006 9.00 
$1,855,000 in 2007 9.00 
$2.025,000 in 2008 9.00 
$2,220,000 in 2009 9.00 
$2,425,000 in 2010 9.00 

Guaranteed Funding Bonds, Seriea 1986 4/01/86 21,000,000 20,365,000	 $670,000 in 1989 5.80 1.475.268 670,000 
$710,000 in 1990 6.00 
$750,000 in 1991 6'.25 
$3,545.000 in 1995 7.00 
$1,045,000 in 1996 7.10 
$1,120,000 in 1997 7.20 
$1,200,000 in 1998 7.30 
$1,290,000 in 1999 7.40 
$1,385,000 in 2000 7.45 
$1,485,000 in 2001 7.50 
$7,165,000 in 2005 7.63 

Note payable 12/01/82 2,000,000 355,000 $355,000 in 1989 8.75 31,063 355.000 
Total Stadium Authority Revenue Bonds 

and Note Payable 51,635,000 4,116,759 1,695,000 

(Cant i nued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of	 Bonds and Notes Payable 
(Cant i nued) 

Coupon 
or ceiling 1990 maximum debt 

Date of Amount Amount rate of service requirements 
Water and Sewer Authority Bonds: issue sold outstanding Maturity information interest Interest Principal 

Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, Series
 
of 1985
 

,... 

3/29/85 $ 100,000,000 $ 97,900,000 $900,000 in 1990 5.125% $ 5,017,315 $ 900,000 
$900,000 in 1991 through the 
$1,100,000 in 1992 next tender 
$1,200,000 in 1993 date, 9/01/91 
$1,300,000 in 1994 
$1,400,000 in 1995 
$1,600,000 in 1996 
$1,800,000 in 1997 
$2,000,000 in 1998 
$2,200,000 in 1999 
$2,400,000 in 2000 
$2,700,000 in 2001 
$3,000,000 in 2002w 

<.n	 $3,300,000 In 2003 
$3,700,000 in 2004 
$4,100,000 in 2005 
$4,500,000 in 2006 
$5,000,000 In 2007 
$5,600,000 in 2008 
$6,200,000 in 2009 
$6,900,000 in 2010 
$7,700,000 in 2011 
$8,500,000 in 2012 
$9,400,000 in 2013 
$10,500,000 in 2014 

Carried forward	 97,900,000 5,011,315 900,000 

(Continued) 

- - - - - - - - - -, - - - - - - - - ­
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of	 Bonda and Note. Payable 
(Continued) 

Coupon 
or ceiling 1990 maximum debt 

Date of Amount Amount rate of service requirements 
Water and Sewer Authority Bonda, continued: i.sue .old outatanding Haturity information interest Intereat Principal 

Brought forward	 97,900,000 5,017,375 * 900,000*	 * 

Adjuatable Rate Tender Revenue Bonda, Seriea 
of 1986 6/13/86 * 134,700,000 134,700,000 *1,800,000 in 1991 6.3% through 8,486,100 

*2,000,000 in 1992 the next 
*2,100,000 in 1993 tender date, 
*2,300,000 in 1994 9/01/91 
*2,400,000 in 1995 
*2,600,000 in 1996 
*2,800,000 iG 1997 
*3,000,000 in 1998 
*3,200,000 in 1999 
*3,500,000 in 2000 
*3,800,000 in 2001 
*4,000,000 in 2002 
*4,300,000 in 2003 

..... *4,700,000 in 2004 
W *5,000,000 in 2005 
0\ *5,400,000 in 2006 

*5,800,000 in 2007 
*6,200,000 in 2008 
*6,700,000 in 2009 
*7,200,000 in 2010 
*7,700,000 in 2011 
*8,300,000 in 2012 
*8,900,000 in 2013 
*9,600,000 in 2014 
*10,300,000 in 2015 
*11,100,000 in 2016 

Carried forward 232,600,000 13,503,475 900,000 

(Cant inued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds snd Notes 
(Continued) 

Payable 

.... 
W 
...... 

Water and Sewer Authority Bonds. continued: 

Brought forward 

Revenue Refunding Bonds. Series-of 1986 

Total Water and Sewer Authority Bonds outstanding 

Less escrow funds 
Lell discount on bonds 
Total Water and Sewer Authority Bonds payable 

Total Bonds and Notes Payable 

Date of 
issue 

7/14/86 

Amount 
sold 

$ 264,090,000 

Amount 
outatanding 

$ 232,600.000 

264,090,000 

496,690,000 

230,980,000 
1),728,000 

251,982,000 

$ 726,254,500 

Haturity information 

$2.700,000 in 1991 
$4,045,000 in 1992 
$4.300,000 in 1993 
$4.575,000 in 1994 
$4,880.000 in 1995 
$5,215,000 in 1996 
$5,585,000 in 1997 
$5,990,000 in 1998 
$6,425,000 in 1999 
$6,900,000 in 2000 
$7,420,000 in 2001 
$7,975,000 in 2002 
$8,585,000 in 2003 
$9,240,000 in 2004 
$9,945.000 in 2005 
$10,665,000 in 2006 
$11.435,000 in 2007 
$12.265,000 in 2008 
$13.155,000 In 2009 
$14,110,000 in 2010 
$15,130,000 in 2011 
$16,230.000 in 2012 
$17,405,000 in 2013 
$18,670,000 in 2014 
$20,020,000 in 2015 
$21,225,000 in 2016 

Coupon 
or ceiling 

rate of 
interest 

X 5.90 
6.20 
6.40 
6.70 
6.90 
7.10 
7.20 
7.30 
7.40 
7.50 
7.50 
7.63 
7.63 
7.63 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.2S 
7.25 
7.n 
7.n 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
6.00 
6.00 

1990 maximum debt 
eervice requirements 

Intereat Principal 

$ 1).503.475 $ 900,000 

18.607.815 

32 ,111,290 900,000 

$ 64,113,391 $ 25,505,000 



-------------------CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNS~LVA~lA 

Net Debt and Remaining Debt Incurring Margin 
in Accordance with Act No. 52, Approved April 28, 1978 

"Local Government Unit Debt Act" 

December 31, 1989 

Gross debt (1): 
Principal amount of bonds issued and outstanding:
 

General obligation
 
Equipment Leasing Authority
 
Auditorium Authority:
 

Serviced by the City
 
Serviced by others
 

Stadium Authority (2)
 
Total gross debt
 

~ 

~ Items deductible from gross debt: 
Cash and legal investments held in sinking fund for payment of bonds 

and notes 1,962,082 3,433,427 
Cash in bond fund applicable to debt 34,579,049 
Delinquent real estate taxes for the years 1976 to 1987 inclusive 6,337,544 
Amount due from 1989 appropriations 982,492 
Self-liquidating and subsidized debt: 

Auditorium Authority 2,194,500 
Water and Sewer Authority 23.986.000 

Total deductions 66,864,675 6,610,419 

Bet debt	 $ 328,260,325 77,452,081 

(1)	 Direct obligations of the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority in the amount of $492,190,000 are not considered 
debt of the City for purposes of this calCUlation. 

(2)	 Bonded debt of the Stadium Authority does not include note payable of $355,000, which is not guaranteed by the 
City. 

(3)	 Capitalized leases with principal balances of $8,138,768 are not considered debt of the City for purposes of this 
calculation. 

(Continued) 



-------------------
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Net Debt and Remaining Debt Incurring Margin 
in Accordance with Act No. 52, Approved April 28, 

(Continued) 
1978 

Net none1ectora1 debt 
Net lease rental debt 

Net none1ectora1 and lease rental debt 

ALLOCATION OF TOTAL NET DEBT 

$ 328,260,325 
77.452.081 

$ 405,712,406 

Total net revenues of the City 

DEBT INCURRING MARGIN 

llM 

$ 271,694,136 

llU 

$ 284,564,500 

1988 

$ 306,158,013 

.... 
IN 
\CI 

Borrowing base (arithmetic average of total net 
said three full fiscal years) 

revenues for 
$ 287,472,216 

Debt limitations 
Less existing net debt 
Remaining debt incurring margin 

Net 
none1ectora1 

debt 
(borrowing 

base x 250%) 

$ 718,680,540 
(328.260.325) 

$ 390,420,215 

Net 
none1ectora1 

and lease 
rental debt 
(borrowing 
base x 350%) 

1,006,152,756 
(405,712.406) 

600,440,350 



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value
 
and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
year Population 

Assessed 
value 

Gross 
bonded 
debt 

Less 
Debt Service 

Funds 

Net 
general 
bonded 
debt 

Ratio of net 
g"enera1 bonded 

debt to 
assessed value 

Net general 
bonded 

debt per 
caDita 

..... 
J> 
0 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 

423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 
423,938 

$ 1,488,936,892 
1,461,618,118 
1,505,671,781 
1,536,534,980 
1,646,276,852 
1,767,939,639 
1,803,933,583 
1,842,642,781 
1,965,627,614 
1,978,453,320 

148,704,200 
222,755,200 
236,845,200 
254,173,000 
256,743,000 
314,817,500 
367,185,000 
354,740,000 
345,000,000 
395,125,000 

4,638,494 
8,382,780 
6,075,310 
4,422,912 
6,995,167 
7,125,631 
8,017,725 
4,133,480 
2,975,273 
1,338,580 

144,065,706 
214,372,420 
230,769,890 
235,850,088 
225,197,833 
217,264,369 
359,167,275 
350,606,520 
342,024,727 
393,786,420 

9.68 
14.67 
15.33 
15.35 
13.68 
15.68 
19.91 
19.03 
17.40 
19.90 

$ 340 
506 
544 
556 
531 
654 
847 
827 
807 
929 



CITY	 OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I
 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

I
December 31, 1989 

I
 
Percentage City of
 

Net general applicable to Pittsburgh
 
Name of Government bonded debt City of Pittsburgh share of debt
 I
 

City of Pittsburgh: 
General obligation $ 395,125,000 % 100 $ 395,125,000 
Equipment Leasing I
 

Authority 18,950,000 100 18,950,000 
Stadium Authority (1) 51,280,000 100 51,280,000 

Auditorium Authority 30,095,000 50 15,047,500 I
 
City of Pittsburgh School 

District 109,348,870 100 109,348,870 
County of Allegheny 520,349,583 27 140.494.387 I
 

Total direct and over­
lapping debt $ 730,245,757 

I
 
(1)	 Bonded debt of the Stadium Authority does not include note payable of 

$355,000, which is not guaranteed by the City. I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I
 
I
 
I
 
I Fiscal 

year 

I 1979 

1980 

I 1981 

I 
1982 

1983 

I 1984 

1985 

I 1986 

I 
I 

1987 

1988 

1989 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

City Employment 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Regular Actual 
budgeted positions January payroll 

5,624 5,038 

5,749 5,317 

5,783 5,339 

5,491 5,212 

5,497 5,185 

5,405 5,194 

5,412 5,063 

5,442 5,074 

5,456 4,886 

5,221 4,849 

5,257 4,896 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Principal Real Estate Taxpayers
 

December 31, 1989 

Taxpayer 

600 Grant Street Associates 
(U.S. Steel Building) 

Market View Incorporated 
(Subsidiary of PPG Industries) 

500 Grant Street Associates 
(One Mellon Bank Center) 

Oxford Development 
Equitable Life Assurance 

Society of the United States 
Pittsburgh National Bank 
Grant Liberty Development 

Group Company 
Mellon Bank, N.A. 
Landmarks Real Estate Company 
Penn Liberty Holding Company 

Principal type 
of business 

Real Estate 

Real Estate 

Real Estate 
Real Estate 

Real Estate 
Commercial Banking 

Real Estate 
Commercial Banking 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 

1989
 
Assessed
 
valuation
 

$ 77,500,000 

55,750,000 

53,750,000 
32,977,000 

28,630,340 
24,277 ,800 

24,000,000 
22,500,380 
19,392,400 
16.900.000 

$ 355,677,920 
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I
 
I
 
I
 

Percentage 
of total I
tax levied 

I
% 3.93 

2.82 I
 
2.72 
1.67 

I
1.45 
1.23 

I
1.21 
1.14 
0.98 I
0.85
 

% 18.00
- I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



-------------------
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Insurance in Force
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989
 

~ 
~ 
~ 

Type of insurance/name of company 

Boiler Insurance 
American Motorists Insurance Co. 

Errors & Omissions Insurance 
Western World Insurance 

Surety Bond 

Fire Insurance 
Northbrook Property & Casualty 

Insurance Company 

Excess Workers' Compensation 

Point Park Police 
Imperial Casualty & Indemnity Co. 

Coverage
 

General
 
Services
 
Blanket
 

Public 
Safety 
E.M.S. 

Finance 

General 
Services 
Blanket 

Finance 

Public 
Safety 
Police 

Policy period 

06/01/89 - 12/31/89 

07/01/89 - 07/01/90 

01/01/89 - 12/31/89 

09/17/89 - 09/17/90 

Liability limits 

$100,000.00 per accident 
$50,000 business interruption 
per occurrence 

$500,000 endorsement 
$2,500 deductible each claim 

All risk and extended coverage 

$500,000 each occurrence 
$1,000,000 aggregate 
$2,500 deductible 

Annual 
premium 

$ 6,599 

55,130 

Not rebid 

97,893 

Not rebid 

3,121 



I 

I
 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I
 

Salaries and Surety Bonds of Principal Officials 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1989 I
 
Official 

Mayor 
Director of Finance 
Controller 
Members of City Council (9) 
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Annual salary Amount of Surety Bond 

$ 67,324 $ 10,000 
66,000 
42,521 
38,387 each 

200,000 
20,000 I
10,000 each 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



-------------------
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Territorial Growth of Pittsburgh 

December 31, 1989 

Ordinance Annexed Total to date 
approval Entry Square Square 

Territory annexed date date Acres miles Acres miles 

Borough of Pittsburgh 3/0511804 
City of Pittsburgh 3/1811816 320 0.5000 320 0.500 
Northern Liberties Borough 3/0111837 110 0.1719 430 0.672 
City Districts Nos. 8 and 17 710711845 108 0.1687 538 0.841 
Part of Pitt Township 11/0411846 
Part of Pitt Township 12/0411846 592 0.9250 1,130 1. 766 
Part of Pitt Township 12/12/1846 
Remainder of Pitt Township 
Peebles Township 

~ 
-l>	 Liberty Township 
0\	 Collins Township 6/3011868 13,658 21.3406 14,788 23.107 

Oakland Township 
Lawrenceville Borough 
Union Borough 
Temperanceville Borough 
Mt. Washington Borough 
West Pittsburgh Borough 
Monongahela Borough 
South Pittsburgh Borough 4/02/1872 2,684 4.1938 17 ,472 27.301 
Allentown Borough 
Birmingham Borough 
East Birmingham Borough 
St. Clair Borough 
Ormsby Borough 
Brushton Borough 12/01/1894 290 0.4531 17,762 27.754 
Be1tzhoover Borough 3/01/1898 190 0.2969 17,952 28.051 

(Continued) 



-------------------

Territorv annexed 

Elliott Borough
 
Esp1en Borough
 
Sterrett Township
 
Montooth Borough
 
Sheraden Borough
 
City of Allegheny
 
West Liberty Borough
 
O'Hara Township
 
Beechview Borough
 
Part of Union Township
 
Part of Baldwin Township
 

~ 

~ Part of Ross Township 
...... Spring Garden Borough 

Part of Penn Township 
Part of Chartiers Township 
Remainder of Chartiers Township 
Part of Reserve Township 
St. Clair Borough 
Parts of Lower St. Clair Township 
Parts of Swissvale Borough 
Carrick Borough 
Knoxville Borough 
Westwood Borough 
Union Township 
Part of Ross Township 
Hays Borough 
Part of Mifflin Township 
Part of Ross Township 

2
 

CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Territorial Growth of Pittsburgh 
(Continued) 

Ordinance 
approval Entry 

date date 

1/02/1905 
1/08/1906 
1/0811906 
1/0711907 

11/21/1907 
12/06/1907 

1/06/1908 
10/30/1908 

1/04/1909 
1/04/1909 
1/01/1912 

12/19/1916 
1/05/1920 
6/28/1920 

10/04/1920 
1/01/1921 

10/31/1922 
1/01/1923 
2/0711924 

11/2711925 
1/03/1927 
1/03/1927 
1/03/1927 

4/16/1927 1/0211928 
6/2911928 6/29/1928 

1/0711929 
2/15/1929 2/15/1929 
7/24/1928 4/22/1929 

Annexed 

Acres 

203 
180 
310 

73 
621 

5,165 
1,751 

207 
210 

58.21 
151. 712 

10.167 
123.363 

0.949 
11.38 

2,190.22 
160 
618.83 

52.82 
20.773 

1,020.11 
193.52 
190 
600 

39.909 
476.31 
589.91 

17.112 

Square 
miles 

0.3172 
0.2812 
0.4844 
0.1141 
0.9703 
8.0703 
2.7359 
0.3234 
0.3281 
0.0910 
0.2371 
0.0159 
0.1928 
0.0015 
0.0178 

Total to date 
Square 

Acres miles 

18,155 28.368 
18,335 28.649 
18,645 29.133 
18,718 29.247 
19,339 30.217 
24,504 38.287 
26,255 41.023 
26,462 41.346 
26,672 41.674 
26,730.21 41.765 
26,881. 92 42.002 
26,892.09 42.018 
27,015.45 42.211 
27,016.40 42.213 
27,027.78 42.231 

3.4222 ·29,218 45.653 
0.25 29,378 45.903 
0.9669 29,996.83 46.870 
0.0825 30,049.65 46.952 
0.0325 30,070.42 46.985 
1.5939 31,090.53 48.579 
0.3024 31,284.05 48.881 
0.2969 31,474.05 49.178 
0.9375 32,074.05 50.116 
0.0624 32,113.96 50.178 
0.7442 32,590.27 50.922 
0.9217 33,180.18 51.844 
0.0267 33,197.29 51.871 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Territorial Growth of Pittsburgh
 

TerritorY annexed 

Part of Ross Township
 
Part of Ross Township
 
Part of Ross Township
 
Part of Mifflin Township
 
Part of Penn Township
 
Part of Penn Township
 
Overbrook Borough
 
Part of Baldwin Township
 
Part of Mifflin Township
.... 

~	 Part of Reserve Township 
00	 Part of Baldwin Township 

Part of Ross Township 
Part of Baldwin Township 
Part of Baldwin Township 
Part of Robinson Township 

(Continued) 

Ordinance 
approval 

date 

4/25/1929 
6/03/1929 
7/01/1929 
7/22/1929 
9/20/1929 

10/05/1928 

2/27/1931 
3/20/1931 
9/30/1947 
1/30/1948 

12/11/1950 
6/30/1950 
4/22/1955 

Entry 
date 

4/25/1929 
6/03/1929 
7/01/1929 
7/22/1929 
1/02/1930 
1/22/1930 
1/06/1930 
1/05/1931 
2/27/1931 
3/20/1931 

12/01/1947 
4/28/1948 
2/05/1951 
3/13/1951 
8/19/1955 

Annexed 
Square 

Acres miles 

85.956 0.1343 
6.606 0.0103 
1.095 0.0017 
2.049 0.0032 

21.86 0.0342 
11.55 0.0180 

790.193 1.2346 
49.095 0.0767 

486.743 0.7605 
96.8 0.1513 
39.782 0.0622 
10.88 0.0155 

691 1.0797 
23 0.0359 
19.9168 0.03112 

.- ­

Total 

Acres 

to date 
Square 
miles 

33,283.25 52.005 
33,289.86 52.015 
33,290.95 52.017 
33,293 52.020 
33,314.86 52.054 
33,326.41 52.072 
34,116.60 53.307 
34,165.70 53.384 
34,652.44 54.144 
34,749.24 54.295 
34.789.02 54.357 
34,799.90 54.373 

. 35,490.90 55.454 
35,513.90 55.490 
35,533.82 55.521 
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